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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including timformation incorporated by reference herein, ao#t “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securithest of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of tler8es Exchange Act of 1934, as amen
which includes information concerning our plansjeshives; goals; strategies; future events; futte@eenues or performance; the impact of
macroeconomic environment in both the U.S. andrmatidonally on sales and our business segmentsegic longterm investments; changes
capital expenditures; the impact of consumer cemigg; litigation and similar issues; pending tageasments; financial flexibility; the impact
initiatives to accelerate growth, expand marketelamd attract sales from the standard mattreskeatydhe improvements in our net sales; effor
expand business within established accounts, ingp@scount productivity, reduce costs and operaérgenses and improve manufactu
productivity; initiatives to improve gross margitite vertical integration of our business; the depeient, rollout and market acceptance of
products; our ability to further invest in the messs and in brand awareness; our ability to meandial obligations and continue to comply with
terms of our debt agreements, including finan@sibrcovenants; effects of changes in foreign emgbaates on our reported earnings; our exp
sources of cash flow; our ability to effectively mage cash; our ability to align costs with salepeetations; the proposed merger with S
Corporation (“Sealy”)including the opportunities and strengths of thenbmed company, the amount and timing of anticipatest and reven
synergies, the strategic rationale for the commnatincluding expectations regarding product offgs, growth opportunities, value creation,
financial strength, and the timing of the closimgl ather information that is not historical infortiws. Many of these statements appear, in parti
under the heading “Management’s Discussion and y&iglof Financial Condition and Results of Operadioin ITEM 7 of Part Il of this repot
When used in this report, the words “estimatesypets,” “anticipates,” “projects,” “proposed,” ‘gis,” “intends,” “believesand variations of sur
words or similar expressions are intended to iderforward-looking statements. These forwdmdking statements are based upon our cu
expectations and various assumptions. There cao lassurance that we will realize our expectatarthat our beliefs will prove correct.

There are a number of risks and uncertairitias could cause our actual results to differ nialtgrfrom the forwardlooking statemen
contained in this report. Important factors thatildocause our actual results to differ materiattyni those expressed as forwéwdking statemen
are set forth in this report, including under treadling “Risk Factorstinder ITEM 1A of Part 1 of this report. There may dther factors that m
cause our actual results to differ materially fritva forward-looking statements.

All forward4ooking statements attributable to us apply onlypfthe date of this report and are expressly §adlin their entirety by tr
cautionary statements included in this report. |pk@s may be required by law, we undertake no atitig to publicly update or revise any of
forward-looking statements, whether as a resutiest information, future events, or otherwise.

When used in this report, except as specificaited otherwise, the term “Tempur-Pedic Inteioval” refers to TempuPRedic Internation
Inc. only, and the terms “Company,” “we,” “our,” les” and “us” refer to Tempur-Pedic Internationat.land its consolidated subsidiaries.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are a leading manufacturer, marketer and bligti of premium mattresses and pillows, which et isa approximately 80 countri
under the TEMPUR® and Tempur-Pedi® brands. We believe our mattresses and pillows aree momfortable than standard bedding proc
because our proprietary, pressure-relieving TEMPURaterial is temperature sensitive and continuooshforms to the body. We believe that
majority of TempurPedic mattress owners are likely to recommend oaoiyzts to others, which we believe results fromfdgh level of consum
satisfaction, with 92.0% of owners expressing &atifon with their Tempur-Pedic mattress accordioga 2012 Blackstone Group TemReedic
Owners Study.

Consumers in the U.S. and internationally éasingly associate the TempRedic brand name with premium quality products #retbls
better overall sleep. According to the 2012 Ma#irexlustry Consumer Research study our brand aessemas increased to 85.0% in 2012 -
30.0% in 2004. We have also received recognitianbfing topranked in customer satisfaction, comfort and intioma among others, from t
Arthritis Foundation, the U.S. National Aeronautiasd Space Administration (NASA) Space Foundati®opd Housekeepingnd Consumer
Digest. Over the past decade, we have invested approadyrt,000 million in advertising to communicate tmique qualities of our products.

Founded in 1991, our products utilize pressalieving TEMPUR® material that was originally developed in 1971 b&3 in an effort t
relieve astronauts of the G-force experienced dulift-off. Utilizing this technology, we successfully ddeped a proprietary formulation €
process to manufacture a stable, durable and cocmatfigrviable mattress product. Through our congidunnovation, today we offer a variety
mattress models in an assortment of sizes and paites incorporating different technologies to 1edd a wider range of consumer preference:
also manufacture pillows made from the same TEMPURaterial and offer other related products, inclgdfoundations, adjustable bed ba
cushions, slippers and office products.

We are a global company. Our North American ofiregategment consists of two U.S. manufacturindifees in Virginia and New Mexic
and our North American distribution subsidiariesirOnternational segment consists of our manufagyufacility in Denmark, whose custom
include all of our distribution subsidiaries andrdhparty distributors outside the North Americapeoating segment. We sell our mattresses
pillows through four distribution channels: Retéilrniture, bedding and department stores); Difdatect response, Internet and compamyrec
stores); Healthcare (hospitals, nursing homesthnesaie professionals and medical retailers); aniddTgarty distributors in countries where we do
sell directly through our own subsidiaries.

Our principal executive office is located &0 Tempur Way, Lexington, Kentucky 40511 and @leghone number is (800) 88889
Tempur-Pedic International Inc. was incorporatedairthe laws of the State of Delaware in Septer2082. Our Annual Reports on Form KO-
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reportsFenm 8K and any amendments to such reports filed witHuonished to the Securities ¢
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) pursuant to Section@)18r 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984 amended (“Exchange Actgre
available free of charge on our website at www.terpedic.comas soon as reasonably practicable after such sepmetelectronically filed with tl
SEC.

You may read and copy any materials the Comfites with the SEC at the SE€public reference room at 100 F Street NE, Wasbin
DC 20549. The public may obtain information abdwt bperation of the public reference room by cgltime SEC at 1-800-SEQ330. The SEC al:
maintains an internet site that contains reporspand information statements, and other inforomategarding issuers that file electronically v
the SEC. The website of the SEC is www.sec.gov
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Acquisition of Sealy

On September 27, 2012, we announced we hadeghinto an Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Merggreement”)to acquire Sea
Corporation (“Sealy”), by merging Sealy with a ngsidrmed subsidiary of the Company (the “Mergecdl{ectively, the “Sealy Acquisition”)Sealy
owns some of the most recognized bedding brantteiworld, and manufactures and markets a brosgerahmattresses and foundations that a|
to a broad range of consumers under the Sealjealy Posturepedft, Sealy Embody™, Optimum™ by Sealy Posturep@diStearns & Foste? ,
and Basset? brands. In addition to traditional innerspring medses, Sealy leverages its brand portfolio to mlanufacture and market in the U
and internationally specialty (nannerspring) latex and viscoelastic bedding proslugealy is also a leading global brand with topkeiaposition
in Canada, Mexico and Argentina. Sealy operatesutiivr whollyowned subsidiaries in the U.S., Canada, MexicortBuRico, Argentina, Urugu:
and Chile and through joint ventures and licenseg&prs in other international markets.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Medgneement, at the effective time and as a resuh@Merger, each share of common s
of Sealy issued and outstanding immediately priothe effective time of the Merger will be canedlland (other than shares held by Sea
TempurPedic or their subsidiaries or Sealy stockholders wroperly exercise appraisal rights) converted the right to receive $2.20 in cash.’
Company anticipates that the total consideratiohe@aid, including payments on account of existegly options and equity share units ant
assumption of outstanding indebtedness of Sealy dash assumed, will be approximately $1,300.0ianill The transaction is expected tc
completed in the first half of calendar 2013 andubject to regulatory clearance under the HarttSRodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1¢
and other customary conditions.

In order to finance the Sealy Acquisition, December 12, 2012, Tempur-Pedic International arthin subsidiaries of Temp&edic
International, as borrowers and guarantors, enteteca credit agreement (the “2012 Credit Agreetf)emith a syndicate of banks. The 2012 Cr
Agreement provides for (i) a revolving credit fégilof $350.0 million (the “Revolver”), (ii) a ternA facility of $550.0 million (the Term A
Facility”) and (iii) a term B facility of $870.0 rion (the “Term B Facility”). The Revolver includes a sublimit for letters ofditeand swinglin
loans, subject to certain conditions and limitse Revolver and the Term A Facility will mature & ffifth anniversary of the closing and the Ter
Facility will mature on the seventh anniversanttté closing. The Revolver, the Term A Facility ahd Term B Facility are expected to close
fund in connection with the Sealy Acquisition. Ttigigations of the lenders to the 2012 Credit Agreat to make the initial loans at the closin
the Sealy Acquisition and the loans subsequenbging are subject to certain customary closingdit@mns. Our existing credit facility will remaim
place until the closing of the Sealy Acquisition.

In addition, on December 19, 2012, Tempur-€édliernational and certain subsidiaries of Tempeadic International as guarantors
“Guarantors”), issued $375.0 million aggregate @pal amount of 6.875% senior notes due 2020 (Benfor Notes”)to qualified institutione
buyers pursuant to Rule 144A of the Securities #ct933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), andddain nond.S. persons in accordance v
Regulation S under the Securities Act. The Seniotebl were issued pursuant to an indenture, dated Becember 19, 2012 (the “Indentuye”
among Tempur-Pedic International, the GuarantocsTdre Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.As trustee (the “Trustee”Jhe Senic
Notes are general unsecured senior obligationseofipli-Pedic International and are guaranteed on a semsecured basis by the Guaran
Following the Sealy Acquisition, certain of the §eantities will become guarantors of the Seniotd$éo The proceeds from the sale of the S
Notes are in escrow pending release upon receipégilatory approvals and the satisfaction of ottmmnditions to the completion of the Se
Acquisition.

We expect to use the net proceeds of the SenidesNoffering, together with cash on hand and barrgss under the 2012 Cre
Agreement, to finance the Sealy Acquisition andtesl fees and expenses, as well as payoff ouirexistedit facility and Sealy’s outstanding debt.

TempurPedic and Sealy have complementary products, braedsnologies and geographic footprints. We belihat the acquisition
Sealy will provide significant opportunity for bo#ntities to leverage each ottecapabilities to grow beyond their current foatfgiand to increa
efficiencies across the entire supply chain, inicigdhe following:

Comprehensive Portfolio of Iconic Brandsgether with Sealy, we believe we will have th@rmsgest brand portfolio in the industry w
the most highly recognized brands including Tenfpuifempur-Pedi® , Sealy® , Sealy Postureped®, and Stearns & Fostérin North America
South America, Europe, Asia and Australia.
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Complementary Product Offering/e believe that the combination with Sealy willatesone of the most comprehensive suites of be
products available in the market. We believe Sea$itength and expertise in innerspring and hybmigbrspring mattress technologies will
seamlessly with our position in viscoelastic masteadjustable base and pillow technologies. Furtive combined companies will be able
leverage their combined research and developmatfophs to strengthen existing products as wetlelop innovative new offerings to better n
the needs and preferences of consumers and rgtailer

Global FootprintWe and Sealy have a complementary global footpvitit distribution (including through licensees)admer 80 countrie
The combination provides both companies accessuntdes that represent future growth opportuniti#e have a strong presence around the v
particularly in North America, Europe and Asia. '¢hGealy is also well-represented in North AmerEarope and Asia, the Sealy brand is well-
recognized in many other key global markets, paldity in South America.

Attractive Synergy Opportunities and Value &i@n. We believe the combination with Sealy will resultsignificant annual cost savir
and operating synergies. We currently anticipatdizieg in excess of $40.0 million of cost synemley the third year after the Sealy Acquisit
While we can provide no assurances, we expect these synergies will be primarily realized througitreased purchasing and supply c
efficiencies. For example, the Sealy Acquisitiomxipected to result in lower sourcing and combimeshufacturing costs as the combined comp.
will seek to leverage their combined capabilit& plan to further increase efficiencies and casirgys by consolidating purchasing across proc
streamlining production and optimizing the supghaio by enhancing each of our supplier relatiorsHip addition, the combination has the pote
for revenue synergies as a result of a broademygtarffering and access to more distribution ch&necluding international expansion.

Strong Financial Characteristic§Ve expect that the combined company will have stroesh flow characteristics that should enabled
debt reduction and continued investment in growitiaitives.

Combination of Two Strong Management Tedrhs. Sealy Acquisition combines two strong managerteams with extensive mattr
industry and global consumer products experience. aifd Sealy have similar values focused on builditigng retailer relationships and
consumer-driven product innovation to deliver tiestiguality of sleep.

Competitive Strengths
We believe that we benefit from a number ahpetitive strengths, as outlined below, which w#él enhanced by the Sealy Acquisition.

Leading Market Position§Ve are a leading manufacturer, marketer and digtiiof premium mattresses and pillows. As of Deloen81
2012, our products were sold in approximately 8,fi@fiture and bedding retail stores in North Amarand approximately 5,750 furniture retail
department stores internationally in approximat®ly countries. We believe the acquisition of Sealyleadingmanufacturer in the traditior
innerspring mattress category, positions us tordffe most comprehensive suite of bedding prodaesslable in the industry. Together with Se
we will be a leader across nearly all bedding teétgies and will have access to increased chamfiestribution.

Iconic Brand Portfolia We believe that the majority of Tempur-Peflimattress owners are likely to recommend our pradtabther:
which we believe results from our high level of somer satisfaction, with 92.0% of owners expressatjsfaction with their Tempur-Pedfk
mattress according to a 2012 Blackstone Group TeiRpdic Owners Study. Our TEMPUR brand has been in existence since 1991 a
recognized by 85.0% of consumers based on the 2A@diress Industry Consumer Research study. We deel@mnsumers in the U.S. ¢
internationally increasingly associate our branth@avith premium quality products that enable bettarall sleepTherefore, we believe we are
most highly recommended brand in the U.S. The S&atjuisition adds the iconic brands of Se@lySealy Posturepedf, and Stearns & Fostér,
creating a combined company with a portfolio ofséhéighly recognized brands in North America, S@uterica, Europe, Asia and Australia.

Superior Product Offeringdur high-quality, temperature-sensitive TEMP®Raterial distinguishes our products from compepnaduct:
in the marketplace. A key feature of our pressefieving TEMPUR® material is its ability to react to each boslyinique shape, weight ¢
temperature. Sealy produces or markets sleep seissaa range of products including traditionakeirspring, latex foam and viscoelastimémory
foam.” Sealys traditional innerspring mattresses feature aetaf patented technologies, including Posturen@kls and Pressure Relief Inl
designed to relieve pressure points.
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Diverse Channel and Customer MiXe believe the diversity of our routes to the consuis a key advantage, reducing our reliance ¢
customers or distribution channel. Our retail costes include bedding and furniture retailers anphdenent stores, among others. Due to our s
brand recognition, we sell directly to consumemtigh our call center operations and the Intemehé U.S. and the United Kingdom, as we
through our compangwned stores in the U.S. and certain internaticudisidiaries. Additionally, we sell to hospitalsirsing homes, healthc:
professionals and medical retailers that utilize gneducts to treat patients or may recommend lbthesm to their clients. We also utilize third pg
distributors in approximately 60 markets to serveaa that are currently outside the range of owllytowned subsidiaries, allowing us to bi
sales, marketing and brand awareness with miniayaita risk in these developing markets. Sealyomplementary presence in key global ma
through its international licensees and joint veeguand distribution into the hospitality and ckiannel, should further diversify our channel
customer mix upon the closing of the Sealy Acqiaisit

Vertically Integrated Manufacturing and Supf@ain. We produce all of our proprietary TEMPURmaterial in our own manufacturi
facilities in the U.S. and Europe to precisely niimthe specifications of our products. We belithat our vertical integration, from the manufae
of the TEMPUR® material and fabrication and construction of owdurcts through the marketing, sale and delivergwfproducts, ensures a h
level of quality and performance. Our facilitie® drighly-automated, IS@ertified plants and we have made significant ehpitvestments in o
facilities to position us to drive margin expansibmough fixed cost leverage as volumes incredi¢h the Sealy Acquisition, we believe we
leverage our combined scale to enhance our refdtipa with suppliers and more effectively servieg cetail customers through our combi
distribution network.

Strong Financial Performance and Free CashwFiBenerationOur business generates significant cash flow due ¢combination of ol
strong net sales, gross profit margins, low mawee capital expenditures and limited working @piquirements. For the year ended Dece
31, 2012, our gross profit margin was 50.9% onsaéts of $1,402.9 million. Our high gross margiiveh by our vertically integrated manufactui
model, allows us the flexibility to reinvest in domsiness.

Our Products

MattressesOur mattresses represented 66.6% of our net sa@3li2 and are our leading product category hisatlyi. Our mattresses ¢
composed of proprietary multi-layer, temperatunesgeve, pressure-relieving TEMPURmaterial that continuously conforms to the body. &ffer
several mattress models, some of which are coveyedne or more patents and/or patent applicatidves.also routinely introduce new mattr
models, launch new products and update our existiaigress products in our North American and Iragomal segments.

Pillows. Our premium pillow offerings include a variety dfles and represented 11.3% of net sales in 202 pillows provide plush ar
pressure-relieving comfort as the temperature Beashaterial conforms to the body.

Other Products.Our other products represented 22.1% of our nessal 2012. This category includes foundations ueesupport ot
mattress products, adjustable bed bases and miaaytgpes of offerings including a variety of custs and other comfort products.

Marketing and Sales

We primarily sell at wholesale through three distichannels: Retail, Healthcare and Third partg. Market directly to consumers in
U.S. and certain international markets through Dinect channel. Our marketing strategy is to inseeaonsumer awareness of the benefits ¢
products and to further associate our brand nantle métter overall sleep and premium quality progudthroughout 2012, consistent with
strategy, we made additional investments in adsiagi to increase brand awareness to drive futuoavtlyr in certain key North Americ
and international markets.
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Since introducing our high-quality, temperatsensitive TEMPUR material in the marketplace in 1991, we have cametihto introduc
new technologies to improve our existing productd address consumer preferences. For examplelyireOL2, we introduced our new TEMPUR-
Breeze ™ technology, which optimizes the sleep afarto produce an extra-cool feel, and our new THBRRVeightless™ Collection of mattres
designed to provide extra responsiveness that alfomeasier movement in and out of bed. In Jang@iyB, we introduced our new TEMPUEhoice
™ Collection, which offers our pressure-relieving dorh combined with a new mulene adjustable support system for personalizedfaormn
each side of the bed.

Retail. The Retail channel sells to furniture and beddetgiters and department stores, among others. @tailRhannel represented 87.
of net sales in 2012. Our top five customers actmlifor approximately 24.0% of our net sales far ylear ended December 31, 2012, with
customer in our North American segment (Mattress}J-accounting for more than 10.0% of our consaéidanet sales. The loss of one or mol
these customers could negatively impact our pHaifits.

Direct. The Direct channel sells directly to consumers ugto our call center operations and the Internethan U.S. and the Unit
Kingdom, as well as our compawyvned stores in the U.S. and certain internatisnékidiaries. Our direct response program targetomers i
these markets through television, radio, home ngsli magazine, and newspaper product offering &dgerents. Our Direct channel represe
8.1% of net sales in 2012.

HealthcareThe Healthcare channel sells to hospitals, nuisorges, healthcare professionals and medical retahiat utilize our produc
to treat patients, or may recommend or sell theeédr clients. In addition, in the U.S. we aretparing with healthcare vendors in a sales me
whereby the vendors integrate our TEMP®Raterial into their products to improve patient ¢ornand wellness. These healthcare partners n
our joint product offerings through establishedritisition channels. This channel represented 2.2febsales in 2012.

Third party.Third party sales represented 2.2% of net sal@dir?2. We utilize third party distributors to semverkets that are curren
outside the range of our wholbywned subsidiaries. Our approach to these devejomiarkets has allowed us to build sales, markedimg) bran
awareness with minimal capital risk. We have emtén¢o arrangements with third party distributassdted in approximately 60 countridss thes:
markets mature we may seek to convert these thiry pelationships into wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Seasonality

A significant portion of our net sales is attrigbfe to sales in our North American Retail chanpatticularly sales to furniture and bedc
stores. We believe that our sales of mattressep@lodis to furniture and bedding stores are tyfycaubject to modest seasonality inherent ir
bedding industry with sales expected to be genelaler in the second and fourth quarters and highéhe first and third quarters. Internatione
specifically in Europe, we are subject to seaspnulith net sales lower in the third quarter as paned to the other quarters during the year.

Operations

Manufacturing and Related Technolo@ur mattresses and pillows are currently manufadtim our 517,000 squafeet facility located il
Aarup, Denmark, our 540,000 square-foot facilitiaffield, Virginia and our 800,000 squaf@st facility in Albuquerque, New Mexico. Most dfid
sewing and production of mattress and pillow cov@mutsourced to third party suppliers.

SuppliersWe obtain the raw materials used to produce ousspire-relieving TEMPUR material from outside sources. We curre
acquire chemicals and proprietary additives fronumber of suppliers with manufacturing locationguard the world. We expect to continue tt
supplier relationships for the foreseeable futlve. do not consider ourselves dependent upon aglesiutside vendor as a source of raw mate
and believe that sufficient alternative sourcesugiply for the same or similar raw materials arailable. Additionally, we source the manufactu
of our adjustable bed bases and foundations frand farty manufacturers. We do not consider ouesldependent upon any single out
manufacturer as a source of these products.

Research and Developmeme have two research and development centersnahe iU.S. and one in Denmark, which conduct teldyy
and product development. Additionally, we have adpct testing facility that conducts hundreds ohstamer tests annually. We believe
consumer-research driven approach to innovatiounltseegh best-inelass products that put the consumer first. Rebeand development expen
were $15.6 million, $9.9 million and $7.4 million 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Industry

We compete in the global bedding industry comprisEmattresses, foundations, pillows and accessofihe traditional mattress mai
category is primarily comprised of mattresses magleg innersprings that are sold primarily througtail furniture and bedding stores. Alternat
to innerspring mattresses include viscoelastic frain mattresses, innerspring/foam hybrids, airbé&ttex mattresses and waterbeds, and
products referred to as specialty mattresses. iadilly, the pillow market is made up of traditidii'bam or feathers, other than down) and spec
(viscoelastic, foam, sponge, rubber and down) walo

The U.S. is the largest market in which we comp8tece 1990, U.S. wholesale bedding sales, whiclude mattresses and foundati
have grown at a compound annual growth rate, or RAG 5.2%, reaching $6.3 billion in 2011 accorditegthe International Sleep Produ
Association (“ISPA”).This growth has been driven by the increase inll& population, natural replacement cycle of negaes and an increas:
the average unit selling prices (“AUSPs”).

The specialty mattress category, which has groeamf22.0% in 2008 to 30.0% in 2011 of the overalbUmattress industry, according
ISPA, has been driven by growing consumer demamdtfese products. In 2011, traditional innersprimgttresses, excluding foundatic
represented approximately $3,500.0 million of theelding industry, and specialty mattresses, exctudaundations, represented approxime
$1,500.0 million of the industry, according to ISPA

The U.S. mattress industry has historically beerretated with the overall economy and housing mars the economy grows &
consumers build and move into new homes, they &jlgipurchase new furniture and mattresses. As,slgting recessionary periods, demanc
mattresses declines as consumers delay buyingteesgatDuring the most recent recession in 2008809, wholesale bedding sales experience
greatest year-overear decline in the past 20 years. Although denianuioved in 2010 and 2011, the increase in unitd w@s slower than in yet
following prior recessionary periods. However, hesmapproximately 70.0% of new mattress purchasetypically driven by the replacement cy
we believe there is currently pemp- demand as consumers have delayed replacingntiairesses during the most recent recession. Asgulttme
housing market continues to recover, the overalhemy improves and the per capita disposable indonreases, we believe the mattress indus
well positioned for future growth.

The U.S. mattress industry has benefitted fronteady increase in AUSP over the past three decaugmrticular with the growth
specialty mattresses. As consumers have becomeasiogly aware of the health benefits of a gooditrsgsleep, which is often associated with
quality of their mattress, consumers have demaestra growing willingness to increase spending doecialty mattresses and related bec
products. This trend has been further supportethbydemographic shift in the population to conswrege 4%4 years old, who typically have
higher level of disposable income. The U.S. madtiadustry has responded with the development of manovative technologies. Mattresses \
enhanced features are typically sold at higheeprtban traditional innerspring mattresses.

Competition

The mattress and pillow industries are highly cetitive. Participants in the mattress and pillowlustries have traditionally compe
primarily based on price. Our premium mattressespeie with a number of different types of premiumd atandard mattress alternatives, inclu
innerspring mattresses, foam mattresses, waterfigdss, air beds and other apported mattresses that are sold through a yasfethannel:
including furniture and bedding stores, departm&ntes, mass merchants, wholesale clubs, telentagkptograms, television infomercials
catalogs. The pillow industry is characterized bgrge number of competitors, none of which is duami.

The standard mattress market in the U.S. is ddeihby manufacturers of innerspring mattressed) thitee nationally recognized br:
names: Sealy, Serta and Simmons. These competitsosoffer premium innerspring mattresses and cilely have a significant share of
premium mattress market in the United States. $€emfort Corporation competes in the repring mattress market and focuses on the air es
market segment. The balance of the mattress marlteé United States is served by a large numbetler manufacturers, primarily operating ¢
regional basis. Many of these competitors andaitiqular, the three largest brands of innerspnragtresses named above, have significant fina
marketing and manufacturing resources, strong bremde recognition, and sell their products throbgbader and more established distribt
channels. In 2012, the mattress market experieatedg competition from other companies competiritly \® number of mattress alternatives
hybrid mattresses which could hurt our market shaoowing the Sealy Acquisition, Tempedic believes the combined companies will proa
comprehensive portfolio of iconic brands, with soafehe most highly recognized brands in North Aiceerand strong brand recognition ac
Europe, South America and Asia and will have a dempntary product offering, with Tempur-Pedic’s esfse in viscoelastic and Seayexpertis
in innerspring, with the ability to leverage moesearch and development to strengthen existingipteénd develop innovative new products.
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The international market for mattresses and p#lasgenerally served by a large number of manufarg, primarily operating on a regio
basis. Some of these manufacturers also offer @lastic mattress and pillow products.

Intellectual Property

We hold various U.S. and foreign patents and pagpplications regarding certain elements of thsigieand function of many of ¢
mattress and pillow products.

As of December 31, 2012, we held trademark regjistnis worldwide, which we believe have significaatue and are important to
marketing of our products to retailers. TEMPBRnd Tempur-Pedi® are trademarks registered with the United StatésnPand Trademark Offic
In addition, we have U.S. applications pendingddditional marks. Several of our trademarks havenlregistered, or are the subject of pen
applications, in various foreign countries. EacB.Urademark registration is renewable indefinigeylong as the mark remains in use.

Governmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to state, local angidarconsumer protection and other regulationdingldo the mattress and pillow indus
These regulations vary among the states and ceanti which we do business. The regulations gelgeirabose requirements as to the prc
labeling of bedding merchandise, restrictions regar the identification of merchandise as “new” otherwise, controls as to hygiene and ¢
aspects of product handling and sale and pendtifegiolations. The U.S. Consumer Product Safetyn@ussion has adopted rules relating to
retardancy standards for the mattress industry.yMareign jurisdictions also regulate fire retardarstandards. Future changes to these star
may require modifications to our products to compfgh these additional standards. We are also stlbjeenvironmental and health and se
requirements with regard to the manufacture ofgroducts and conduct of our operations and faedlitWe have made and will continue to n
capital and other expenditures necessary to comipiyall these requirements. Currently these exjteres are immaterial to our financial results.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately A @5 ployees, with approximately 850 in North Amari800 in Denmark and 800
the rest of the world. Certain of our employee®anmark are covered by a government labor uniotracinas required by Danish law. None of
U.S. employees are covered by a collective banggiagreement. We believe our relations with ourleyges are generally good.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

This information is incorporated herein by refereifrom our definitive proxy statement for the 203ual Meeting of Stockholders (1
“Proxy Statement”) under the section entitled “Rregd One—Election of Directors - Executive Officérs

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors and other infornaatiincluded in this report should be carefully ddesed. Please also seeSpecial Not
Regarding Forwar-Looking Statements” on page 3.

Risks Related To Our Business

Set forth below are descriptions of certain risksrelating to our business, which includes, upon comsnmation of the Seal
Acquisition, Sealy and its subsidiaries.

Unfavorable economic and market conditions couldduee our sales and profitability and as a resultyrooperating results may be advers
affected.

Our business has been affected by general busamelseconomic conditions, and these conditionsdchale an impact on future dem
for our products. Although demand in the U.S. nesttrindustry improved in 2012, the U.S. macroecon@mvironment remains uncertain and
the primary factor in a slowdown in the mattressuistry starting in 2008. In addition, our Interoatl segment experienced weakening as a res
general business and economic conditions. The blebenomy remains unstable, and we expect the @ticnenvironment to continue to
challenging as continued economic uncertainty lese@lly given households less confidence to ma&aetionary purchases.
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In particular, the financial crisis that affectdte banking system and financial markets and theentiuncertainty in global econor
conditions have resulted in a tightening in theditrmarkets, a low level of liquidity in many finaial markets and volatility in credit, equity arigefd
income markets. There could be a number of otHfectsffrom these economic developments on our basjrincluding reduced consumer den
for products; insolvency of our customers, resgltin increased provisions for credit losses; ineoby of our key suppliers resulting in proc
delays; inability of retailers and consumers toagbtcredit to finance purchases of our productsretesed consumer confidence; decreased
demand, including order delays or cancellationg] aaunterparty failures negatively impacting owrasury operations. If such conditions
experienced in future periods, our industry, bussrend results of operations may be severely iragact

In addition, the negative worldwide economic coiodis and market instability makes it increasindifficult for us, our customers and ¢
suppliers to accurately forecast future product a&intrends, which could cause us to produce exmesfucts that can increase our inven
carrying costs. Alternatively, this forecastingfidifilty could cause a shortage of products, or nelteused in our products, that could result i
inability to satisfy demand for our products andss of market share.

Our sales growth is dependent upon our ability toplement strategic initiatives and actions takenitezrease sales growth may not be effective.

Our ability to generate sales growth is dependpohwa number of factors, including the following:

®our ability to continuously improve our productsoffer new and enhanced consumer benefits andr loptédity;

°ability of our future product launches to increas¢ sales

ethe effectiveness of our advertising campaignsathdr marketing programs in building product anahiorawareness, driving traffic
our distribution channels and increasing se

®our ability to continue to successfully execute simategic initiatives;
®the level of consumer acceptance of our produais; a

.general economic factors that negatively impacsaarer confidence, disposable income or the avéitiabf consumer financing

Over the last few years, we have had to managéusiness both through periods of rapid growth &eduncertain economic environmen
source of our growth within this time frame hasrbé&&ough expanding distribution of our product®inew stores, principally furniture and bedc
retail stores in the U.S. Our products are curyesld in approximately 8,700 furniture and beddiatnil stores in North America, out of a tota
approximately 11,500 stores we have identified@m@priate targets. Within this addressable maxkat,plan is to increase our total penetration
total of 9,000 to 10,000 over time. Our products sold in approximately 5,750 retail stores intéomally, out of a total of 8,000 that have b
identified as appropriate targets. Some of thetal rtores may undergo restructurings, experidimancial difficulty or realign their affiliation
which could decrease the number of stores thay canr products. Our sales growth will increasindgpend on our ability to generate additional ¢
in our existing accounts in the Retail channeléf are unable to increase product sales in outirgisetail accounts at a sufficient rate overaily
net sales growth could slow or decline.

In July 2012, we announced a broad series of n#iatiaes to address competitive market conditiansluding new product introductions, -
discontinuation of certain other products, warraexgensions and reductions in wholesale prices rmadufacturer suggested retail prices. T
initiatives were implemented in late third quaér2012 and into the fourth quarter of 2012, aretefore, we cannot assure you that they will
the desired results.

In addition to the Sealy Acquisition, we may seekatquire an additional business or businessesdier @o increase sales growth, and
acquisition could be disruptive to our ongoing bess, create integration issues, require additiom@bwings or share issuances, or create othks
for our business.

We operate in the highly competitive mattress arniibpy industries, and if we are unable to competecsessfully, we may lose customers and
sales may decline

Participants in the mattress and pillow industdempete primarily on price, quality, brand hameorgttion, product availability and prodi
performance. Our premium mattresses compete withnaber of different types of mattress alternativesluding standard innerspring mattres
viscoelastic mattresses, foam mattresses, hybndrépring/foam mattresses, waterbeds, futons,etls land other asupported mattresses. Th
alternative products are sold through a varietghafnnels, including furniture and bedding storepadtment stores, mass merchants, wholesale
Internet, telemarketing programs, television infocr@s and catalogs.
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Our largest competitors have significant ficiah marketing and manufacturing resources. Thggyestrong brand name recognition, and
sell their products through broad and well establisdistribution channels. Additionally, a numbgoor significant competitors offer non-
innerspring mattress and viscoelastic pillow pragudny such competition by established manufacsuoe new entrants into the market could ha
material adverse effect on our business, finar@atition and operating results. The pillow indys$$ characterized by a large number of
competitors, none of which are dominant, but manylich have greater resources than us. The highitypetitive nature of the mattress and pillow
industries means we are continually subject taigieof loss of market share, loss of significamstomers, reductions in margins, and the inabtidity
acquire new customers.

To date in 2012, the mattress market has been coonetitive than at any time in our experience,cvtiias adversely affected our result:
particular, others have expanded into specialtynsggs hurting our market share and margins, andichybattresses can take sales away
specialty segments. If this environment continues@ur response is not successful, our resultscvooritinue to be adversely affected.

Because we depend on our significant customerseardase or interruption in their business with uuld reduce our sales and profitabilit

Our top five customers, collectively, accounted &mproximately 24.0% of our net sales for the yeaded December 31, 2012, with
customer in our North American segment accountimgrfore than 10.0% of our net sales. The creditrenment in which our customers operate
been relatively stable over the past few years. él@r the continued management of credit risk bgrftial institutions has caused a decrease
availability of credit for mattreseetailers. In certain instances, this has causettresa retailers to exit the market or be forcet ipankruptcy
Furthermore, many of our customers rely in partonsumersability to finance their mattress purchases wittddrfrom third parties. If custome
are unable to obtain financing, they may deferrtparchases. We expect that some of the retatetscarry our products may consolidate, und
restructurings or reorganizations, experience firerdifficult, or realign their affiliations, angf which could decrease the number of stores tuay
our products or increase the ownership concentratithe retail industry. Some of these retailees/mecide to carry only a limited number of bre
of mattress products, which could affect our apitit sell products to them on favorable terms,tifih A substantial decrease or interruptio
business from these significant customers couldltrésthe loss of future business and could redigeadity and profitability.

We are subject to fluctuations in the cost raw midéds, and increases in these costs would reduce lgquidity and profitability.

The bedding industry has been challenged by vityaitil the price of petroleurbased and steel products, which affects the cgsblgtirethan
foam, polyester, polyethylene foam and steel irprérg component parts. Domestic supplies of these materials are being limited by supg
consolidation, the exporting of these raw matemaitside of the U.S. due to the weakened dollarathdr forces beyond our control. The major
materials that we purchase for production are cbalsiand proprietary additives, which are influehbg oil prices. The price and availability
these raw materials are subject to market conditaffecting supply and demand. We and Sealy expegckincreases in the price of certain
materials during 2012, and we expect to encounflationary costs for certain raw materials in 20IBe prices of polyurethane foam did see <
decreases in the fourth quarter as the price efetw diisocyanate (“TDI"and Polyol began to stabilize and demand trendedhd&iven th
significance of the cost of these materials to and Sealys products, volatility in the prices of the undérty commodities can significantly afft
profitability. To the extent we are unable to albsbigher costs, or pass any such higher costs t@ustomers, our gross profit margin coulc
negatively affected, which could result in a deseei our liquidity and profitability.
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We are subject to a pending tax proceeding in Demkaand an adverse decision would reduce our ligiydand profitability.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, we received mrome tax assessment from the Danish Tax Auth@i8IKAT”) with respect to the 20C
2002 and 2003 tax years, an assessment with resptet 2004 tax year during the third quarter @@ and an assessment with respect to the
tax year during the second quarter of 2011, rejdiinthe royalty paid by one of Tempur-Pedic Inéional’s U.S. subsidiaries to a Danish subsid
In addition, during the second quarter of 2012, @wenpany received an income tax assessment wigieceso the 2006 tax year of approxima
$28.5 million. The position taken by SKAT could &pfo subsequent years. The cumulative total tmessment for all years is approximately $1
million including interest and penalties. The Comypdiled timely protests with the Danish NationaxT Tribunal challenging the tax assessm
The National Tax Tribunal formally agreed to pldlce Danish tax litigation on hold pending the oateoof a Bilateral Advance Pricing Agreen
(“Bilateral APA”) between the United States and SKA Bilateral APA involves an agreement betwees lthternal Revenue Service (“IRS3hc
the taxpayer, as well as a negotiated agreemehtomié or more foreign competent authorities ungelieable income tax treaties. During the t
quarter of 2008, we filed the Bilateral APA withethRS and SKAT. U.S. and Danish competent autlegritiave met to discuss the Company’
Bilateral APA, and additional meetings are expec8AT and the IRS met several times since 201kstmexently in September 2012, to discus
matter. There were no significant changes in thiéggrespective positions during 2012. The parties lagreed to meet again in the spring of 2
to continue the negotiation process. In the eveatdiscussions and negotiations from that meetingat yield a satisfactory result for us, the |
step for us to resolve the matter would be to sesblution of this issue through an administrajpreceeding before the Danish National
Tribunal (the “Tribunal”).The Tribunal is a branch of SKAT that is independgfithe discussions and negotiations that havertaltace to date.
the Tribunal does not rule to the satisfaction né @r both parties, the party seeking redress rhagse to litigate the issue in the Danish ¢
system. If we move from the Bilateral APA procesdtte Tribunal or a proceeding in the Danish caystem, SKAT could require us to post a
deposit or other security for taxes it has assessad amount to be negotiated, up to the full anaif the claim. We believe we have meritori
defenses to the proposed adjustments and will @pues assessments before the Tribunal and in tiésiD&ourts, as necessary. It is reasor
possible the amount of unrecognized tax benefitg change in the next twelve months. An estimathefamount of such change cannot be ma
this time. If we are not successful in defending pasition to SKAT, the Tribunal or in the Danisbucts that we owe no additional taxes, we cou
required to pay significant amounts to SKAT, whaduld impair or reduce our liquidity and profitatyil

We may be unable to sustain our profitability, whicould impair our ability to service our indebtedss and make investments in our business
could adversely affect the market price for our sko

Our ability to service our indebtedness dependsuwrability to maintain our profitability. We maynbe able to maintain our profitability o
quarterly or annual basis in future periods. Futrtbar profitability will depend upon a number affors, including without limitation:

°general economic conditions in the markets in whiehsell our products and the impact on consuntagetailers;
®the level of competition in the mattress and piliogustry;

®our ability to align our cost structure with salleshe existing economic environme

eour ability to effectively sell our products thrdugur distribution channels in volumes sufficiemidrive growth and leverage our ¢
structure and advertising spendil

®our ability to reduce costs;
®our ability to absorb fluctuations in commodity tx:
®our ability to maintain efficient, timely and c-effective production and utilization of our manufaing capacity

®our ability to successfully identify and respondetaerging trends in the mattress and pillow indystnd

eour ability to maintain public association of ouabd with premium products, including overcoming @mpact on our brand caus
by some of our customers seeking to sell our prizdatca discount to our recommended pt

Our new product launches may not be successful doedevelopment delays, failure of new products thigve anticipated levels of marl
acceptance and significant costs associated wititethproduct introductions, which could adversel§fect our revenues and profitability.

Each year we invest significant time and resouitessearch and development to improve our resgeptioduct offerings. There are a nun
of risks inherent in our new product line introdaos, including the anticipated level of market eggance may not be realized, which ci
negatively impact our sales. Also, introductiontspshe speed of the rollout of the product and ufecturing inefficiencies may be greater t
anticipated, which could impact profitability.
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Our advertising expenditures and customer subsidiesy not result in increased sales or generate léneels of product and brand name awaren
we desire and we may not be able to manage our didweg expenditures on a cost-effective basis.

A significant component of our marketing strategydlves the use of direct marketing to generatessdtuture growth and profitability w
depend in part on the cost and efficiency of owresiising expenditures, including our ability teeate greater awareness of our products and
name and determine the appropriate creative messabmedia mix for future advertising expendituaed to incent the promotion of our products.

Our operating results are increasingly subject tadtuations, including as a result of seasonalityhich could make sequential quarter to quar
comparisons an unreliable indication of our perforamce and adversely affect the market price of oommmon stock.

A significant portion of our growth iret sales is attributable to growth in sales inNarth American Retail channel, particularly nelesatc
furniture and bedding stores. We believe that alessof mattresses and pillows to furniture anddbegistores are subject to seasonality inhere
the bedding industry, with sales expected to beeggly lower in the second and fourth quarters higther in the first and third quarters, ani
Europe, lower in the third quarter. Our net sales/rhe affected increasingly by this seasonalitytisdarly as our North American Retail se
channel continues to grow as a percentage of cenatinet sales and, to a lesser extent, by selityomatside the North American segment. Our t
quarter sales are typically higher than other guartThis seasonality means that a sequential equrtquarter comparison may not be a ¢
indication of our performance or of how we will f@m in the future.

In addition to seasonal fluctuations, the demandoiar premium products can fluctuate significarttlgsed on a number of other fact
including general economic conditions, consumerfidence, the timing of new product introductions grice increases announced by us or
competitors and promotions we offer or offered oy competitors. As our consumer base continuegpareld across a wider demographic, it ma
comprised of a greater percentage of middle incoamsumers. As a result, our consumer base may be susceptible to general economic fac
impacted by decreased disposable income, conswmédence or availability of consumer financing.

We may be adversely affected by fluctuations inlexge rates, which could affect our results of opébns, the costs of our products and ¢
ability to sell our products in foreign markets.

Approximately 31.3% of our net sales were generatedur International segment for the year endedeD®er 31, 2012. As a multinatio
company, we conduct our business in a wide vaoétyurrencies and are therefore subject to maikktfor changes in foreign exchange rates
use foreign exchange forward contracts to manggertgon of the exposure to the risk of the evennetl cash inflows and outflows resulting fr
foreign currency denominated transactions betwesmpLrPedic International subsidiaries and their custenaerd suppliers, as well as am
certain TempuiRedic International subsidiaries. The hedging &atisns may not succeed in managing our foreigreagly exchange rate risk. Re
to ITEM 7A under Part Il of this report.

Foreign currency exchange rate movements alsoeceedegree of risk by affecting the U.S. dollaueabf sales made and costs incurre
foreign currencies. We do not enter into hedgiraggactions to hedge this risk. Consequently, oported earnings and financial position cc
fluctuate materially as a result of foreign exchauggins or losses. Our outlook for 2013 assumesistent currency exchange rates versus th
year ended December 31, 2012. Should currency caasge sharply, our results could be negativelyaicted. Refer ITEM 7A under Part Il of t
report.
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We are subject to risks from our international omions, such as foreign exchange, tariff, tax infian, increased costs, political risks and ¢
ability to expand in certain international marketsyhich could impair our ability to compete and oprofitability.

We currently conduct international operationsur approximately 23 whollpwned subsidiaries and our products are sold incxjrpately
80 countries. We generated approximately 31.3%uofnet sales from our International segment dutirggyear ended December 31, 2012, an
continue to pursue additional international oppaittes. Sealy generated approximately 22.6% ohdssales during their year ended Novembe
2011 from its international subsidiaries. Sealy glarticipates in international license and joiahture arrangements with independent third pa
Our and Sealg international operations are subject to the coaty risks of operating in an international envir@mt, including complying wi
foreign laws and regulations and the potential isifimn of trade or foreign exchange restrictiorasjfts and other tax increases, fluctuation
exchange rates, inflation and unstable politicaladions and labor issues. Sealy is also limitedtgnability to independently expand in cer
international markets where it has granted licensaaanufacture and sell Se&lyedding products. Sealylicensees in Australia, Jamaica anc
United Kingdom have perpetual licenses, subjetitriited termination rights. Sealg’licensees in the Dominican Republic, the Baha@astinente
European Union countries, Brazil, Israel, JapamdSArabia, South Africa and Thailand hold licenseth fixed terms with limited renewal righ
Fluctuations in the rate of exchange between tt% tbllar and other currencies may affect our fai@nrcondition or results of operations.

If we are not able to protect our trade secretsroaintain our trademarks, patents and other intelte@l property, we may not be able to prev
competitors from developing similar products or fromarketing in a manner that capitalizes on our ttamarks, and this loss of a competit
advantage could decrease our profitability and lidity.

We rely on trade secrets to protectdésign, technology and function of our TEMP8Rnaterial and our products. To date, we have
sought U.S. or international patent protectiondar principal product formula and manufacturing gasses. Accordingly, we may not be abl
prevent others from developing viscoelastic makteaiad products that are similar to or competitivéhwour products. Our ability to comp:
effectively with other companies also depends, ®gaificant extent, on our ability to maintain theoprietary nature of our owned and licer
intellectual property. We own several patents opeats of our products and have patent applicatereding on aspects of our products
manufacturing processes. However, the principadlypcbformula and manufacturing processes for ouiPER ® material and our products are
patented and we must maintain these as trade sécretder to protect this intellectual propertye\8vn U.S. and foreign registered trade name
service marks and have applications for the regfistn of trade names and service marks pending skicady and abroad. We also license ce
intellectual property rights from third parties.

Our trademarks are currently registered in the Wusd registered or pending in foreign jurisdictiohfowever, those rights could
circumvented, or violate the proprietary rightsathers, or we could be prevented from using therhdllenged. A challenge to our use of
trademarks could result in a negative ruling regayaur use of our trademarks, their validity oeithenforceability, or could prove expensive
time consuming in terms of legal costs and timensgefending against such a challenge. Any lodsaofemark protection could result in a decr
in sales or cause us to spend additional amounteasketing, either of which could decrease ouritijy and profitability. In addition, if we inci
significant costs defending our trademarks, thatdalso decrease our liquidity and profitability.addition, we may not have the financial resos
necessary to enforce or defend our trademarkshé&wumbre, our patents may not provide meaningfutegtmn and patents may never issue |
pending applications. It is also possible that igfe@uld bring claims of infringement against uspar principal product formula and manufactu
processes are not patented, and that any licensesfing our intellectual property could be teraigd. If we were unable to maintain the proprie
nature of our intellectual property and our sigrafit current or proposed products, this loss afrapetitive advantage could result in decreased
or increased operating costs, either of which waléldrease our liquidity and profitability.

In addition, the laws of certain foreign countrieay not protect our intellectual property rightsl aonfidential information to the same ex
as the laws of the U.S. or the European Union.dlparties, including competitors, may assert iatdlial property infringement or invalidity clai
against us that could be upheld. Intellectual priypéigation, which could result in substantialst to and diversion of effort by us, may be neas
to protect our trade secrets or proprietary teabmgl or for us to defend against claimed infringamef the rights of others and to determine
scope and validity of otherproprietary rights. We may not prevail in any slitibation, and if we are unsuccessful, we may lm®tble to obtain ai
necessary licenses on reasonable terms or at all.
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An increase in our product return rates or an inadeacy in our warranty reserves could reduce ourdidity and profitability.

Part of our North American marketing and atlsgrg strategy in certain North American chanrfelsuses on providing up to a @@y
money back guarantee under which customers magnrédtair mattress and obtain a refund of the pwsehaice. For the years ended Decembe
2012 and 2011, we had approximately $43.3 milliod $46.7 million in returns for a return rate opagximately 4.5% and 4.6%, respectively, of
net sales in North America. As we expand our salas,return rates may not remain within our histakilevels. A downturn in general econo
conditions may also increase our product returestahn increase in return rates could significamtipair our liquidity and profitability.

We also currently provide our customers a 25-yearanty on mattresses sold in North America an8-gehr warranty on mattresses sol
the International segment, each prorated. Howegewe have only been selling mattresses in sigmifiqguantities since 1992, and have release(
products in recent years, many of which are faadyly in their product life cycles, we may stillesgignificant warranty claims on products still er
warranty. We also provide a 3-year warranty oropifi.

Sealy’s warranty policy provides a 10-year 4poorated warranty service period on all curremtignufactured Sealy Posturepe@licanc
Bassett® bedding products and certain other Sé&alybranded products. In addition, Sealy is beginr@r@Q year, limited warranty (10 year non-
prorated and 10 year additional warranty on certaimponents of its 2012 Optimum™ by Sealy Postutiege and Stearns & Fostér products)
Also, Sealy has a 20-year warranty on the majorpemrants of its TrueForm and MirrorForm viselastic products and its SpringFree latex proi
the last ten years of which are prorated on agdttdine basis. Though discontinued in 2008, Sedfgred a 20year limited warranty on i
RightTouch® product line which covered only certain partshaf product and will be prorated for part of themty years.

Because not all of our products have been in useusycustomers for the full warranty period, we é&w®hly rely on the combination
historical experience and product testing for theellopment of our estimate for warranty claims. ldeer, our actual level of warranty claims cc
prove to be greater than the level of warrantynetawe estimated based on our produgésformance during product testing. If our warrargyerve
are not adequate to cover future warranty claihesr fnadequacy could have a material adverseteffeour liquidity and profitability.

We are vulnerable to interest rate risk with respéz our debt, which could lead to an increase imerest expense.

We are subject to interest rate risk in connectiith the variable rate debt under our debt agreesnémterest rate changes could increas
amount of our interest payments and thus, neggtimgbact our future earnings and cash flows. Warede that our annual interest expense ol
floating rate indebtedness would increase by $4lilomfor each 1.0% increase in interest ratefeR® ITEM 7A under Part Il of this report.

Our leverage may limit our flexibility and increaseur risk of default.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $1@25illion in long-term debt outstanding. In additicas of December 31, 2012, our stockholders’
equity was $22.3 million. During 2012, we repuraths total of $150.0 million in common stock pursuto stock repurchase authorizati
approved by our Board of Directors. We funded thgurchases in part through borrowings under ouwstiegi credit facility, which increased ¢
leverage. In addition, as discussed below undeskfRRelating to the Acquisition of Sealyyé will incur significant additional debt to funde Seal
Acquisition. Our degree of leverage could have irtgod consequences to our investors, such as:

elimiting our ability to obtain additional financingege may need to fund future working capital, cdp#apenditures, produ
development, acquisitions or other corporate reguénts; an

erequiring the dedication of a substantial portidroor cash flow from operations to the payment figipal and interest on our de
which would reduce the availability of cash flowftond working capital, capital expenditures, praddevelopment, acquisitions &
other corporate requiremen

In addition, the instruments governing our debttaonfinancial and other restrictive covenants, alhimit our operating flexibility and cou
prevent us from taking advantage of business oppitigs. Our failure to comply with these covenantsy result in an event of default. If such e
of default is not cured or waived, we may suffeveade effects on our operations, business or fiahnondition, including acceleration of our dt
For further discussion regarding our debt covenantscompliance, refer to ITEM 7 under Part llfggtreport.
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Loss of suppliers and disruptions in the supplyafr raw materials could increase our costs of sat®l reduce our ability to compete effective

We acquire chemicals and proprietary additives feomumber of suppliers with manufacturing locatiansund the world. If we were una
to obtain chemicals and proprietary additives fribrase suppliers, we would have to find replacenseppliers. Any substitute arrangements
chemicals and proprietary additives might not beesms as favorable to us. In addition, we contitaueutsource the procurement of certain g
and services, particularly mattress and pillow eovend adjustable bed bases, from suppliers irigioreountries. If we were no longer able
outsource through these suppliers, we could satieleewhere, perhaps at a higher cost. In additfamne of our major suppliers, or several of
suppliers, declare bankruptcy or otherwise ceaseabipns, our supply chain could be materially whi¢ed. We maintain relatively small supplie:
our raw materials and outsourced goods at our ragtwing facilities, and any disruption in the going shipment of supplies to us could inter
production of our products, which could result idexrease of our sales or could cause an increase icost of sales, either of which could decr
our liquidity and profitability.

Sealy purchases its raw materials and certain caeme from a variety of suppliers, including boxiisg components from Leggett & Pl
Inc., foam materials from Carpenter Co., and varieubassemblies and components from national raerisaand component suppliers. If Se
experiences a loss or disruption in its supplyhelse components, it may have difficulty sourcingssitute components on terms favorable to |
addition, any alternate source may impair prodecfggmance or require Sealy to alter its manufaaguprocess, which could have an adverse ¢
on its, and therefore our, profitability.

Sealy is dependent upon a single supplier for ices&ructural components and assembly of its Emb®dyand Optimum™ by See
Posturpedi® specialty product lines. These products are pusshasder a supply agreement and are manufacturadcordance with propriete
designs jointly owned by Sealy and the supplierSéfaly experiences a loss or disruption in its Bupp these products, it may have diffict
sourcing substitute components on favorable tetmaddition, any alternative source may impair preidperformance or require Sealy to alter
manufacturing process relating to these produdig;iwcould have an adverse effect on its, and thexeur, profitability.

In addition, Sealy is dependent upon a single sepfur certain key polyurethane foam component&tvimake up its various mattress bra
Such components are purchased under a supply agméemd are manufactured in accordance with prigpyieorocess designs exclusive to
supplier. If Sealy experiences a loss or disrupitioits supply of these components, it may havéailty sourcing substitute components on favor
terms. In addition, any alternative source may impeoduct performance or require Sealy to altemitanufacturing process, which could hav
adverse effect on its, and therefore our, profiiigbi

We rely significantly on information technology andny failure, inadequacy, interruption or securitiapse of that technology could harm @
ability to effectively operate our business.

Our ability to effectively manage our businesseate}s significantly on our information systems. Tdi@ure of our current systems, or fut
upgrades, to operate effectively or to integratthwither systems, or a breach in security of thstems could cause reduced efficiency of
operations, and remediation of any such failurebjem or breach could reduce our liquidity and padbility.

Certain of Sealy systems are dated and require significant upgre@iealy depends on accurate and timely informatimh numerical da
from key software applications to aid its dayetay business, financial reporting and decision mkind, in many cases, aged and custom des
software is necessary to operate its bedding pl&®aly has put in place disaster recovery plangdaritical systems. Sealy is, however, depet
on certain key personnel and consultants as thgdeations are no longer supported by the venday: disruptions caused by the failure of tt
systems could adversely impact Sealy’s dagag-business and decision making and could havaterial adverse effect on its performance. We
to integrate Sealy into our information systemsdmutld suffer disruptions during such process.
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We produce our products in three manufacturing féities, and unexpected equipment failures, delagdeliveries or catastrophic loss delays r
lead to production curtailments or shutdowns.

We manufacture our products at our three fadlitie Aarup, Denmark; Duffield, Virginia; and Albugrque, New Mexico. An interrupti
in production capabilities at any of these plargsaaesult of equipment failure could result in gability to produce our products, which wo
reduce our sales and earnings for the affectedgefior example, we produce pillows for our Nortméxican segment only at our Duffield, Virgi
facility. An interruption in pillow production capdities at this plant could result in a disruptiofipillow distribution to the market. In additione
generally deliver our products only after receivthg order from the customer or the retailer ang ttho not hold significant levels of inventories
the event of a disruption in production at any of manufacturing facilities, even if only temporaoy if we experience delays as a result of e
that are beyond our control, delivery times coukdsieverely affected. For example, a third partyi@acould potentially be unable to deliver
products within acceptable time periods due tobadatrike or other disturbance in its businessy ignificant delay in deliveries to our custon
could lead to increased returns or cancellatiorts Gause us to lose future sales. Any increaseeighft charges could increase our costs of ¢
business and affect our profitability. We haveaddtrced new distribution programs to increase oilityalo deliver products on a timely basis, bt
we fail to deliver products on a timely basis, wayntose sales which could decrease our liquidity profitability. Our manufacturing facilities ¢
also subject to the risk of catastrophic loss duenanticipated events such as fires, explosionsobent weather conditions. Despite the fact the
maintain insurance covering the majority of thasks; we may in the future experience material fpiuutdowns or periods of reduced productic
a result of equipment failure, delays in deliveegatastrophic loss.

Sealy manufactures and distributes products teuttomers primarily on a just-in-time basis from fitetwork of 27 compangwned an
operated bedding and component manufacturing tiasillocated around the world. Sealy manufacturestrbedding to order and employs just-in-
time inventory techniques in its manufacturing scto more efficiently serve its dealareeds and to minimize their inventory carrying sostos
bedding orders are scheduled, produced and shipjkeith five business days of receipt from Sealplants located in proximity to a majority of
customers. If manufacturing is disrupted at thesdifies, or if delivery times are adversely affet by events beyond our control, Sealy could
sales, which could negatively impact its profitépil

The loss of the services of any members of our semianagement team could impair our ability to exsge our business strategy and as a res
reduce our sales and profitability.

We depend on the continued services of our senéragement team. The loss of key personnel cowle danaterial adverse effect on
ability to execute our business strategy and orfinancial condition and results of operations. Wgenot maintain keperson insurance for memb
of our senior management team.

Deterioration in labor relations could disrupt oubusiness operations and increase our costs, whioblld decrease our liquidity and profitability

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximatedp0 fulltime employees, with approximately 850 in North Aio&, 300 in Denmark ai
800 in the rest of the world. Certain of our emgley in Denmark are under a government labor urdatract, but those in the U.S. are not. .
significant increase in our labor costs could daseeour liquidity and profitability and any detedtion of employee relations, slowdowns or w
stoppages at any of our locations, whether duenionuactivities, employee turnover or otherwiseyldoresult in a decrease in our net sales «
increase in our costs, either of which could dezgeaaur liquidity and profitability.

As of November 30, 2012, Sealy had 4,426 full-tiemeployees. Approximately 67.0% of Sealygmployees at its 25 North American pl
are represented by various labor unions with sépamllective bargaining agreements. Sealytirrent collective bargaining agreements, whie
typically three years in length, expire at varidnses beginning in 2012 through 2014. Due to tligdanumber of collective bargaining agreem:
Sealy is periodically in negotiations with certaifithe unions representing its employees. Sealy ataypme point be subject to work stoppage
some of its employees and, if such events werec¢arpthere may be a material adverse effect oroperations and profitability. Further, we may
be able to renew Sealy’s various collective baiiggiagreements on a timely basis or on favorallegeor at all.
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We may face exposure to product liability claimshieh could reduce our liquidity and profitability ad reduce consumer confidence in ¢
products.

We face an inherent business risk of exposureradyzt liability claims if the use of any of ourgolucts results in personal injury
property damage. In the event that any of our petsdprove to be defective, we may be required¢alteredesign or even discontinue those prod
We maintain insurance against product liabilityirols, but such coverage may not continue to be aviailon terms acceptable to us or be ade
for liabilities actually incurred. A successful icha brought against us in excess of available imstgacoverage could impair our liquidity ¢
profitability, and any claim or product recall thasults in significant adverse publicity againstaould result in consumers purchasing fewer o
products, which would also impair our liquidity aprbfitability.

Regulatory requirements, including, but not limited, trade, environmental, health and safety reqeiinents, may require costly expenditures
expose us to liability.

Our products and our marketing and edbieg programs are and will continue to be subfeaegulation in the U.S. by various federalte
and local regulatory authorities, including the &®d Trade Commission and the U.S. Food and DrugiAidtration. In addition, other governme
and agencies in other jurisdictions regulate tHe aad distribution of our products. These ruled aegulations may change from time to ti
Compliance with these regulations may have an adveffect on our business. There may be contincasgs of regulatory compliance includ
continuous testing, additional quality control pFeses and appropriate auditing of design and mam®spliance. For example, the U.S. Consi
Product Safety Commission (“CSPChas adopted rules relating to fire retardancy stedw for the mattress industry. We developed pr
modifications that allow us to meet these standaRasjuired product modifications have added costutoproducts. Many foreign jurisdictions &
regulate fire retardancy standards, and changé®ese standards and changes in our products thateecompliance with additional standards wi
raise similar risks. Further, some states and tl& Qongress continue to consider open flame régntafor mattresses and bed sets or int
components that may be different or more stringiesauh the CPSC standard and we may be required ke different products for different state:
change our processes or distribution practiceomatde. It is possible that some stategire stringent standards, if adopted and enforegablulc
make it difficult to manufacture a cost effectiveguct in those jurisdictions and compliance witbgmsed new rules and regulations may inci
our costs, alter our manufacturing processes amaiinthe performance of our products. As we abideértain new open flame regulations,
products and processes may be governed more riglprby certain state and federal environmental laeath and safety standards as well a
provisions of California Proposition 65 (the SafenRing Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986)dat6é CFR Part 1633 (Standard for
Flammability (Open Flame) of Mattress Sets).

Our marketing and advertising practices could alscome the subject of proceedings before regulatotiyorities or the subject of claims
other parties and could require us to alter ortbede practices or adopt new practices that araseffective or are more expensive. In additioe
are subject to federal, state and local laws agdlagons relating to pollution, environmental gction and occupational health and safety. We
not be in complete compliance with all such requieats at all times. We have made and will contittuenake capital and other expenditure
comply with environmental and health and safetyimemnents. If a release of hazardous substancesson or from our properties or any associ
offsite disposal location, or if contamination frgarior activities is discovered at any of our pmijes, we may be held liable and the amount of
liability could be material. As a manufacturer efdoing and related products, we use and dispoaenoimber of substances, such as glue, lubric
oil, solvents and other petroleum products, as a®ltertain foam ingredients, that may subjecbuggulation under numerous foreign, federal
state laws and regulations governing the environinfanong other laws and regulations, we are subjethe United States to the Federal W
Pollution Control Act, the Comprehensive EnvirontaiResponse, Compensation and Liability Act, tlesdirce Conservation and Recovery
the Clean Air Act and related state and local s¢atand regulations.

Our operations could also be impacted by a numbpending legislative and regulatory proposalsddrass greenhouse gas emissions i
U.S. and other countries. Certain countries incigddenmark, where our only plant outside the Unitates is located, have adopted the K
Protocol. Negotiations for a treaty that would sext the Kyoto Protocol are ongoing, and this ahérointernational initiatives under considera
could affect our International operations. Thes®as could increase costs associated with ouratipers, including costs for raw materials, polla
control equipment and transportation. Because uihisertain what laws will be enacted, we cannotliptethe potential impact of such laws on
future consolidated financial condition, resultopgrations, or cash flows.
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We have made and will continue to make capital @hér expenditures to comply with environmental aealth and safety requireme
Upon consummation of the Sealy Acquisition, we wwittur costs related to certain remediation adéigitelated to Seal§’business. Under varic
environmental laws, we may be held liable for tlosts of remediating releases of hazardous substaatcany properties currently or previot
owned or operated by us or at any site to whichhaee sent or may send hazardous substances farsdlspn particular, Sealy is currer
addressing the clearp of environmental contamination at its formerilfgcin South Brunswick, New Jersey and is awgjtadditional informatio
regarding an environmental condition at a formeuctive facility located in Putnam, Connecticut, @axgects to continue to incur significant cos
address the cleamp of these facilities. In the event of an advelseelopment or decision by one or more of the gamngrenvironmental authoritie
additional contamination being discovered with eztpto these or other properties or any third parbringing claims related to these or c
properties, these or other matters could have amaheffect on our profitability after the Sealgduisition.

Changes in tax laws and regulations or other facsorould cause our and Sealyincome tax rate to increase, potentially reducingt income an
adversely affecting cash flows.

We and Sealy are subject to taxation in varioussdlictions around the world. In preparing finand#tements, we and Sealy calculate
respective effective income tax rate based on nutex laws and regulations and the estimated taxabome within each of these jurisdictions.
and Sealys effective income tax rate, however, may be higher to numerous factors, including changes in@ating, tax laws or regulations. |
example, during the three months ended Septemhe23@, we changed the classification on our uriligied earnings from nod-S. operatior
which resulted in an increase in our effective fate to 54.8%. A significantly higher effective ame tax rate than currently anticipated aftel
Sealy Acquisition could have an adverse effectambaisiness, results of operations and liquidity.

Officials in some of the jurisdictions in which wap business, including the United States, have queg or announced that they
considering tax increases and other revenue raligimg and regulations. Any resulting changes inlasws or regulations could increase our effex
tax rate or impose new restrictions, costs or fitibhs on our and Sealy’current practices and reduce our net income dwersely affect our ca
flows.

The recently enacted U.S. federal legislation oralthcare reform and proposed amendments theretolddmpact the healthcare benefits requir
to be provided by us and cause compensation casiscrease, potentially reducing our net income aadversely affecting cash flows.

The U.S. federal healthcare legislation enacte2Dit0 and proposed amendments thereto containgiwasi which could materially imps
our future healthcare costs. While the legislasomtimate impact is not yet known, it is possitilat these changes could significantly increas:
compensation costs which would reduce our net irrcand adversely affect cash flows.

Challenges to our pricing policies could adversalffect our operations

Our retail pricing policies are subject to anstroegulations in the U.S. and abroad. If antitregulators in any jurisdiction in which we
business initiate investigations into or challerm& pricing or advertising policies, our efforts tespond could force us to divert manager
resources and we could incur significant unantieigacosts. If such an investigation were to reisull charge that our practices or policies we
violation of applicable antitrust or other lawsregulations, we could be subject to significantitididal costs of defending such charges in a w
of venues and, ultimately, if there were a findthgt we were in violation of antitrust or other &wer regulations, there could be an impositic
fines, and damages for persons injured, as wétljasctive or other relief. Any requirement that way fines or damages could decrease our ligt
and profitability, and any investigation or claitmat requires significant management attention ases us to change our business practices
disrupt our operations or increase our costs, rasolting in a decrease in our liquidity and pudfitity. An antitrust class action suit againstcasiic
result in potential liabilities, substantial coatsl the diversion of our management’s attentionraadurces, regardless of the outcome.
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Our stock price is likely to continue to be volajlyour investment could decline in value, and weayrincur significant costs from class acti
litigation.

The trading price of our common stock is likely dontinue to be volatile and subject to wide prikectiiations. The trading price of «
common stock may fluctuate significantly in respois various factors, including but not limited to:

actual or anticipated variations in our quartege@ting results, including those resulting frorassmal variations in our business;

egeneral economic conditions, such as unemploynodatnges in shc-term and lon-term interest rates and fluctuations in both
and equity capital market

®introductions or announcements of technologicabi¥mtions or new products by us or our competit

edisputes or other developments relating to proamnetights, including patents, litigation mattessd our ability to patent, or otherw
protect, our products and technologi

°changes in estimates by securities analysts ofimamcial performance;

®stock repurchase progran

.bankruptcies of any of our major customers;

® conditions or trends in the premium bedding indysir the mattress industry generally;
® additions or departures of key personi

® announcements by us or our competitors of sigmifie@quisitions, strategic partnerships, joint uees or capital commitment

eannouncements by our competitors of their quarteplgrating results or announcements by our congpgtif their views on trends
the bedding industry

.regulatory developments in the U.S. and abroad;

[} . .
economic and political factor

epublic announcements or filings with the SEC intdigg that significant stockholders, directors oficdrs are buying or selling sha
of our common stock; ar

®the declaration or suspension of a cash dividend.

In addition, the stock market in general has egmegd significant price and volume fluctuationst thave often been unrelated
disproportionate to operating performance. Thesadmarket factors may seriously harm the markeepf our common stock, regardless of
operating performance.

In the past, following periods of volatility in thearket price of a comparg/’securities, securities class action litigatiors loften bee
instituted. A securities class action suit agairsstould result in potential liabilities, substahtiosts, and the diversion of our managenseaitentio
and resources, regardless of the outcome. See I EMler Part | of this report.

Future sales of our common stock may depress oocktprice.

The market price of our common stock could declisa result of sales of substantial amounts ofoommon stock in the public market, or
perception that these sales could occur. In additltese factors could make it more difficult farto raise funds through future offerings of com
stock. As of February 1, 2013, there were 59.8ionilshares of our common stock outstanding. Albof shares of our common stock are fr
transferable without restriction or further regagiton under the Securities Act of 1933, exceptdertain shares of our common stock which \
purchased by our executive officers, directorsy@pal stockholders, and some related parties.

In addition, up to approximately 18.5 million shardsoar common stock are reserved for grants under2602 Stock Option Plan, ¢
Amended and Restated 2003 Equity Incentive Plargnasnded and our 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Réanf December 31, 2012, eqt
awards covering approximately 4.3 million sharescommon stock equity awards are outstanding andnliibn shares of common stock
available for future grants. The Company has filegistration statements with the SEC with respedhése shares and stockholders can sell
shares in the public market upon issuance, sutgj@esstrictions under the securities laws and apfieable lock-up agreements.

We have stockholders who presently beneficially emore than 5.0% of our outstanding capital stoeteSor other dispositions of our sh:
by these major stockholders may depress our stoch. p
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Provisions of Delaware law and our charter documsrtould delay or prevent an acquisition of us, eviéthe acquisition would be beneficial
you.

Provisions of Delaware law and our certificaterafdrporation and by-laws could hamper a third paracquisition of us, or discourage a t
party from attempting to acquire control of us. Yfoay not have the opportunity to participate irstheransactions. These provisions could also
the price that investors might be willing to paythe future for shares of our common stock.

These provisions include:

eour ability to issue preferred stock with rightsiee to those of the common stock without any farttiote or action by the holders
our common stock

®the requirements that our stockholders provide ackvaotice when nominating our directors; .

ethe inability of our stockholders to convene a ktmtders’meeting without the chairperson of the board, tfesigent, or a majority
the board of directors first calling the meeti

Risks Relating to the Acquisition of Sealy
We may not be able to successfully integrate anthbime Sealy with our business, which could cause business to suffer.

Our acquisition of Sealy is significant, and we nmay be able to successfully integrate and comtiireoperations, personnel and techno
of Sealy with our operations. Because of the simk @mplexity of Sealg business, if integration is not managed succkgdfy our managemer
we may experience interruptions in our businesiities, a deterioration in our employee and custonelationships, increased costs of integri
and harm to our reputation, all of which could havmaterial adverse effect on our business, fimhmandition and results of operations. We
also experience difficulties in combining corporatdtures, maintaining employee morale and retgitkieay employees. The integration with S
may also impose substantial demands on our managefiteere is no assurance that improved opera#sglts will be achieved as a result of
Sealy Acquisition or that the businesses of Seadithe Company will be successfully integrated iimeely manner.

We may not realize the growth opportunities thataanticipated from our acquisition of Sealy.

The benefits we expect to achieve as a result ®Sbaly Acquisition will depend, in part, on ouiligb to realize anticipated grow
opportunities. Our success in realizing these dnavpportunities, and the timing of this realizatidepends on the successful integration of Sgaly’
business and operations with our business and tipesaEven if we are able to integrate our busin@gh Sealys business successfully, 1
integration may not result in the realization oé tfull benefits of the growth opportunities we amtly expect from this integration within 1
anticipated time frame or at all. While we antid¢géhat certain expenses will be incurred, suclersgps are difficult to estimate accurately, and
exceed current estimates. In addition, certainilretsstomers of our combined companies could deteerthat the combined companies have
many slots in that retailer’s stores, and cut backhe number of slots available for our product®tberwise promote competitorgtoducts mor
aggressively, which could have a material adveféecteon the combined companiesales and offset the synergies expected from tlady
Acquisition. Accordingly, the benefits from the pased acquisition may be offset by costs incurredetays in integrating the companies, wl
could cause our revenue assumptions to be inaecurat

We may not be able to achieve the full amount o§tsynergies that are anticipated, or achieve tlostcsynergies on the schedule anticipated, f
the Sealy Acquisition.

Although we currently expect to achieve in exaefs$40.0 million of cost synergies by the third ye#ter the Sealy Acquisition, inclusi
of the projected cost synergies in this Report omF10K should not be viewed as a representation thanviact will achieve these cost synert
by the third year or at all.
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By 2015, we are currently targeting approxiehat45.0% of synergies from consolidation of oud é@ealys product warehouses ¢
distribution routes resulting in improved routei@éincy and distribution integration, approximat&.0% of synergies from increased purcha
supply chain and manufacturing efficiencies, ppadly focused on duplicative efforts, such as loa@st sourcing and combined manufacturing ¢
as we seek to leverage our combined capabilities camsolidation of purchasing across products, amgroximately 25.0% of synergies fr
consolidation of various corporate expenses, instuélimination of duplicative services and streamy of corporate administration.

In order to identify areas for potential sygies, we have undertaken the following efforts:

eTempu-Pedic and Sealy senior management and functiorallaaders have reviewed and continue to reviewtifumal areas acro
both our operations, on a standalone basis andcombined basis

eTempurPedic and Sealy senior management team membeeshéogvith outside consultants, conducted an aisafssessing areas
duplication and projected growth, determining pctge synergy levels from the perspective of botlisenmanagement and functio
area leaders; ar

eTempurPedic and Sealy senior management teams condutidybes to assess the cost savings opportunitegedeto distributior
supply chain, sourcing, manufacturing efficiencésl corporate expenses. For example, in the afedistdbution, each compa
assessed their respective costs to deliver masemsd foundations on a per piece basis througheirt U.S. operations and |
opportunity to leverage transportation capacity emgrove service levels resulting in an anticipadetlstantial savings on a per pi
delivery basis

Through this process, we have identified targetest synergies in various operating functions iditlg manufacturing and distribution.
continue to evaluate our estimates of cost syneitgide realized from the Sealy Acquisition andgheethem, so that our actual cost synergies «
differ materially from our current estimates. Adtgast synergies, the expenses required to rettieecost synergies and the sources of the
synergies could differ materially from these estisaand we cannot assure you that we will achieedull amount of cost synergies on the sche
anticipated or at all or that these cost synerggmms will not have other adverse effects on asirtess. In light of these significant uncertam
you should not place undue reliance on our estidhatet synergie:

The assumption of unknown liabilities in the Seal\cquisition may harm our financial condition and ®ults of operations.

As a result of the proposed acquisition, we wiljaice Sealy subject to all of its liabilities, inding contingent liabilities. If there are unknc
Sealy obligations, our business could be materailg adversely affected. We may learn additiorfalrmation about Sealyg’business that advers
affects us, such as unknown liabilities, or issiras could affect our ability to comply with apmigle laws. As a result, we cannot assure you kg
proposed acquisition of Sealy will be successfulndl not, in fact, harm our business. Among othieings, if Sealy$ liabilities are greater th
expected, or if there are material obligations bfolr we do not become aware until after the timeahpletion of the Merger, our business coul
materially and adversely affected. If we becomgoaesible for substantial uninsured liabilities, suiabilities may have a material adverse effec
our financial condition and results of operations.

The market price of the common stock of the comldreompany may be affected by factors different fréimose affecting the market price for o
common stock.

Our business differs from that of Sealy, and theifess of the combined company will differ fromttb&ours, and accordingly, the result:
operations for the combined company may be affeayefdctors different from those currently affegtithe results of operations of Sealy and me
affected by factors different from those currerdffecting our results of operations. As a resuilg market price for our stock may be impa
differently in the future by those factors tharsiturrently.

Our historical financial information may not be regsentative of our results as a combined company.

The historical financial information of the Compaayd Sealy may not be indicative of what the resoftoperations and financial condit
will be in the future. The challenge of integratipgeviously independent businesses makes evaluatingusiness and our future financial prosg
difficult. Our potential for future business suceemd operating profitability must be consideredight of the risks, uncertainties, expenses
difficulties typically encountered by recently coimed companies.
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We will have substantial amount of indebtedness,jethmay adversely affect our cash flow and our atyilto operate our business.

As described in Part 1, ITEM 8, Note 5 of the Note Consolidated Financial Statements, upon dosfrthe Sealy Acquisition, we will ha
significant amount of debt. We currently expectt thpon completion of the Sealy Acquisition we wilive approximately $1,900.0 million of tc
indebtedness outstanding. Our degree of leveragid bave important consequences, such as:

.increasing our vulnerability to adverse economidustry or competitive developments;

erequiring a substantial portion of our cash flownfr operations to be dedicated to the payment ofcipal and interest on c
indebtedness, therefore reducing our ability to ase cash flow to fund our operations, capital exjpigires and other busin
opportunities

.making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obéitions with respect to our indebtedne¢

'restricting us from making strategic acquisitionsnwestments or causing us to make-strategic divestiture:

elimiting our ability to obtain additional financindor working capital, capital expenditures, produt#velopment, debt serv
requirements, acquisitions and general corporatehar purpose:

elimiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business or the industry hiichvwe operate, placing us ¢
competitive disadvantage compared to our compstitdro are less highly leveraged and who therefoeg;, be able to take advant
of opportunities that our leverage prevents us fexploiting; anc

°exposing us to variability in interest rates, asibstantial portion of our indebtedness are ankbwilvariable rate.

In addition, the instruments governing our debttaonfinancial and other restrictive covenants, alhimit our operating flexibility and cou
prevent us from taking advantage of business oppibiets and reduce our flexibility to respond t@obing business and economic conditions, w
could put us at a competitive disadvantage. Oluriaito comply with these covenants may resulniregent of default. If such event of default is
cured or waived, we may suffer adverse effectswroperations, business or financial conditionluding acceleration of our debt.

Failure to complete the Merger could subject us s@nificant damages, negatively impact our commaock price, businesses and financ
results.

If the acquisition is not completed, our ongoingibesses may be adversely affected, and we wglbgect to several risks and conseque!
including the following:

ethe Merger Agreement contains certain terminatights for both the Company and Sealy and furthewigies that, upon terminati
of the Merger Agreement under certain circumstangealy may be obligated to pay the Company a textion fee of $25.0 milliol
In addition, if antitrust enforcement agencies @itbommence or inform the parties that they inttendommence an action to enj
the Merger, the Company may be required to payyS@ah termination fee of $90.0 million if both p&s elect to terminate t
Merger Agreement or (ii) a termination fee of $9Mlion (or $40.0 million if the Company elects terminate the Merger Agreem
but Sealy does not so elect to terminate) if thegdedoes not close due to a failure to receivérast approval in the nine mon
following the execution of the Merger Agreemenbjsat to certain extension

ewe will be required to pay interest obligations entdhe Senior Notes and ticking fees with respedhe 2012 Credit Agreeme
whether or not the Sealy Acquisition is comple!

ewe will be required to pay certain costs relatingthe Merger, whether or not the Merger is complegich as underwriter, lec
accounting, financial advisor and printing fe

eunder the Merger Agreement, Sealy is subject ttairerestrictions on the conduct of its businessrgo completing the Merger whi
may adversely affect its ability to execute cert@iits business strategies; ¢

ematters relating to the acquisition may requiressaitial commitments of time and resources by oamagement team, which co
otherwise have been devoted to other opporturttigsmay have been beneficial to us as an indepécdenpany
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In addition, if the acquisition is not comdf we may experience negative reactions fromittaa¢ial markets and from each company’s
respective customers and employees. We also cewdliject to litigation related to any failure tomplete the Merger or to enforcement proceec
commenced against us to perform their respectiligaitons under the Merger Agreement. If the Merigatot completed, we cannot assure
stockholders that the risks described above willmaterialize and will not materially affect ourdioess, financial results and stock price.

We will incur significant transaction and acquisibn-related integration costs in connection with tigealy Acquisition.

We expect to incur a number of costs associateld @ompleting the acquisition and integrating theragions of the two companies. ~
substantial majority of these costs will be rmrecurring expenses resulting from the Sealy Actjoisiand will consist of transaction costs relate
the acquisition, facilities and systems consol@atcosts and employmergtated costs. Additional unanticipated costs mayirizurred in th
integration of our business and Sealy's. Althoughexpect that the elimination of duplicative costs,well as the realization of other efficien
related to the integration of the businesses, nf@gtincremental transaction and mergelated costs over time, this net benefit may moathieve
in the near term, or at all.

The acquisition of Sealy may not be accretive andyntause dilution to the combined company's earrsnger share, which may negatively aff
the market price of the combined company's comméwck.

We currently anticipate that the acquisition wilt lccretive to our earnings per share in 2013. €kjfectation is based on prelimin
estimates which may materially change. The combimdpany could also encounter additional transacéiod integratiomelated costs or oth
factors such as the failure to realize all of thendfits anticipated in the acquisition. All of teefactors could cause dilution to the comb
company's earnings per share or decrease or dedagxpected accretive effect of the acquisition eengse a decrease in the price of the com
company's common stock.

Sealy's pension plans are currently underfunded and Sealil be required to make cash payments to the gareducing the cash available f
Sealy's, and therefore our, business.

Sealy has noncontributory, defined benefit pengilams covering current and former hourly employaefour of Sealys active plants ai
eight previously closed facilities as well as theployees of a facility of its Canadian operatidBsaly records a liability associated with theseg
equal to the excess of the benefit obligation dkerfair value of plan assets. The benefit liapitecorded at November 27, 2011 was $11.4 mi
and Sealy expects to make estimated minimum fundamgributions totaling approximately $1.6 milliam2012. If the performance of the asse
these pension plans does not meet Sealy’s expmwtatr if other actuarial assumptions are modiftegialys future cash payments, and there
ours, to the plans could be higher than expectéé. domestic pension plan is subject to the Empldyetrement Income Security Act of 1¢
(“ERISA”). Under ERISA, the Pension Benefit Guasa@orporation (“PBGC”)has the authority to terminate an underfunded pangian unde
limited circumstances. In the event Sealgension plan is terminated for any reason whikeunderfunded, we will incur a liability to tiRBGC tha
may be equal to the entire amount of the underfaundi

In addition, hourly employees working at certainS#alys domestic manufacturing facilities are coveredihion sponsored retirement ¢
health and welfare plans. These plans cover bditileaemployees and retirees. If a participating klygr ceases its contributions to the plan
unfunded obligations of the plan allocable to thighdrawing employer may be borne by the remainiagtipipant employers. Further, if Se
withdraws from a multemployer pension plan in which it participates, Ige@aay be required to pay those plans an amourdgdoas its allocab
share of the underfunded status of the plan. Suehte may significantly impair our profitability driquidity.

Sealy is subject to tax assessments in Brazil amdimadequacy in Sea’s reserves for these assessments could reduce iguidity anc
profitability.

During fiscal 2010, Sealy was assessed $8.0 mibiipthe Brazilian government for the failure to yice certain income tax filings. Due to
accumulated net operating losses in this jurisalictSealys exposure is expected to be limited. At August2Zd,2, Sealy has recorded a resen
$1.0 million associated with this assessment reélatethe expected requirement to pay certain sabesfees and penalties. If, however, Sealy’
reserve is not adequate to cover the tax assesssoehtinadequacy could have a material adversetedh our liquidity and profitability.
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Several lawsuits have been filed against Sealy, I$ealirectors, TempL-Pedic and certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of Teuan-Pedic, and a
adverse ruling in such lawsuits may prevent the aisition from becoming effective or from becomindfective within the expected timeframe
subject Sealy, Seé's directors, Tempur-Pedic and certain wholly-ownsdbsidiaries of Tempur-Pedic to post-closing likties.

The Company is aware of six purported class addwmsuits relating to the Merger with Sealy, onéNiorth Carolina state court and five in
Delaware Court of Chancery, filed by purported klmdders of Sealy against Sealy, Seslgirectors, the Company and Silver Lightning Me
Company, a subsidiary of the Company (the “Mergas”y Justewicz v. Sealy Corp., et al. (“North Glina Action™) was filed on October 3, 20:
in the General Court of Justice, Superior Courti§ddn in North Carolina (“North Carolina Court”YOn November 13, 2012, the Delaware Cou
Chancery consolidated all five Delaware action® iat single action, which is now styled as In re \sé2orporation Shareholder Litigati
(“Delaware Action™). Plaintiff in the North Carolina Action and plairfsfin the Delaware Action allege, among other thjrthat the defendants hi
breached their fiduciary duties to Sealy’s stoclkeod and that Sealy, the Company and Merger Swdd @dd abetted the Sealy directabégec
breach of fiduciary duties. The complaints alsoinclahat the consideration to be paid in the MergerSealy stockholders (theMergel
Consideration”) is inadequate, that the Merger A&grent contains unfair deal protection provisiohst Sealys directors are subject to conflicts
interests, and that the preliminary informationtestzent filed by Sealy with the Securities and ExgfsaCommission on October 30, 2012 o
material information concerning the negotiationgass leading to the proposed transaction and thati@n of Sealy.

On October 12, 2012, plaintiff in the North CaraliAction brought a Motion for Expedited Discovend&or a Hearing and Briefing Sched
on Plaintiff's Motion for a Preliminary Injunction. On Octobet,2012, defendants in the North Carolina Actioought a Motion to Stay the No
Carolina Action in favor of the Delaware Action. Qilmvember 7, 2012, the North Carolina Action pléir@mended his complaint to add allegati
claiming that the preliminary information statemélgd by Sealy on October 30, 2012 did not prowsdéicient information. Following briefing a
a hearing on November 8, 2012, the North CarolinarCstayed the North Carolina Action. On Novemb@r 2012, plaintiffs in the Delaware Acti
filed a consolidated amended complaint, a motioreipedited proceedings, and a motion for a prekmji injunction.

The Company believes that the allegations in tHesesuits are entirely without merit. On January 20213, solely to avoid the burd
expense and uncertainties inherent in litigatiod without admitting any liability or wrongdoingje parties to the Delaware Action entered ir
memorandum of understanding setting forth an ageeé#in-principle providing for a settlement of tbelaware Action (the “Proposed Settlemégnt”
In connection with the Proposed Settlement, Segitged to include certain supplemental disclosurdbé information statement to be sent to £
stockholders. The Proposed Settlement providethéorelease of all claims by Sealy stockholdercenoring the Merger Agreement, the Merger,
the disclosures made in connection with the Merigetuding all claims that were asserted or cowddenbeen asserted in the Delaware Action ar
North Carolina Action. The Proposed Settlement dugtgprovide for the payment of any additional mang consideration to Sealy stockholders
the Proposed Settlement does not affect the rightny Sealy stockholder to seek appraisal purstatection 262 of the DGCL. The Propc
Settlement is subject to definitive documentatiod approval by the Delaware Court of Chancery.

One of the conditions of closing of the acquisitierthat there is not any temporary restrainingegrgreliminary or permanent injunction
other order issued by a court of competent jurissticor other legal restraint or prohibition pretiag the completion of the Merger. As sL
notwithstanding the Proposed Settlement, if thenpfés are successful in obtaining an injunctiorolpibiting the defendants from completing
Merger on agreed upon terms, then such injunctiay prevent the Merger from becoming effective, rmnf becoming effective in the expec
timeframe.

In addition, even if plaintiffs are not successfubbtaining an injunction prohibiting the comptati of the Merger, in the event the Propc
Settlement is not finalized and approved by thealake Court of Chancery, one or more of these tiffsinrmay continue to pursue their laws
seeking damages, interest costs, attoméges and expert fees from one or more of thendefets after completion of the Merger. In additione o
more holders of Sealy common stock may seek toupueppraisal rights available under Delaware ldwhése stockholders properly per
appraisal rights, they could seek a pdsting determination that the $2.20 per shareideration payable in the Merger does not reprefsnvalue
for their shares, and if these plaintiffs are sastd in any appraisal proceeding, we could beireduo pay those plaintiffs more for their stotlat
the $2.20 per share payable in the Merger.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our products are sold in approximately 80 countdad we have whollpwned subsidiaries in approximately 23 countriesjuding ou
wholly-owned subsidiaries that own our manufacturing iféesl in Denmark and the U.S. The following tabé¢ssforth certain information regard

our principal facilities at December 31, 2012.

Approximate Square

Name/Location Footage Title Type of Facility
Tempur Production USA, LLC

Albuquerque, New Mexic 800,00( Leased (until 203& Manufacturing
Tempur Production USA, LL!

Duffield, Virginia 540,00( Owned Manufacturing
Dar-Foam Ap<S

Aarup, Denmar! 517,00( Owned Manufacturing
Tempur-Pedic Management, LLC

Lexington, Kentuck 128,00( Owned Office
Tempur Deutschland GmbH

Steinhagen, Germal 121,00( Owned Office and Warehous

In addition to the properties listed above, we hévefacilities in 20 countries under leases witle ¢o ten year terms. The manufactu
facility in Albuquerque, New Mexico is leased astp# the related industrial revenue bond financiée have an option to repurchase the pro
for one dollar upon termination of the lease.

We believe that our existing properties are suitdbl the conduct of our business, are adequateuopresent needs and will be adequa
meet our future needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Norfolk County Retirement System, Individually amdbehalf of all others similarly situated, Plaifitv. TempurPedic International Inc
Mark A. Sarvary and Dale E. Williams; filed Jung 2012

Arthur Benning, Jr., Individually and on behalf @f others similarly situated, Plaintiff v. TempBRedic International Inc., Mark A. Sarve
and Dale E. Williams; filed June 25, 2012

On June 20 and 25, 2012, the above suits werediaihst the Company and two named executive officethe United States District Ca
for the Eastern District of Kentucky, purportedly behalf of a proposed class of shareholders whohapsed the Comparg/stock between Janu.
25, 2012 and June 5, 2012. The complaints assgm<lunder Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Seearixchange Act of 1934, alleging, among ¢
things, false and misleading statements and comegdlof material information concerning the Compargompetitive position, projected net se
earnings per diluted share and related financidbpaance for the Comparg/’2012 fiscal year 2012. The plaintiffs seek darsageerest, cost
attorneys fees, expert fees and unspecified equitablefitipm relief. The Company strongly believes tha shareholder suits lack merit and inte
to defend against the claims vigorously. The outeahthese matters is uncertain, however, and @ihave do not currently expect to incur a
with respect to these matters, we cannot currgmidict the manner and timing of the resolutiorihef suits, an estimate of a range of losses ¢
minimum loss that could result in the event of dwease verdict in these suits, or whether our apple insurance policies will provide suffici
coverage for these claims. Accordingly, the Compaag give no assurance that these matters willhage a material adverse effect on
Company's financial position or results of openmadio

Benjamin B. Clarke, Individually and On Behalf df @thers Similarly Situated v. Lawrence J. Rog&ighard W. Roedel, John B. Replo
Paul J. Norris, Dean B. Nelson, Gary E. Morin, Jam&. Johnson, Deborah G. Ellinger, Simon E. Bro®&ealy Corporation, Temp-Pedic
International Inc. and Silver Lightning Merger Coany, filed October 2, 201
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Robert A. Justewicz, Individually and On Behalfadif Others Similarly Situated v. Sealy Corporatid@wrence J. Rogers, Paul J. Nor
James W. Johnson, Simon E. Brown, Gary E. MorimnC®. Nelson, Richard W. Roedel, Deborah G. Ellindehn B. Replogle, Silver Lightni
Merger Company and Temf-Pedic International Inc., filed Oct. 3, 2012

Deno Singh, On Behalf of Himself and All Othersil@iy Situated v. Lawrence J. Rogers, Richard Wedrel, John B. Replogle, Pau
Norris, Dean B. Nelson, Gary E. Morin, James W.n&bn, Deborah G. Ellinger, Simon E. Brown, SeabypOration, Tempt-Pedic Internationz
Inc. and Silver Lightning Merger Company, filed Qlmr 15, 201:

Jay M. Plourde, On Behalf of Himself and All Oth&isnilarly Situated v. Sealy Corporation, LawrenteRogers, Paul Norris, James
Johnston, Simon E. Brown, Gary E. Morin, Dean Bsblg Richard Roedel, Deborah G. Ellinger, JohrRBplogel, Temp-Pedic International Inc
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P. and Silver Ligimg Merger Company, filed October 15, 2(

Keith Gamble, Individually and On Behalf of All @tk Similarly Situated v. Lawrence J. Rogers, Ridh&. Roedel, John B. Replogle, Pal
Norris, Dean B. Nelson, Gary E. Morin, James W.n&bn, Deborah G. Ellinger, Simon E. Brown, SeabypOration, Tempt-Pedic Internationz
Inc. and Silver Lightning Merger Company, filed Glmtr 16, 201:

Curtis Nall, On Behalf of Himself and All Othersrfiarly Situated Shareholders of Sealy CorporationLawrence C. Rogers, James
Johnston, Simon E. Brown, Gary E. Morin, Dean Blsbie Richard Roedel, Deborah G. Ellinger, John Replogle, Paul J. Norris, Sei
Corporation, TempuPRedic, International Inc., KKR Millennium GP LLCKR & Co. L.P., and Silver Lightning Merger Compafilgd October 11
2012

The Company is aware of six purported class addasuits relating to the Merger with Sealy, onéNiorth Carolina state court and five
the Delaware Court of Chancery, filed by purpoeatkholders of Sealy against Sealy, Seatlitectors, the Company and Silver Lightning Me
Company, a subsidiary of the Company (the “Mergas”y Justewicz v. Sealy Corp., et al. (“North Glina Action™) was filed on October 3, 20:
in the General Court of Justice, Superior Courti§ddn in North Carolina (“North Carolina Court”YOn November 13, 2012, the Delaware Cou
Chancery consolidated all five Delaware action® iat single action, which is now styled as In re \s&2orporation Shareholder Litigati
(“Delaware Action™). Plaintiff in the North Carolina Action and plairfsfin the Delaware Action allege, among other thjrthat the defendants hi
breached their fiduciary duties to Sealy’s stoclkeod and that Sealy, the Company and Merger Swdd @dd abetted the Sealy directabégec
breach of fiduciary duties. The complaints alsoinclahat the consideration to be paid in the MergerSealy stockholders (theMergel
Consideration”) is inadequate, that the Merger Agrent contains unfair deal protection provisiohst Sealys directors are subject to conflicts
interests, and that the preliminary informationtestzent filed by Sealy with the Securities and ExggCommission on October 30, 2012 o
material information concerning the negotiationgass leading to the proposed transaction and thati@n of Sealy.

On October 12, 2012, plaintiff in the North CanaliAction brought a Motion for Expedited Discovenyd for a Hearing and Briefi
Schedule on Plaintif§ Motion for a Preliminary Injunction. On Octobet, 2012, defendants in the North Carolina Actioought a Motion to Ste
the North Carolina Action in favor of the Delawaketion. On November 7, 2012, the North Carolinaiéetplaintiff amended his complaint to ¢
allegations claiming that the preliminary infornuatistatement filed by Sealy on October 30, 2012ndidprovide sufficient information. Followi
briefing and a hearing on November 8, 2012, thetiN@arolina Court stayed the North Carolina Acti@n November 19, 2012, plaintiffs in
Delaware Action filed a consolidated amended coimpla motion for expedited proceedings, and a emofior a preliminary injunction.

The Company believes that the allegations in thessuits are entirely without merit. On Janua2y 2013, solely to avoid the burd
expense and uncertainties inherent in litigatiord without admitting any liability or wrongdoingie parties to the Delaware Action entered ir
memorandum of understanding setting forth an ageeéin-principle providing for a settlement of tbelaware Action (the “Proposed Settlemégnt”
In connection with the Proposed Settlement, Segitged to include certain supplemental disclosurdbeé information statement to be sent to £
stockholders. The Proposed Settlement providethéorelease of all claims by Sealy stockholderseoring the Merger Agreement, the Merger,
the disclosures made in connection with the Merigetuding all claims that were asserted or cowddenbeen asserted in the Delaware Action ar
North Carolina Action. The Proposed Settlement duggprovide for the payment of any additional mang consideration to Sealy stockholders
the Proposed Settlement does not affect the rightny Sealy stockholder to seek appraisal purstatection 262 of the DGCL. The Propc
Settlement is subject to definitive documentatiod approval by the Delaware Court of Chancery.
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The outcome of the above litigation is uncerthaiowever, and although the Company does not cuyrempect to incur a loss with resg
to these matters, the Company cannot currentlyigirdte manner and timing of the resolution of Merger Lawsuits, an estimate of a range or Ic
or any minimum loss that could result in the eveihtan adverse verdict in these suits, or whetherGompany’s or Sealy’applicable insuran
policies will provide sufficient coverage for thedaims. Accordingly, the Company can give no a@sce that these matters will not have a ma
adverse effect on the Company’s financial positoresults of operations.

The Company is involved in various other legal pextings incidental to the operations of its busin@ee Company believes that the outc
of all such pending legal proceedings in the agapewill not have a material adverse effect omitsiness, financial condition, liquidity, or opéng
results.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

None.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market for Registrant's Common Equity
Our sole class of common equity is our $0.01 pdwmesv@ommon stock, which trades on the New York BtBrchange (NYSE) under t
symbol “TPX.” Trading of our common stock commenced on the NYSBecember 18, 2003. Prior to that time, there m@apublic trading mark

for our common stock.

The following table sets forth the high and lowesgprices per common share, at closing, of oumsomstock as reported by the NYSE
cash dividends paid per common share for the figedabds indicated.

Cash Dividend

Price Range Per Common
High Low Share

Fiscal 2011

First Quarte $ 50.7¢ % 39.4( % —
Second Quarte 67.97 50.9¢ —
Third Quartel 72.2¢ 51.3:2 —
Fourth Quarte 69.82 48.6¢ —
Fiscal 2012

First Quarte $ 84.4: $ 55.1¢ $ —
Second Quarte 87.2¢ 21.0z —
Third Quartel 34.9¢ 22.3¢ —
Fourth Quarte 34.11 24.5¢ —

As of February 1, 2013, we had approximatély 4tockholders of record of our common stock.
Dividends

The Company did not pay any dividends in 260.2011. The decision to pay a dividend in futueeiqds is reviewed by our Board of
Directors on a periodic basis.
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Equity Compensation Plan Informatir

The following table sets forth equity compdimwaplan information as of December 31, 2012:

Number of
securities
remaining

Number of available for
securities to be Weighted- future issuance
issued upon average under equity
exercise of exercise price compensation
outstanding of outstanding  plans (excluding
options, options, securities
warrants and warrants and reflected in
Plan category rights rights column (a))
(@) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrst
2002 Stock Option Pla® 8 $ 2.8¢€ —
2003 Equity Incentive Pla@ 4,335,39; 17.0C 2,004,81.
2003 Employee Stock Purchase F® — — 141,59¢
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotgters — — —
Total 4,33540. $ 17.0( 2,146,41;

(1) In December 2003, our Board of Directors adopteasalution that prohibited further grants under2B82 Stock Option Plan.

@  The number of securities to be issued upon exedfisritstanding stock options, warrants and rigsgsied under the 2003 Equity Incentive |
includes 195,275 of restricted stock units and mefestock units. Additionally, this number incled#,231,417 performance restricted stock
which reflects a maximum payout of the awards grdniThese restricted, deferred and performanceiatest stock units are excluded from
weighted average exercise price calculation ak

()  Shares under the 2003 Employee Stock Purchaseafbavs eligible employees to purchase our commonksannually over the course of two semi-
annual offering periods at a price of no less tBar9% of the price per share of our common stotks Plan is an open market purchase plar
does not have a dilutive effect. Effective Februhr010, we suspended offerings under the ESRHimitely.

See ITEM 8, Note 9 to the Consolidated FinalnStatements for information regarding the matéeatures of each of the above plans.

Performance Grapl

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed to be “soliciting matetiat to be “filed” with the Securitie
and Exchange Commission, nor shall such informabenincorporated by reference into any future §ilinnder the Securities Act of 1933
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amendedpteto the extent that the Company specificattptiporates it by reference into such filing.

The following table compares cumulative sharehol@¢urns for the Company over the last five yearshe Standard & Poa’(S&P) 501
Stock Composite Index, and a peer group. The S&P GOmposite Index is a capitalization weighted indé 500 stocks intended to b
representative sample of leading companies in hggididustries within the U.S. economy, and are ehder market size, liquidity and industry gr
representation. We believe the peer group clogdlgats our business and, as a result, providesimgfal comparison of stock performance.
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The peer issuers included in this graph aréost below:

Callaway Golf Compan

Coach, Inc

Columbia Sportswear Compa
Ethan Allen Interiors Inc

Fossil, Inc.

Harman International Industries Ir

Herman Miller Inc.

Krispy Kreme Doughnuts, In
Nautilus, Inc.

Ralph Lauren Corg
Quiksilver, Inc.

Select Comfort Cory

Steelcase Inc

Tempu-Pedic International Inc
Tiffany & Co.

Tupperware Brands Cor

The comparison for each of the periods assumes$ i@t was invested on December 31, 2007 in our camstock, the stocks included in
S&P 500 Composite Index and the stocks includeshith peer group index and that all dividends weirevested. The stock performance show
the graph below is not necessarily indicative tfife price performance.

$250 -

£200 -

5150 -

§100

COMPARISON OF 5§ YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN"®

Among Tempur-Pedicinternational, Inc., the S&P 500 Index, and a Peer Group

12107 12108 12109 12110 1211 12112

—B=— Tempur-Pedic Intemational, Inc. —4—- S&P 500

---2--- Peer G roup

*2100 invested on 12/31/07 in stock orindex, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

Copyright® 2013 58P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

12/31/2007 12/31/200¢ 12/31/200¢ 12/31/201C 12/31/2011 12/31/201z
Tempu-Pedic
International, Inc $ 100.0¢ $ 278 $ 928z $ 157.3¢ $ 206.3¢ $ 123.6¢
S&P 500 100.0( 63.0( 79.67% 91.67% 93.61 108.5¢
Peer Grou 100.0( 53.1( 94.0¢ 141.2( 155.1¢ 157.2:
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected histakiconsolidated financial and operating data lier periods indicated. We have derived
statements of income and balance sheet data a&ldbathe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, Z0D9 and 2008 from our audited finan
statements. Our financial statements as of Dece®ibeR012 and 2011 and for each of the three yieattse period ended December 31, 201z
included in ITEM 15, under Part IV of this report.

(in millions, except per common share amounts)

Statement of Income Data 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Net sales $ 1,402. $ 1,417. $ 1,105. $ 831. $ 927.i
Cost of sale: 688.. 674. 550.! 437.! 526.i
Gross profit 714. 743. 555.. 393. 401.1
Operating expens 466.. 402. 309.! 248. 267.
Operating incom: 248. 340.! 245, 144. 133.
Interest expense, n (18.¢) (11.9 (14.%) (17.z (25.)
Other (expense) income, r 0.9 (0.9 0.9 0. (1.9
Income before income tax 229.. 328. 230.! 128.1 107.
Income tax provisiol 122.. 108.i 73. 43.1 48.1
Net income $ 106. $ 219. 3 157. $ 85 $ 58.

Balance Sheet Data (at end of period
Cash and cash equivalel $ 179. $ 111. $ 53 $ 14 $ 15.
Total asset® 1,313. 838.. 716.! 643. 646.!
Total debi® 1,025.1 585. 407. 297.! 419..
Total stockholders' equit 22. 30. 126. 172. 72.

Other Financial and Operating Data:
Dividends per common sha $ — % — % —  $ — % 0.2
Depreciation and amortizatid? 42. 51.i 44. 40., 40.1
Net cash provided by operati
activities 189.! 248. 184. 135. 198..
Net cash used by investing activit (55.0 (36.]) (37.5) (14.9) (5.9
Net cash used by financing activiti (70.9) (148.9 (106.9) (118.79) (200.9)
Basic earnings per common sh 1.7 3.2 2.2 1.1 0.7
Diluted earnings per common shi 1.7 3.1 2.1 1.1 0.7
Capital expenditure 50.! 29.! 18.. 14.. 10.!

@

Includes issuance of $375.0 million of Senior Ndie&l in escrow at December 31, 2012. The net paxéom the Senior Notes will be used to helprfagath:
Sealy Acquisition

Includes $5.7 million, $16.7 million, $11.6 millip§8.8 million, and $8.0 million in non-cash stdeksed compensation expense related to restrictel shits
performance restricted stock units, deferred stotts and stock options in 2012, 2011, 2010, 2@0€,2008, respectivel

(2
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should lerig conjunction with ITEM 6 under Part Il of thigport and the audited consolida
financial statements and accompanying notes theneladed elsewhere in this report. Unless othegwisted, all of the financial information in t
report is consolidated financial information forelCompany. The forwardoking statements in this discussion regarding riretress and pillo
industries, our expectations regarding our futuerfprmance, liquidity and capital resources andestnonhistorical statements in this discuss
are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties.“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Stateraéiaind ITEM 1A under Part | of this repc
Our actual results may differ materially from thasmntained in any forward-looking statements.

In this discussion and analysis, we discuss andaixphe consolidated financial condition and resuf operations for the years en
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, including tHewahg topics:

® An overview of our business and strate

® An overview of the Sealy Acquisition;

®Our net sales and costs in the periods presentedlhas changes between periods;
®Discussion of new initiatives that may affect outufe results of operations and financial condit

.Expected future expenditures for capital projeats$ sources of liquidity for future operations; &

eThe effect of the foregoing on our overall finahgmerformance and condition, as well as factorg twuld affect our futui
performance

Business Overview

General.We are the leading manufacturer, marketer andillisor of premium mattresses and pillows, which sedl in approximately €
countries under the TEMPURand Tempur-Pedi®@ brands. We believe our premium mattresses andwgllare more comfortable than stant
bedding products because our proprietary presslimsing TEMPUR® material is temperature sensitive and continuocshforms to the body.

We sell our premium mattresses and pillows throfogi distribution channels in each operating bussneegment: Retail (furniture, bedc
and department stores); Direct (direct respongderiet and compangwned stores); Healthcare (hospitals, nursing hotmeslthcare profession
and medical retailers); and Third party distribator countries where we do not sell directly thfoogir own subsidiaries.

In our International segment certain of our sulasids sell directly through compaoyvned stores. Prior to 2011, these sales have e&
material and were reported through our Retail cbarin 2011, and consistent with our growth initiat, we are reporting compaoyvned stores
the International segment within the Direct chan®elor period amounts have been reclassified tdarm to the 2011 presentation of net sale!
channel and by segment. These changes do not ipgadbusly reported International segment netsstdtals.

Business Segmentd/e have two reportable business segments: Northridenand International. These reportable segmersstategi
business units that are managed separately basbe@ dendamental differences in their geographié& North American operating segment con
of two U.S. manufacturing facilities, our North Ariean distribution subsidiaries and compawnred stores. The International segment consi:
our manufacturing facility in Denmark, whose cuséssinclude all of our distribution subsidiariesdahird party distributors outside the Nc
American operating segment and company-owned stdfesvaluate segment performance based on netaradeoperating income.

For a further discussion of factors that could iotpgperating results, including the current ecorerivironment and the steps we are ta
to address this environment, see the section emtifactors That May Affect Future Performang&luded within this section and in ITEM 1A un
Part | of this report.

33




Table of Contents
Strategy

Our goal is to become the world’'s favorite mattrassl pillow brand. In order to achieve this Iaegm goal while managing through
current economic and competitive environment, veapb complete the proposed acquisition of Sealgl,ta continue to pursue certain key Tempur-
Pedic® strategic goals using the related strategies disclibelow.

eMake sure everyone knows that they would sleepebett a Tempi-Pedic® mattress— we plan to continue to invest in our gla
brand awareness through advertising campaignsutiaer associate our brand name with overall se®gppremium quality product

eMake sure there is a Tem|-Pedic® bed and pillow that appeals to every~ we plan to continue to maintain our focus on pren
products at the high end of the category price eahgt are preferred by consume

eMake sure that Tempur-Ped@roducts are available to everyongve plan to expand our points of distribution ane #ffectivenes
of our distribution channels by ensuring our retalare provided attractive incentives to sellgraducts,

eMake sure that Tempur-Pedidedding products continue to deliver the best sleeg plan to continue to invest in product rese
and development to systematically innovate and awpour products in consumer relevant wi

In pursuing these strategic goals, we expect tdimes to optimize our cost structure in order talde these marketing and proc
development investments.

On September 27, 2012, we announced we had enitei@cin Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Merger Agreat”) to acquire Sea
Corporation (“Sealy”), by merging Sealy with a ngvdrmed subsidiary of the Company (the “Mergertpliectively, the “Sealy Acquisitior)’
Sealy, headquartered in Trinity, North Carolinanswene of the largest bedding brands in the ward, manufactures and markets a complete li
bedding products. Subject to the terms and comditiof the Merger Agreement, at the effective time as a result of the Merger, each sha
common stock of Sealy issued and outstanding imatelgti prior to the effective time of the Mergerllvoie cancelled and (other than shares he
Sealy or TempuRedic or their subsidiaries or Sealy stockholdens wroperly exercise appraisal rights) converted the right to receive $2.20
cash. The Company anticipates that the total ceraiihn to be paid, including payments on accotiexssting Sealy options and equity share
and the assumption of outstanding indebtednesgally$ess cash assumed, will be approximately 1(Bmillion. The transaction is expected tc
completed in the first half of calendar 2013 andubject to regulatory clearance under the HarttSRodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1¢
and other customary conditions. The Merger Agredroentains certain termination rights for both @@mpany and Sealy and further provides
upon termination of the Merger Agreement underatertircumstances, Sealy may be obligated to payGbmpany a termination fee of $2
million. In addition, if antitrust enforcement agées either commence or inform the parties thay théend to commence an action to enjoin
Merger, (i) the Company may be required to payysaaermination fee of $90.0 million if both pagielect to terminate the Merger Agreemel
(i) a termination fee of $90.0 million (or $40.0illon if the Company elects to terminate the Merdgreement but Sealy does not so ele
terminate) if the Merger does not close due toilrfato receive antitrust approval in the nine mienfollowing the execution of the Merg
Agreement, subject to certain extensions.

In order to finance the Sealy Acquisition, on Debem12, 2012, Tempur-Pedic International and cerfibsidiaries of Tempuredic
International as borrowers and guarantors, entetedhe 2012 Credit Agreement with a syndicatbariks. The 2012 Credit Agreement provide:
(i) the $350.0 million Revolver, (ii) the Term A &ility of $550.0 million and (iii) the Term B Fady of $870.0 million. The Revolver include:
sublimit for letters of credit and swingline loassibject to certain conditions and limits. The Regoand the Term A Facility will mature on thetffi
anniversary of the closing and the Term B Faciiil mature on the seventh anniversary of the clgsiThe Revolver, the Term A Facility and
Term B Facility are expected to close and fundannection with the Sealy Acquisition. The obligasoof the lenders to the 2012 Credit Agreer
to make the initial loans at the closing of thelgdaquisition and the loans subsequent to closirggsubject to certain customary closing condit
Our existing credit facilities will remain in plaemtil the closing of the Sealy Acquisition.

In addition, on December 19, 2012, Tempedic International issued $375.0 million aggregatecipal amount of 6.875% Senior Notes
“Senior Notes”) to qualified institutional buyersirguant to Rule 144A of the Securities Act, andteéotain nond.S. persons in accordance v
Regulation S under the Securities Act. The SenimeBlwere issued pursuant to an Indenture amongeRedic International, the subsidiaries
guarantee the Senior Notes (the “Guarantors”) grelBank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,tasstee (the “Trustee”)The Senior Note
will be the general unsecured senior obligationg @fpurPedic International and are guaranteed on a senigecured basis by the Guaran
Following the Sealy Acquisition, Sealy and certafrits subsidiaries will become guarantors of teaiSr Notes.
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The Senior Notes mature of December 15, 2880 ,interest is payable semi-annually in arrearsamh June 15 and December 15,
beginning on June 15, 2013. Tempur-Pedic Internatibas the option to redeem all or a portion ef$fenior Notes at any time on or after December
15, 2016. The initial redemption price is 103.4388the principal amount, plus accrued and unpatierest, if any. The redemption price will
decline each year after 2016 and will be 100.0%hefprincipal amount beginning on December 15, 20h&ddition, Tempur-Pedic International
has the option at any time prior to December 13620 redeem all or any portion of the Senior Nete$00.0% of the original principal amount plus
a “make-whole” premium and accrued and unpaid @steif any. Tempur-Pedic International may akteem up to 35.0% of the Senior Notes prior
to December 15, 2015 under certain circumstanctstie net cash proceeds from certain equity offgriat 106.875% of the principal amount plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any. Tempur-Pedénational may make such redemptions only teradiny such redemption, at least 65.0% of the
aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notesidsamains outstanding.

The Indenture restricts the ability of Tem@Redic International and the ability of certain &f subsidiaries to, among other things: (i) in
directly or indirectly, debt; (ii) make, directlyr andirectly, certain investments and restrictegrpants; (iii) incur or suffer to exist, directly
indirectly, liens on its properties or assets; §g)l or otherwise dispose of, directly or indilgcassets; (v) create or otherwise cause or stdfexis
any consensual restriction on the right of certdithe subsidiaries of Tempiedic International to pay dividends or make armeotlistributions ¢
or in respect of their capital stock; (vi) entatoi transactions with affiliates; (vii) engage mlesleaseback transactions; (viii) purchase or rec
capital stock or subordinated indebtedness; (s)ésor sell stock of restricted subsidiaries; af)ceffect a consolidation or merger. These coves
are subject to a number of exceptions and qudiifina.

Concurrently with the closing of the Senior Not&empur-Pedic International entered into an escrod security agreement (th&scrov
Agreement”)with the Trustee, as escrow agent. The gross pdgdeem the sale of the Senior Notes, together adttlitional cash necessary to fi
the redemption of the Senior Notes at the statddmgtion rate and pay accrued interest to Octop@013, have been deposited into the es
account. If the Sealy Acquisition is consummatedooiprior to September 26, 2013, the amounts helgscrow will be released to TempRedic
International to finance a portion of the cash pase price of the Sealy Acquisition. If the Sealgghisition is not consummated on or prio
September 26, 2013, the Senior Notes will be stiltjea special mandatory redemption at a redempticae of 100.0% of the principal amount g
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, and the ansduweld in the escrow account will be used to furedredemption.

Also in conjunction with the issuance and salehef Senior Notes, Tempedic International and the Guarantors have agtte@digh i
Registration Rights Agreement to exchange the $ddaies for a new issue of substantially identieistered notes under the Securities
TempurPedic International and the Guarantors are requogrhy additional interest if the Senior Notes raoé registered within the specified ti
periods outlined within the Registration Rights égment.

We expect to use the net proceeds of the SeniadNifering, together with cash on hand and bomga/iunder the 2012 Credit Agreemen
finance the Sealy Acquisition and to pay relatezsfand expenses, as well as payoff our existirdjtdeility and Sealy’s outstanding debt.

Results of Operations
A summary of our results for the year ended Decer8he2012 include:

.Earnings per diluted common share (EPS) were &lottpared to $3.18 per diluted share for the fuiry2011.

eAdjusted EPS were $2.61 for the year ended Dece8the2012 compared to $3.18 per diluted sharehf@same period in 2011. Fc
discussion and reconciliation of Adjusted EPS toAPAEPS refer to the noBAAP financial information set forth below undee
heading*Non-GAAP Financial Informatio”.

®Net sales decreased to $1,402.9 million comparé&d #17.9 million for the full year ended 20:
*our gross profit margin was 50.9% compared to 5Xdi%he year ended December 31, 2011.

*our operating income margin was 17.7% compared 1092 for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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The following table sets forth the various compuseof our Consolidated Statements of Income, aqmesses each component

percentage of net sales:

Year Ended December 31

(in millions, except per common share amoun 2012 2011 2010
Net sales 1,402. 100.% $ 1,417. 100.9% $ 1,105. 100.%
Cost of sales 688.. 49.. 674. 47.1 550.! 49.}
Gross profit 714. 50.! 743. 52.. 555.. 50..
Selling and marketing expens 319. 22! 276.! 19.! 199. 18..
General, administrative and other 147.. 10.! 125. 8.! 109. 9.!
Operating incom: 248.. 17. 340.! 24. 245! 22..
Interest expense, n (18.9) () (11.9 (0.9) (14.%) (2.9
Other (expense) income, r 0.9 . 0.2) . (0.5) .
Income before income tax 229. 16.: 328.. 23.. 230.! 20.!
Income tax provisiol 122.. 8. 108. 7. 73. 6.
Net income 106.: 7.% $ 219. 15.% $ 157.. 14.%
Earnings per common sha
Diluted 1.7 $ 3.1 $ 2.1
Weighted average common shares
outstanding
Diluted 62. 69. 72.
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with Year Ered December 31, 2011
A summary of net sales, by channel and by segrisesét forth below:
CONSOLIDATED NORTH AMERICA INTERNATIONAL
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
(in millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Retail $ 1,228. $ 1,245. $ 876. $ 917. $ 351. $ 328.
Direct 113. 100. 76. 76. 37. 24.
Healthcare 31. 34. 11. 11. 19. 22.
Third party 30. 38. — — 30.€ 38.
$ 1,402. $ 1,417. $ %4. $ 1,004. $ 438. $ 413.
A summary of net sales, by product and by segnmsgt forth below:
CONSOLIDATED NORTH AMERICA INTERNATIONAL
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
(in millions) 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Mattresse! $ 934. $ 944. $ 666. $ 693. $ 268. $ 250.
Pillows 158. 151. 73. 75. 85. 76.
Other 310. 321. 224. 235. 85. 86.
$ 1,402. $ 1,417. $ %4. $ 1,004. $ 438. $ 413.
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Net salesNet sales for the year ended December 31, 2012ased to $1,402.9 million from $1,417.9 milliordecrease of $15.0 million,
1.1%. Our decreased revenues were driven primbyilincreased competition in our North American seghduring the year ended Decembel
2012. Consolidated mattress sales decreased $iahnor 1.0%, compared to the full year 2011 eTdecrease in mattress sales occurred prir
in our Retail channel with net sales decreasin§1t@28.0 million from $1,245.6 million in the samperiod in 2011, a decrease of $17.6 millior
1.4%. Consolidated pillow sales increased approtétna6.6 million, or 4.4% compared to the yearesh®ecember 31, 2011. Consolidated o
which primarily includes adjustable bed bases amuhdiations, decreased $11.9 million, or 3.7%. Mahgur other products are sold with matt
purchases. Therefore, when mattress sales decrthee products are also negatively impacted. Disates increased $13.1 million, or 13.1%.
principal factors that impacted net sales for esggiment are discussed below, in the respectiveesggiiscussion.

North AmericaNorth American net sales for the year ended DeceBibe2012 decreased to $964.3 million from $1,004illion for the sam
period in 2011, a decrease of $40.4 million, 0®4.@ur North American Retail channel contributed®8 million in net sales for the year en
December 31, 2012, for a decrease of $41.1 milllor.5%. We believe the significant increase im tlumber of competitive product introducti
supported by aggressive marketing and incentives thva primary cause of our decreased net salethéoyear ended December 31, 2012. N
American mattress sales decreased $26.8 millioB,3%, over the same period in 2011. Other nessddereased $11.0 million, or 4.7%, comp
to the same period in 2011, consistent with theedese in mattress sales.

We expect our current competitive environment toticwe into the foreseeable future. During thedthand fourth quarters of 2012,
undertook several initiatives to stabilize North émigcan net sales. These initiatives include thievahg:

®six new product introductions, including five nevattnesses and a new adjustable founda

®wholesale mattress price reductions on certain ddlels to improve the margins of our U.S. retafitomers

eextension of our warranty of all U.S. mattress niede 25 years to improve the competitiveness ofproducts in the marketplas
and

various other initiatives to realign dealer incees.

The above initiatives were primarily implementadtee end of our third quarter 2012 and into thertto quarter 2012. Thus, they did
have a material impact on results of operationstferyear ended December 31, 2012.

International.International net sales for the year ended Dece®be2012 increased to $438.6 million from $413ikion for the same peric
in 2011, an increase of $25.4 million, or 6.1%. &w©onstant currency badi, our International net sales increased approximydi®.3%. Th
International Retail channel increased $23.5 mmillior 7.2%, for the year ended December 31, 2Gt&rrational Retail net sales increased prim
due to expanding points of distribution and investis in our brand awareness. As a result, Intemaltimattress sales in 2012 increased ¢
million, or 6.8%, compared to 2011. Pillow sale2012 increased $9.2 million, or 12.1%, as comp#&we2D11. Many of our pillows are sold w
mattress purchases. Therefore, when mattressisafease, pillows are also impacted.

(@) The references to “constant currency basisthe Management Discussion & Analysis do not idelwperational impacts that could result from fhkadions it
foreign currency rates. Certain financial results adjusted based on a simple mathematical modelrnslates current period results in local aayeusing th
comparable prior year pericl’currency conversion rate. This approach is usedtdéuntries where the functional currency is tbeal country currency. Tt
information is provided so that certain financiesults can be viewed without the impact of fludtuat in foreign currency rates, thereby facilitgtiperiod-toperioc
comparisons of business performance. Refer to ITBMiTder Part 1l of this report.
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Gross profit.Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2@ 2ahsed to $714.6 million from $743.1 million the same period in 2011
decrease of $28.5 million, or 3.8%. Gross profitgirafor the year ended December 31, 2012 was 50a8%ompared to 52.4% in the same peri
2011. Our gross profit margin is impacted by, amotiger factors, geographic mix between segmentstoHecally, our North American gross prt
margin has been substantially lower than that ofleiernational segment, due in part to the royphid by the North American segment as desc
below. For the year ended December 31, 2012, outhNamerican net sales decreased 4.0% as compaurte tsame period in 2011, whereas
International net sales increased 6.1%. These esainggeographic mix from 2011 to 2012 resulted ;3% increase in our gross profit margir
the year ended December 31, 2012. Additionally,gross profit margin includes a royalty paid by Merth American segment to our Internatic
segment based on production volume, which hasfteet®f lowering the North American segmenteported gross profit margin, and increasini
International segment’s reported gross profit nmaes the North American segmentiet sales increase. For the years ended Dec&hp2012 an
2011, royalties paid by our North American segnterdur International segment were $12.7 million &4@.3 million, respectively, which decrea
the North American segmestgross profit margin percentage 1.3% for the yeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011. Royalties reddiy thi
International segment increased their respectiesggprofit margin percentage 2.9% and 3.0% foryers ended December 31, 2012 and :
respectively. Costs associated with net sales ezerded in cost of sales. Costs of sales inclubdescbsts of receiving, producing, inspeci
warehousing, insuring, and shipping goods durimgptbriod, as well as depreciation and amortizaifdongived assets used in these processes
principal factors that impacted gross profit mardiming the year are identified and discussed béhotlve respective segment discussions.

North America.North American gross profit for the year ended Delger 31, 2012 decreased to $449.3 million from $98illion for the
same period in 2011, a decrease of $50.5 milliod00l%. The gross profit margin in our North Ancan segment was 46.6% and 49.7% for the
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivelyNorth American gross profit margin was most siigaifitly impacted by a 1.7% decrease rel
to additional promotions and discounts and new pebihtroductions, a 1.4% decrease related to wnédble mix and a 0.5% decrease due to -
cost deleverage related to lower production volumes. ThiEsgeases were partially offset by a 0.5% increals¢ed to lower commodity prices. (
North American cost of sales increased to $515l0omifor the year ended December 31, 2012 as coedpd $504.9 million for the year enc
December 31, 2011, an increase of $10.1 millior2.06%.

International. International gross profit for the year ended DesenB1, 2012 increased to $265.3 million from $234illion for the sam
period in 2011, an increase of $22.0 million, d¥%. The gross profit margin in our Internationagreent was 60.5% and 58.9% for the years e
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Our nat@nal gross profit margin was most significantlypacted by a 1.3% increase driver
efficiencies in manufacturing and fixed cost legraelated to higher production volumes, as wel 8s3% increase driven by costs associatec
an information technology upgrade at our manufaegufacility in Demark during 2011 that did not tedn 2012. Our International cost of sales
the year ended December 31, 2012 increased to $iiBion, as compared to $169.9 million for theayended December 31, 2011, an increa
$3.4 million, or 2.0%.

Selling and marketing expenseSelling and marketing expenses include advertiaimd) media production associated with our Direcholet
other marketing materials such as catalogs, breshwideos, product samples, direct customer ngailand point of purchase materials, and
force compensation. We also include in selling aratketing expense certain new product developmestscincluding market research and
product testing. Selling and marketing expenseseased to $319.1 million for the year ended DecerBhe2012 as compared to $276.9 million
the year ended December 31, 2011, an increase20? $illion, or 15.2%. Selling and marketing expensis a percentage of net sales increa:
22.7% in 2012, compared to 19.5% for 2011. Our eibieg expense for the year ended December 312 2@fs $164.5 million, or 11.7% of |
sales, compared to $148.8 million, or 10.5%, fershme period in 2011, an increase of $15.7 mjllborl0.6%. Our objective is to align advertis
expenses with our sales expectations. During 26d@sistent with our strategy, we made additionabstiments in advertising to increase b
awareness to drive future growth in certain keytNémerican and International markets. All othdlisg and marketing expenses as a percenta
net sales were approximately 11.0% and 9.0% foy#aes ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respgcthlieother selling and marketing expen
increased $26.5 million, or 20.7%, due to increasepromotional related expenses of $11.8 millionsts associated with opening additit
companyewned stores of $5.0 million, salaries and assedisgxpense of $4.5 million related to additionahdeunt, and $1.1 million
restructuring charges related to severance. Thisoffaet by a benefit recorded for our performaresgricted share units (“PRSU3j $2.3 millior
following our re-evaluation of the probability ofemting certain required financial metrics relatethe grants.
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General, administrative and other expens&eneral, administrative and other expenses inalualeagement salaries, information technol
professional fees, depreciation of furniture anxtufies, leasehold improvements and computer equipregpenses for administrative functions,
research and development costs. General, administiand other expenses as a percentage of netwake 10.5% for the year ended Decembe
2012 as compared to 8.9% for the same period ii.2G&neral, administrative and other expenses aseak to $147.2 million for the year en
December 31, 2012 as compared to $125.7 milliortHferyear ended December 31, 2011, an increasg1ob $nillion, or 17.1%. The increase
general, administrative and other expenses areapiyma result of increased legal and professideas of $16.1 million, driven by transaction ¢
related to the Sealy Acquisition of $8.9 milliondamtegration costs of $2.2 million, along with arcrease of $5.0 million related to incres
litigation costs and strategic initiatives. Durig@12, we also incurred an additional $5.2 milliefated to incremental investments in informa
technology and associated depreciation expense, ®l2011, we recorded a benefit for favorabléesmients of indirect taxes with certain regula
authorities of $3.5 million that did not recur i012. These increases were offset by an $8.0 mibiemefit recorded for PRSUs following our
evaluation of the probability of meeting certaiquied financial metrics related to the grants. &pect general, administrative and other experm
continue to be impacted by transaction and integratosts related to the proposed Sealy Acquisition

-

e-

Research and development expenses for the yead &atember 31, 2012 were $15.6 million compare®ot@ million for the same period
2011, an increase of $5.7 million, or 57.6%. Cdesiswith our strategy, we continue to invest ise@ch and development in order to improve
existing product line and continue to introduce reawl differentiated products.

Interest expense, nelnterest expense, net includes the interest castscated with our borrowings and the amortizatibdeferred financin
costs related to those borrowings. Interest expereteincreased to $18.8 million for the year ehBecember 31, 2012 as compared to $11.9 m
for the year ended December 31, 2011, an increfa®@.® million, or 58.0%. The increase in interespense is primarily attributable to an increa:
our debt outstanding at December 31, 2012 comparedr debt outstanding at December 31, 2011 aridaease in our effective interest rate.
Senior Notes also contributed $0.9 million of ierexpense in 2012.

Income before income taxesncome before income taxes for the year ended Dbeerdl, 2012 decreased to $229.2 million from $&
million for the same period in 2011, a decreas83¥.2 million, or 30.2%. North America income be&fancome taxes for the year ended Dece
31, 2012 decreased to $126.2 million from $224.Bianifor the same period in 2011, a decrease & 4Million, or 43.8%. International incol
before income taxes for the year ended Decembe2®L, decreased to $103.0 million from $103.8 onillfor the same period in 2011, a decrea
$0.8 million, or 0.8%. The decrease in income befocome taxes was a result of the items discusisede.

Income tax provisionlncome tax provision includes income taxes assediatith taxes currently payable and deferred taxed,includes tt
impact of net operating losses for certain of areign operations. Our effective tax rate was 53at¥d 33.1% for the years ended Decembe
2012 and 2011, respectively. During the three noriided September 30, 2012, we changed the datasisifi of our undistributed earnings fr
non-U.S. operations on which no historical provision {bS. federal and/or state income tax and for@ighholdings had been provided becaus:
intended to reinvest such earnings indefinitelysimg of the United States. The tax of our undisted earnings reflects a change in management’
strategic objectives that could require the reptitnh of foreign earnings. As a result of this amnwe recognized $48.1 million of additional in@
tax expense during the six months ended Decemhe2(3P to record the applicable U.S. deferred iredax liability. We expect to repatriate non-
U.S. cash holdings upon the closing of the prop&s=sady Acquisition.
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Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared with Year Ered December 31, 2010

A summary of net sales, by channel and by segrisesét forth below:

CONSOLIDATED

NORTH AMERICA

INTERNATIONAL

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
(in millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Retail $ 1,245. $ 953. $ 917. $ 694. 328. $ 258
Direct 100. 73. 76. 59. 24. 14
Healthcare 34. 35. 11. 12. 22. 22
Third party 38. 43. — 5.3 38. 38
$ 1,417. $ 1,105. $ 1,004. $ 772. 413. $ 333
A summary of net sales, by product and by segniesgt forth below:
CONSOLIDATED NORTH AMERICA INTERNATIONAL
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
(in millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Mattresse! $ 944. $ 735. $ 693. $ 539. 250. $ 196.
Pillows 151. 130. 75. 65. 76. 64.
Other 321. 239. 235. 167. 86. 72.
$ 1,417. $ 1,105. $ 1,004. $ 772. 413. $ 333.
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Net sales. Net sales for the year ended December 31, 201&adsed to $1,417.9 million from $1,105.4 million,inorease of $312.5 millio
or 28.3%. We believe our revenues have continuedrgamomentum primarily as a result of investmentsde in marketing, the ongoing succe:
new product introductions and expanding pointsisfrithution. Consolidated mattress sales incre&288.8 million, or 28.4%, compared to the
year 2010. The increase in mattress sales occpriedrily in our Retail channel with net sales ipasing to $1,245.6 million from $953.2 millior
the same period in 2010, an increase of $292.4iomjllor 30.7%. Consolidated pillow sales increaapgroximately $21.2 million, or 16.Z
compared to the year ended December 31, 2010. Gdetsal other, which primarily includes adjustabkd bases and foundations, increased :
million, or 34.5%. Many of our pillows and othemplucts are sold with mattress purchases. Therefdren mattress sales increase, pillows and
products are also impacted. Direct sales incref26d! million, or 35.8%. The principal factors tivapacted net sales for each segment are disc
below, in the respective segment discussion.

North AmericaNorth American net sales for the year ended DeceRibe2011 increased to $1,004.7 million from $0#aillion for the sam
period in 2010, an increase of $232.7 million, 8r1%. Our North American Retail channel contribu$®d.7.6 million in net sales for the year er
December 31, 2011, for an increase of $222.9 millr 32.1%. The TEMPUR-Clou® collection continues to be well received by retailanc
consumers. This generation of proprietary TEMP®Raterial was developed for consumers who want asdeép surface with the underly
support provided by a Tempur-Pedic mattress. Instmond quarter of 2011, we introduced the TEMPWRtQuUr® collection of mattresses tt
replaced our TEMPUR collection for those consumers who prefer the tragll TEMPUR® feel. Additionally, we believe that our contint
advertising investments had a positive impact anpeuformance. As a result, North American mattsades increased $154.2 million, or 28.6%,
the same period in 2010, driven by the increasmiimRetail channel. Net sales in the Direct chammkased by $16.3 million, or 27.3%. We bel
increased sales in the Direct channel are a resoltr focus on building brand awareness and ergiug consumers to visit our website througl
advertisements. The Third Party channel net sadesedse is attributable to our April 1, 2010 adtjois of our thirdparty distributor in Canac
Other net sales increased $68.6 million, or 41.€8mpared to the same period in 2010. Many of oueroproducts are sold with mattress purch
Therefore, when mattress sales increase, othemupi®dire also impacted. Additionally, we emphasiadflistable bed bases and experie
improved attach rates, which are sold at a highee point than traditional foundations.

International. International net sales for the year ended Deeerdb, 2011 increased to $413.2 million from $338idion for the same peric
in 2010, an increase of $79.8 million, or 23.9%. @®rconstant currency basis, our International saleseased approximately 15.7%The
International Retail channel increased $69.5 mmillior 26.9%, for the year ended December 31, 20idrnational Retail increased primarily du
the introduction of the TEMPUR-Clod, which we believe appeals to a different group afstomers, in our International markets. The intrdidm
of the TEMPUR-Clouc? contributed $55.9 million to the increase in ndesaluring 2011. Additionally, Retail increased daexpanding points
distribution, investments in our brand awareneskgaowth in key customers. As a result, Internatlanattress sales in 2011 increased $54.6 mi
or 27.8%, compared to 2010. Pillow sales in 20kteased $11.3 million, or 17.4%, as compared t@20ther product net sales increased §$
million, or 19.5%, as compared to 2010. Many of pillows and other products are sold with mattnesschases. Therefore, when mattress
increase, pillows and other products are also itegac

Gross profit.Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2@tfeased to $743.1 million from $555.4 million fbe same period in 20:
an increase of $187.7 million, or 33.8%. Gross ipmfrgin for the year ended December 31, 2011 %224%, as compared to 50.2% in the s
period of 2010. Our gross profit margin is impacbggd among other factors, geographic mix betwegmsats. Historically, our North Americ
gross profit margin is substantially lower thanttbfour International segment, due in part to ihgalty paid by the North American segmen
described below. For the year ended December 311, 28ur North American net sales increased 30.1%oagpared to the same period in 2!
whereas our International net sales increased 239f#se changes in geographic mix from 2010 to 2@sllted in a 0.1% decrease in our ¢
profit margin for the year ended December 31, 2@dditionally, our gross profit margin includes @yalty paid by the North American segmer
our International segment based on production velumhich has the effect of lowering the North Arnari segmens' reported gross profit marg
and increasing the International segment’s repogieds profit margin as the North American segnsengt sales increase. For the years €
December 31, 2011 and 2010, royalties paid by oomttNAmerican segment to our International segnvemite $12.3 million and $9.8 millia
respectively, which decreased the North Americamsmnts gross profit margin percentage 1.3% for the yeaded December 31, 2011 and 2
Royalties received by the International segmenteiased their respective gross profit percentagh &0d 2.9% for the years ended Decembe
2011 and 2010, respectively. Costs associated néttsales are recorded in cost of sales. Costale$ includes the costs of receiving, produt
inspecting, warehousing, insuring, and shippingdgoduring the period, as well as depreciation andrazation of longhved assets used in the
processes. The principal factors that impactedsgmsfit margin during the year are identified astidcussed below in the respective segi
discussions.
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North AmericaNorth American gross profit for the year ended Delger 31, 2011 increased to $499.8 million from $358illion for the
same period in 2010, an increase of $141.5 millwr89.5%. The gross profit margin in our North Ainan segment was 49.7% and 46.4% fo
year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respecti@ely gross profit margin was most significantlypacted by a 3.9% increase driven
favorable product mix and a 2.1% increase due fwawed efficiencies in manufacturing and distribati and fixed cost leverage related to hi
volumes. These increases were partially offset ky7& decrease related to higher commodity cosdsla®?o decrease associated with floor m
discounts related to new product launches. OuriNArherican cost of sales increased to $504.9 milfar the year ended December 31, 201
compared to $413.7 million for the year ended Ddmm31, 2010, an increase of $91.2 million, or 22.0

International. International gross profit for the year ended DelsenB1, 2011 increased to $243.3 million from $197illion for the sam
period in 2010, an increase of $46.2 million, or428. The gross profit margin in our Internationadiment was 58.9% and 59.1% for the years €
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Ournat@nal gross profit margin was most significarithpacted by a 1.2% decrease driven by «
associated with an information technology upgradeus manufacturing facility in Denmark during th@rd quarter of 2011. During the last
months of the year ended December 31, 2011, weriexged increased demand for our new products whitltombination with tempora
productivity issues arising from the informatiorcheology upgrade, resulted in decreased inven®rgl$. As a result, we shipped product f
North America thereby incurring incremental freigtusts. Our International gross profit margin wes adversely impacted by a 0.8% decr
driven by higher commodity costs and a 0.1% deer@asociated with increased floor model discowitged to new product launches, including
Tempur-Cloud® . These decreases in gross profit margin were plaraéfset by a 0.3% increase due to efficienciemanufacturing, a 0.9% incre:
in favorable mix and a 0.7% increase in fixed destrage related to higher production volumes. Dternational cost of sales for the year er
December 31, 2011 increased to $169.9 millioncaspared to $136.3 million for the year ended Deam®i, 2010, an increase of $33.6 millior
24.7%.

Selling and marketing expenseSelling and marketing expenses include advertiaimd) media production associated with our Direchaole
other marketing materials such as catalogs, breshwideos, product samples, direct customer ngailand point of purchase materials, and
force compensation. We also include in Selling aratketing expense certain new product developmestscincluding market research and
product testing. Selling and marketing expenseseased to $276.9 million for the year ended DecerBhe2011 as compared to $199.7 million
the year ended December 31, 2010, an increase7o? $illion, or 38.7%. Selling and marketing expenss a percentage of net sales increa:
19.5% in 2011, compared to 18.1% for 2010. Our eibheg expense for the year ended December 31] 2@k $148.8 million, or 10.5% of |
sales, compared to $96.6 million, or 8.7%, for $hene period in 2010, an increase of $52.2 mill@m54.0%. Our objective is to align advertis
expenses with our sales expectations. During 26ddsistent with our strategy, we made additionabstiments in advertising to increase b
awareness to drive future growth in certain keytN@merican and International markets. All othellisg and marketing expenses increased ¢
million, or 24.2%, which was driven by our increasenet sales. All other selling and marketing exges as a percentage of net sales
approximately 9.0% and 9.3% for the years endec®éer 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

General, administrative and other expenseGeneral, administrative and other expenses iecindnagement salaries, information techno
professional fees, depreciation of furniture antufies, leasehold improvements and computer equipregpenses for administrative functions,
research and development costs. General, administiand other expenses as a percentage of net\sake 8.9% for the year ended Decembe
2011 as compared to 9.9% for the same period i0.2G&neral, administrative and other expenses asea: to $125.7 million for the year en
December 31, 2011 as compared to $109.8 milliortHferyear ended December 31, 2010, an increas&50® $nillion, or 14.5%. The increase
general, administrative and other expenses areapitina result of increased salaries and assocatpdnses of $11.1 million and fees associatec
financing programs in our Direct sales channel 2f3$million, both of which were driven by our stgpoperating performance. In additi
incremental investments in information technolo@y4.8 million also contributed to this increasdeTeffects of these items were partially offse
decreased legal and professional expenses of $lidnindriven by costs incurred in 2010 relatirgthe acquisition of our third party distributol
Canada and strategic research studies. Researaeaaldpment expenses for the year ended Decerdb@031 were $9.9 million compared to §
million for the same period in 2010, an increase$af5 million, or 33.6%. Consistent with our stegtewe continue to invest in research
development in order to improve our existing prdadine and continue to introduce new and differeteti products.
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Interest expense, netnterest expense, net includes the interest castscated with our borrowings and the amortizatiérdeferre:
financing costs related to those borrowings. Irgeexpense, net, decreased to $11.9 million folyde ended December 31, 2011 as compal
$14.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2@lfecrease of $2.6 million, or 17.9%. The decr@aggerest expense is primarily attributabl
a decrease in the portion of the underlying debjesi to our interest rate swap, which expired oayM81, 2011, offset by an increase in
outstanding. The interest rate on our variable dat# was lower than the fixed rate of the interat swap.

Income before income taxesncome before income taxes for the year ended Deeerdl, 2011 increased to $328.4 million from $9
million for the same period in 2010, an increas&®f.5 million, or 42.2%. North America income hefancome taxes for the year ended Dece
31, 2011 increased to $224.6 million from $137.7iam for the same period in 2010, an increase &85.9 million, or 63.1%. International inco
before income taxes for the year ended Decembe2(@1], increased to $103.8 million from $93.2 millifor the same period in 2010, an increas
$10.6 million, or 11.4%. The increase in incomeobefincome taxes was a result of the items discuaieve.

Income tax provisionlncome tax provision includes income taxes assediatith taxes currently payable and deferred taxed,includes tt
impact of net operating losses for certain of areign operations. Our effective tax rate was 33di¥d 31.9% for the years ended Decembe
2011 and 2010, respectively. The increase is piynalated to higher growth in the U.S. marketstes other markets.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

Our principal sources of funds are cash flows froperations, borrowings made pursuant to our detaingements and cash and ¢
equivalents on hand. Principal uses of funds coridfisshare repurchases made from time to time untsto share repurchase authorizati
payments of principal and interest on our debt exgents, acquisition of certain former third partgtributors, capital expenditures and worl
capital. At December 31, 2012, we had working e@pf $609.0 million, including cash and cash eqlémts of $179.3 million as comparec
working capital of $212.2 million including $111million in cash and cash equivalents as of DecerBtheP011. Working capital increased prime
due to the receipt and deposit into escrow of tesgproceeds from the sale of the Senior Notestanihcrease in cash and cash equivalents.

Cash provided by operating activities decreased8sBtilion to $189.9 million for the year ended @ether 31, 2012, as compared to $2
million for the same period in 2011. The decreasesaish provided by operating activities was dua decrease in net income of $112.8 million, a
decrease in stock-based compensation amortizafiggl b0 million primarily related to our revaluation of the probability of meeting cer
required financial metrics related to our PRSU tgapartially offset by increased deferred incomrees related to the repatriation of foreign
strategy and an increase in changes in operatisgfsaand liabilities. The net change in operatisgets and liabilities is primarily driven by
prepaid interest associated with the Senior Natiéset by increased levels of inventory and acceueteivable to support our growth during 2011.

Cash used in investing activities increased to &5aillion for the year ended December 31, 2012a@sapared to $36.1 million for the e
ended December 31, 2011, an increase of $18.Dmilue to an increase in capital expenditures ssritbed below.

Cash used by financing activities was $70.8 millionthe year ended December 31, 2012 as comper8d48.9 million for the year enc
December 31, 2011, representing a decrease inuseshof $78.1 million. This decrease was primardiated to a decrease in share repurcl
during the year ended December 31, 2012 of $218I®m) partially offset by a decrease in net bavings of $113.0 million and a decrease in
amount of deductions taken on our income tax retdor certain stockased compensation awards exceeding cumulative exmsafion co:
recognized on the financial statements due to dserkstock options exercises.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures totaled $50.5 million for slemr ended December 31, 2012 and $29.5 millionheryear ended December 31, 2011.
increase in capital expenditures in 2012 is attable to continued strategic investments, includmigrmation technology upgrades and a
corporate headquarters in Lexington, Kentucky. Wigeantly expect our 2013 capital expenditures tapproximately $35.0 million, and relate
continued strategic investments which we believesupport our future plans.
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Non-GAAP Financial Information

We provide information regarding earnings befoteriest taxes depreciation and amortization ("EBATDadjusted EBITDA, funded del
adjusted net income and adjusted earnings per,sivieh are not recognized terms under U.S. GAA® @m not purport to be alternatives to
income as a measure of operating performance ar dett. Because not all companies use identidaliegions, these presentations may nc
comparable to other similarly titted measures dfeotcompanies. A reconciliation of our net incorneBEBITDA and adjusted EBITDA and
reconciliation of total debt to funded debt arevided below. We believe the use of these G#HAP financial measures provides investors
additional useful information with respect to owbtlagreements and our compliance with the reldgdd covenants. A reconciliation of our adju:
earnings per share is provided below. We beliew the use of this noBAAP financial measure provides investors with #ddal usefu
information with respect to the impact of the rejdibn of foreign earnings, transaction and in&ign costs incurred related to the S
Acquisition, and restructuring costs.

Debt Service

Our longterm debt increased to $1,025.0 million as of Ddmen31, 2012 from $585.0 million as of DecemberZ1 1. After giving effect 1
$650.0 million in borrowings under the 2011 Crefhicility and letters of credit outstanding of $idlion, total availability under the 2011 Cre
Facility was $119.0 million as of December 31, 2002 December 12, 2012, we issued $375.0 milliayreggate principal amount of 6.875% Se
Notes due 2020. The proceeds from the issuancéeofSenior Notes are held in escrow and expect tavadable upon closing of the Se
Acquisition. Refer to ITEM 8, Note 5 to the Conslatied Financial Statements for additional infororatiegarding the Senior Notes.

As of December 31, 2012, we are in compliance withdebt covenants. The table below sets fortlc#ieulation of our compliance relatec
the 2011 Credit Facility with the funded debt tolEBA covenant. Both funded debt and EBITDA are terthat are not recognized under |
GAAP and do not purport to be alternatives to nebine as a measure of operating performance ¢deiba

On August 8, 2011, we entered into a new fpemr interest rate swap agreement effective DeceBhe2011 to manage interest costs an
risk associated with changing interest rates aasetiwith a portion of the borrowings outstandimgler our 2011 Credit Facility. Under this sw
we pay at a fixed rate and receive payments atiabla rate. The swap effectively fixes the flogtibondon Interbank Offering Rate ("LIBOR'
based interest rate to 1.25% on $250.0 milliorhefdutstanding balance as of December 31, 2012 tinel011 Credit Facility, with the outstanc
balance subject to the swap declining over time ifiterest rate swap expires on December 30, 2015.

Reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and adjudss&ITDA

The following table sets forth the reconciliatiohaur reported net income to the calculation of EBA for the year ended December
2012:

Year Ended
December 31
(in millions) 2012
GAAP Net income $ 106.
Plus:
Interest expens 18.
Income taxe: 122.
Depreciation & amortization 42.
EBITDA $ 290.
Plus:
Transaction costs related to Sealy Acquisi 8.9
Integration costs related to Sealy Acquisit 2.2
Restructuring costs 1.5
Adjusted EBITDA $ 302.¢
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Reconciliation of total debt to funded d

The following table sets forth the reconciliatiohooir reported total debt to the calculation ofded debt and the funded debt to EBITDA r
as of December 31, 2012:

As of Decembet

(in millions, except ratio) 31, 2012
GAAP basis Total debt $ 1,025.
Less:

Senior Note! (375.)
Plus:

Letters of credit outstandir 1.
Funded debt $ 651.
EBITDA $ 290.
Funded debt to EBITDA 2.24 time

The ratio of funded debt to EBITDA was 2.2#%éis, within the covenant in the 2011 Credit Fagilithich requires this ratio not exceed 3.0
times.

Reconciliation of net income to adjusted net inc

The following table sets forth the reconciliatioh @ur reported net income to the calculation ofuathd net income for the year en
December 31, 2012:

Year Ended

December 31
(in millions, except per share amounts) 2012
GAAP net income $ 106.¢
Plus:
Tax provision related to repatriation of foreignréags 48.
Transaction costs related to Sealy Acquisitionafieax 6.
Integration costs related to Sealy Acquisition, afetx 1
Restructuring costs, net of t 1.
Adjusted net incom $ 164.1
GAAP earnings per share, diluted $ 1.7
Tax provision related to repatriation of foreigmréags 0.7
Transaction costs related to Sealy Acquisition,afiéfx 0.1
Integration costs related to Sealy Acquisition, ofetax 0.0
Restructuring costs, net of tax 0.0
Adjusted earnings per share, dilu $ 2.6

Diluted shares outstandit 62,

Stockholder’ Equity
Share Repurchase Program.

During 2012, we purchased 5.0 million shares of sammon stock for a total cost of $150.0 milliorrquant to authorizations made by
Board of Directors. On January 23, 2012, our Ba#rB®irectors terminated the existing authority unttee July 2011 authorization, as amende
October 2011, and approved a new share repurchaberization of up to $250.0 million of our commatock. Share repurchases under
authorization may be made through open market adimns, negotiated purchases or otherwise, asteme in such amounts as management
committee of the Board deem appropriate; thesercbpses may be funded by operating cash flows abdfoowings under our debt arrangeme
This share repurchase program may be limited, sgukor terminated at any time without notice. Wendt expect that we will complete ¢
additional share repurchases for the foreseeahlesfeither before or after the completion of tleal$ Acquisition.
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Future Liquidity Source

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flow frooperations and borrowings under our debt agreemeffe expect that ongoi
requirements for debt service and capital experestwill be funded from these sources. As of Dea@n®i, 2012, we had $1,025.0 million in t
long-term debt outstanding, and our stockholdergiity was $22.3 million. Our debt service obligas could, under certain circumstances,
material consequences to our security holdersdismussion of the additional indebtedness we exgettcur as a result of the Sealy Acquisit
refer to below undé€iSealy Acquisition”.

Based upon the current level of operations ancipatied growth, we believe that cash generated bperations and amounts available u
our debt agreements will be adequate to meet digigeted debt service requirements, capital exjieres, share repurchases, and working cz
needs for the foreseeable future. There can beswance, however, that our business will genar#feeient cash flow from operations or that ful
borrowings will be available under facilities ohetwise enable us to service our indebtednessroal@ anticipated capital expenditures.

At December 31, 2012, total cash and cash equitsaleas $179.3 million, of which $19.2 million waslth in the U.S. and $160.1 million v
held by subsidiaries outside of the U.S. The amofimash and cash equivalents held by subsidiatieside of the U.S. and not readily convert
into other foreign currencies, including the U.SlIBr, is not material to our overall liquidity éinancial position. At July 1, 2012, the Company
$352.7 million of undistributed earnings from nOrS. operations on which no provision for U.S. fedleand/or state income tax and fore
withholdings had been provided because TenRmdic International intended to reinvest such egsiiindefinitely outside of the United Sta
Subsequent to July 1, 2012, we changed the cleatifh of those earnings to reflect a change inagament strategic objective that could req
the repatriation of foreign earnings. We expecaefmatriate non-U.S. cash holdings in connectioh wie closing of the proposed Sealy acquisition.

Sealy Acquisition

On September 27, 2012, we announced a definitiveeagent to acquire Sealy, which owns some of thet nezognized bedding brands in
world, and manufactures and markets a broad rahgetiresses and foundations that appeal to a beoage of consumers under the Séa)yGealy
Posturepedi® , Sealy Embody™, Optimum™ by Sealy Posturep&licStearns & FosteP , and Basset? brands. In addition to traditior
innerspring mattresses, Sealy leverages its brarfbfo to also manufacture and market in the WRd internationally specialty (nannerspring
latex and viscoelastic bedding products. Sealylse a leading global brand with top market posiion Canada, Mexico and Argentina. Si
operates through whollgwned subsidiaries in the U.S., Canada, MexicojtBWRico, Argentina, Uruguay and Chile and throjgjht ventures ar
licensee partners in other international markets.

In order to finance the Sealy Acquisition, on Debem12, 2012, Tempur-Pedic International Inc. aedain subsidiaries of Temp&edic
International Inc. as borrowers and guarantorseredt into the 2012 Credit Agreement with a syneicaft banks. The 2012 Credit Agreen
provides for (i) the $350.0 million Revolver, (ihe Term A Facility of $550.0 million and (iii) thBerm B Facility of $870.0 million. The Revoh
includes a sublimit for letters of credit and swing loans, subject to certain conditions and kmithe Revolver and the Term A Facility will mai
on the fifth anniversary of the closing and theriieéB Facility will mature on the seventh anniversafythe closing. The Revolver, the Tern
Facility and the Term B Facility are expected tosel and fund in connection with the Sealy AcquisitiThe obligations of the lenders to the Z
Credit Agreement to make the initial loans at tlusiog of the Sealy Acquisition and the loans sgbsat to closing are subject to certain custol
closing conditions. Our existing credit facilitiedll remain in place until the closing of the Se&lgquisition.

In addition, on December 19, 2012, Tempw@dic International Inc. and the Guarantors, isskg%b.0 million aggregate principal amoun
6.875% Senior Notes to qualified institutional brsypursuant to Rule 144A of the Securities Act, amdertain norJ.S. persons in accordance v
Regulation S under the Securities Act. The Senmeblwere issued pursuant to the Indenture, amengptirPedic International Inc., the Guaran
and the Trustee. The Notes will be the general aured senior obligations of TempBedic International Inc. and are guaranteed onngt
unsecured basis by the Guarantors. Following tlaySEcquisition, certain of the Sealy entities wikcome guarantors of the Notes. The proc
from the sale of the Senior Notes are in escrowdipgnrelease upon receipt of regulatory approvats the satisfaction of other conditions to
completion of the Sealy Acquisition.

We expect to use the net proceeds of the SenidesNoffering, together with cash on hand and barrgss under the 2012 Cre
Agreement, to finance the Sealy Acquisition angddg related fees and expenses.
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Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations and other commerciahgitments as of December 31, 2012 are summarizewbe

(in millions) Payment Due By Perioc
Total

Contractual After Obligations (2
Obligations 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 ©)
2011 Credil

Facility $ — $ — 3 — $ 650.C $ — $ — $ 650.(
Senior Note: — — — — — 375.( 375.(
Letters of credi 1.C — — — — — 1.C
Interest

payments @ 66.7 425 425 33.1 25.¢ 76.% 286.%
Operating leases 7.9 5.1 3.5 2.5 2.3 3.2 24.5
Total $ 756 $ 474  $ 458 $ 685.6 $ 28.1 $ 454 $ 1,337.(

(1) Represents interest payments under our debt agntemetstanding as of December 31, 2012, assungbg altstanding as of the end of 2012 is not re
until debt matures. For the 2011 Credit Facilitierest payments are calculated based on LIBORggpBcable margin in effect at December 31, 2G|
giving effect to the interest rate swap agreemieat was entered into in August 2011. The interats swap converts a declining balance of our audi#ta
2011 Credit Facility from a variable rate to a fixate. The actual interest rates on the variatnlebtedness incurred and the amount of our indebgsdcoul
vary from those used to compute the above int@@aghent. Interest payments under the Senior Nogealso included. For the 2012 Credit Agreementarg
obligated to pay ticking fees until funding occimsconnection with the Sealy Acquisition. For puspe of the above table, we are assuming the tidkies
remain until the commitment ends, which is Septan@iée 2013. The aforementioned ticking fees relabetthe 2012 Credit Agreement are included as \

@ Excludes $18.7 million related to accrued unrecoephitax benefits, relating to the Companyhcertain tax positions, including interest aeddties, as tt
period of payment cannot be reasonably estimi

(® Excludes the 2012 Credit Agreement as the fundirgpntingent upon closing of Sealy Acquisition. Ticking fees are included in interest payments.

Factors That May Affect Future Performance

General Business and Economic ConditiorBur business has been affected by general bgsered economic conditions, and tt
conditions could have an impact on future demamaéw products. The global economic environmenticoes to be challenging, and we expec
uncertainty to continue, particularly in Europeligght of the macroeconomic environment, we corgito take steps to further align our cost strut
with our anticipated level of net sales. We corgithtio make strategic investments, including: maiirig focus on premium mattresses and pill
and introducing new products; investing in incragsour global brand awareness; extending our poesamd improving our Retail acco
productivity and distribution; investing in our apéing infrastructure to meet the requirementswflsiness; and taking actions to further stresn
our business.

Competition. Participants in the mattress and pillow industr@ampete primarily on price, quality, brand nareeognition, produ
availability, and product performance. We competiéhva number of different types of mattress altdwes, including standard innerspr
mattresses, viscoelastic mattresses, foam matsessrid innerspring/foam mattresses, waterbedgns, air beds and other auwpporte
mattresses. These alternative products are sottighr a variety of channels, including furniture ameldding stores, department stores, |
merchants, wholesale clubs, Internet, telemarkgdiograms, television infomercials, television atiééng and catalogs.

Our largest competitors have significant finanamérketing and manufacturing resources and stboagd name recognition, and sell tl
products through broad and well established distidgn channels. Additionally, we believe that a tn@mof our significant competitors offer mattr
products claimed to be similar to our TEMPUR®ttresses and pillows. During 2012, there has leesignificant increase in the numbel
competitive product introductions supported by aggive marketing and incentives. We continue tgptdar business model to provide str
channel profits to our retailers and distributdige will continue to evaluate the competitive enmitent and take actions to compete in a ra
changing competitive environment. These actions imelyde price reductions on certain products toretailers and consumers.
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Managing TrendsOver the last few years, we have had to managéwsiness through periods of rapid growth, econamicertainty an
increased competition. In the past, our growth flased, and may continue to place, a strain onnmamagement, production, product distribu
network, information systems and other resourcesesponse to these types of challenges, managdmentontinued to enhance operating
financial infrastructure, as appropriate. In aduditiduring 2007 through 2009, we had to managechngein sales as a result of the macroecon
environment, and for the nine months ended Dece®be?012, we had to manage a decline in salesapity as a result of increased competit
During these periods of sales declines, we hawveanage our cost structure to contain costs. Gangdrd, we expect our expenditures to enh
our operating and financial infrastructure. Expéumdis for advertising and other marketirgdated activities will continue to be made as lbusines
results allow us the ability to make strategic stmeents. However, these expenditures may be linbiyelbwer than planned sales or an inflatiol
cost environment.

Sealy AcquisitionWe believe the proposed combination with Sealy iolesra comprehensive portfolio of iconic brandghwie most highl
recognized brands in North America, and strong dbraceognition across Europe, South America and.A8¥= believe we will have a complement
product offering, with our expertise in viscoelasaind Seal\s expertise in innerspring, with the ability to éemge more research and developme
strengthen existing products and develop innovatie® products. We also believe the acquisition ioless opportunities for value creation, v
significant cost synergies and distinct revenueesyies across the organizations. We believe thebowd companies will have strong finan
characteristics with the ability to invest in keygth areas and a commitment to pay down debt. Mewehe Sealy Acquisition will result in higt
financial leverage for TempWredic, which could make us more vulnerable to gdremverse, competitive, economic and industry itmms. The
Sealy Acquisition is subject to regulatory cleamnader the Hart-ScoRedino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, and otbestomary condition
While completing the acquisition, we expect to intxansaction and integration costs, which will amp our general, administrative and o
expenses, along with our earnings. Refer to ITEMubder Part | of this report.

Gross Margins. Our gross margin is primarily impacted by fixeolst leverage; the cost of raw materials; operatiefficiency; produc
channel and geographic mix; volume incentives effeto certain retail accounts; and costs associatid new product introductions. Fut
increases in raw material prices could have a negahpact on our gross margin if we do not raisegs to cover increased cost. Our gross m
can also be impacted by our operational efficiesdiecluding the particular levels of utilizatioh@ur three manufacturing facilities. We have n
significant investments in our manufacturing infrasture and have available manufacturing capadtiitye increase our net sales significantly
effect of this operating leverage could have aifigmt positive impact on our gross margin. Cosedy, if we experience significant decreases i
net sales, the effect of this operating deleveramgd have a significant negative impact on oursgnmargin, which occurred during the nine ma
ended December 31, 2012. Our margins are also tegbdny the growth in our Retail channel as salesuinRetail channel are at wholesale pi
whereas sales in our Direct channel are at retmiép. Additionally, our overall product mix hasfgkd to mattresses and other products over th
several years, which has impacted our gross malginause mattresses generally carry lower margars pillows and are sold with lower mar
products such as adjustable bed bases and founslalibe price reductions described above ufdempetition” may have a negative impact on
gross margins. We expect our gross margins to dserglightly for the full year 2013.

Significant Growth Opportunities/Ve believe there are significant opportunities d&et market share from our competitors in a cha
competitive environment. Our market share of theral mattress industry is relatively small in terof both dollars and units, which we beli
provides us with a significant opportunity for gribwBY broadening our brand awareness and offeiqgrior sleep surfaces, we believe consu
will over time adopt our products at an increasiage, which should expand our market share. Howeuar business may be affected by ger
business and economic conditions, as well as catigmetwhich could have an impact on demand forgnaducts.

We continue to evaluate our current product liné patential product introductions in response ® ¢hanging competitive environment
consumer research studies. During the third quafte2012, we introduced TEMPUR-Breeze ™echnology, which creates an extwesl slee
experience in a variety of ways, including prodgcextra coolness where the body touches the matthedping regulate body heat for a n
comfortable temperature throughout the night, ahdnoeling heat away from the mattress. Two new Bedtired this TEMPUR-Breeze ™
technology, the TEMPUR-Cloud ®Supreme Breeze and the TEMPUR-Rhapsody Bfeeze. We also introduced the TEMPUR-Weightless ™
Collection, featuring the TEMPUR-Weightless Select and TEMPUR-Weightless ™8upreme. The TEMPUR-Weightless ™@ollection provide
extra responsiveness that allows for easier moveimeand out of bed. In January 2013, we introduoar new TEMPUR-ChoicéM Collection
which offers our pressure-relieving comfort combiveith a new multzone adjustable support system for personalizedardron each side of tl
bed. In conjunction with the above product intratituts, we expect to discontinue and close-out ceetgisting products.
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Additionally, by expanding distribution within oexisting accounts, we believe we have the oppdstaaigrow our business. By extend
our product line through our segmentation of présluwe should be able to continue to expand thebeurof Tempur-Pedic ®models offered at tl
retail store level, which should lead to increasaks. Based on this strategy we believe a focexpanding distribution within our existing acccs
and adding additional accounts, provides for camtih growth opportunities and market share gainsveder, our business may continue tc
affected by general business and economic conditias well as competition, which could have an ichpa demand for our products, which cc
limit our market share and decrease sales. As oéber 31, 2012, our products were sold in appratéiy 8,700 furniture and bedding retail st
in the North American segment, out of a total gbragimately 11,500 stores we have identified ag@miate targets. Within this addressable ma
our plan is to increase our total penetration total of 9,000 to 10,000 stores over time. As ot®uaber 31, 2012, our products were also sc
approximately 5,750 furniture retail and departmstares in the International segment, out of al toteapproximately 8,000 stores that we
identified as appropriate targets. We are contigptiindevelop products that are responsive to coasdemand in both of our geographic segments.

Financial LeverageAs of December 31, 2012, we had $1,025.0 milliotoafi-term debt outstanding, and our stockholdegsiity was $22.
million. Higher financial leverage makes us moréneuable to general adverse competitive, economicimdustry conditions. During the year en
December 31, 2012, we increased our total debt4#0.$ million which, along with our diminished pemfhance in 2012, increased our leve
ratios. We anticipate incurring $1,900.0 million ioflebtedness to fund the closing of the Sealy #sition, including payoff of our 2011 Cre
Facility and Sealy outstanding debt. There can be no assuranceundiusiness will generate sufficient cash flownfroperations or that fut.
borrowing will be available. As of December 31, 20bur ratio of funded debt to EBITDA was 2.24 tsnevithin the covenant in our d
agreements, which requires this ratio not exceedi®es. On August 8, 2011, we entered into a rew~fear interest rate swap agreement to me
interest costs and the risk of changing interestsrassociated with a portion of our borrowingsstautding under our 2011 Credit Facility. Refe
Note 7,“Derivative Financial Instrumentsgf our financial statements for the year ended Ddx 31, 2012 for additional information regardmg
derivative instruments, including this interesteratvap. In connection with Sealy Acquisition, weest to incur a significant amount of debt.
ITEM 7A under Part Il of this report.

Exchange RatesAs a multinational company, we conduct our busina a wide variety of currencies and are theesfmbject to market ri
for changes in foreign exchange rates. We usegiorexchange forward contracts to manage a porfitimeorisk of the eventual net cash inflows
outflows resulting from foreign currency denomirthteansactions between Tem@edic subsidiaries and their customers and suppler well &
between the TempuPedic subsidiaries themselves. These hedging tamss may not succeed in effectively managing faweign currenc
exchange rate risk. We do not apply hedge accaytdithese contracts. See ITEM 7A under Part thisf report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our management is responsible for our financialestants and has evaluated the accounting poliocidsetused in their preparation. ¢
management believes these policies are reasonatblappropriate. The following discussion identifieese accounting policies that we believe
critical in the preparation of our financial stamts, the judgments and uncertainties affectingapi@ication of those policies and the possibiiitst
materially different amounts will be reported undéferent conditions or using different assumpsion

The preparation of financial statements in confeyriith U.S. GAAP requires that management makenases and assumptions that af
the reported amounts of assets and liabilitiesdisclosure of commitments and contingencies addte of the financial statements and the rep
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negqgtiriod. Our actual results could differ fromgbestimates.

Revenue RecognitiarSales of product are recognized when persuasiderece of an arrangement exists, products argsHipgnd title pass
to customers and the risks and rewards of ownelafgigransferred, the sales price is fixed or dateble, and collectability is reasonably asst
We extend volume discounts to certain customergeiiect these amounts as a reduction of net sales.

Our estimates of sales returns are a critical corapbof our revenue recognition. We recognize salesof estimated returns, when we
our products to customers and the risks and rewafrdsvnership are transferred to them. Estimatdessiaeturns are provided at the time of ¢
based on our level of historical sales returns.alltav returns for up to 90 days following a salepending on the channel and promotion. Our
of sales returns differs by channel, with our Direltannel typically experiencing the highest rdteeturns. Our level of returns has been consi
with our estimates and prior years.
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We do not recognize revenue unless collectab#itieasonably assured at the time of sale. We extiegtlit based on the creditworthines
our customers, and generally no collateral is meguat the time of sale. Our allowance for doub#fttounts is our best estimate of the amou
probable credit losses in our existing accountsivable. We regularly review the adequacy of olavehnce for doubtful accounts. We determine
allowance based on historical writf-experience and current economic conditions @sd consider factors such as customer credit,tpastactio
history with the customer and changes in custonagment terms when determining whether the collactiba receivable is reasonably asst
Historically, less than 1.0% of net sales ultimatptove to be uncollectible. Account balances ararged off against the allowance after
reasonable means of collection have been exhaastkthe potential for recovery is considered remote

Warranties.Cost of sales includes estimated costs to servareanty claims of our customers. Our estimate gbtaon our historical clair
experience and extensive product testing that wiope from time to time. We provide a 3&ar warranty for sales in the North American se
and a 15year warranty for International segment sales otiresses, each prorated. Because the majority rgprmalucts have not been in use by
customers for the full warranty period, we relytbha combination of historical experience and prodesting for the development of our estimate
warranty claims. Our estimate of warranty claimsldde adversely affected if our historical expecie differs materially from the performance
the product in our product testing. We also proad®year warranty on pillows. Estimated future obligas related to these products are provide
charges to operations in the period in which tieted revenue is recognized.

Long-Lived AssetsThe cost of plant and equipment is depreciatedhieystraightine method over the estimated useful lives of akset:
Useful lives are based on historical experience amedadjusted when changes in planned use, tedioaladvances or other factors show tt
different life would be more appropriate. Such soate periodically reviewed for recoverability whinpairment indicators are present. S
indicators include, among other factors, operalisges, unused capacity, market value declinegeafhological obsolescence. Recorded valu
property, plant and equipment that are not expetctdxd recovered through undiscounted future ngt daws are written down to current fair va
which generally is determined from estimated disted future net cash flows (assets held for usegbrealizable value (assets held for sale).

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite Bvare subject to an annual impairment test as d¢bl@c 1 and whenever events
circumstances make it more likely than not thatampent may have occurred. Such tests are compsetearately with respect to the goodwil
each of our reportable business segments. Becaadetrprices of our reporting units are not readilrailable, we make various estimates
assumptions in determining the estimated fair \v&loethose units. Fair value is based on an incepgoach, with an appropriate risk adju
discount rate, and a market approach. Significastimptions inherent in the methodologies are enedl@and include such estimates as disc
rates, growth rates and the selection of peer cagnpaultiples. The use of alternative estimates djusting the discount rate could affect
estimated fair value of the assets and potentiaBult in impairment.

We have determined that our reporting units favation of goodwill are our North American and hn&ional operating segments. The r
recent annual impairment tests performed as ofl@ctt, 2012, indicated that the fair values of eafobur reporting units and trade name (which
an indefinite life) were substantially in excesstledir carrying values. Despite that excess, howeamgairment charges could still be required
divestiture decision were made or other signifieazdnomic event were made or occurred with redpemte of our reporting units. Subsequent tc
October 1, 2012 annual impairment test, no indicegtiof an impairment were identified.

Income Taxes Accounting for income taxes requires recognittbrdeferred tax liabilities and assets for the expa future tax consequen
of events that have been included in the finarst@iements or tax returns. Under this method, ckxfdax assets and liabilities are determined t
on the difference between the financial statemadttax bases of assets and liabilities. These efeaxes are measured by applying the provi
of tax laws in effect at the balance sheet date.

We recognize deferred tax assets in our ConsotidBédance Sheets, and these deferred tax assétallypepresent items deducted curre
from operating income in the financial statemehist will be deducted in future periods in tax ratrA valuation allowance is recorded ag:¢
certain deferred tax assets to reduce the consatdidieferred tax asset to an amount that will, niikedy than not, be realized in future periodse
valuation allowance is based, in part, on our estinof future taxable income, the expected utiliwabf foreign tax loss carryforwards, and
expiration dates of such tax loss carryforwardgnificant assumptions are used in developing ttadyais of future taxable income for purpose
determining the valuation allowance for deferreddasets which, in our opinion, are reasonable uthdecircumstances. At December 31, 201z
have provided valuation allowances for substantill subsidiaries in a cumulative three year logsition.
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Our consolidated effective tax rate and relatedreserves are subject tmcertainties in the application of complex taxulagions fron
numerous tax jurisdictions around the world. Weoggtze liabilities for anticipated taxes in the Uad other tax jurisdictions based on our esti
of whether, and the extent to which, taxes are emad be due. This liability is estimated based eoprescribed recognition threshold
measurement attributes for the financial statemeetignition and measurements of a tax positionntakeexpected to be taken in a tax return.
resolution of tax matters for an amount that igedént than the amount reserved would be recogriizedir effective tax rate during the perioc
which such resolution occurs.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to ITEM 8 under Part Il of this report fofudl description of recent accounting pronounceragimtcluding the expected dates of adoy
and estimated effects on results of operationgiaadcial condition, which is incorporated hereinreference.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Foreign Currency Exposures

Our earnings, as a result of our global operatimd)fanancing activities, are exposed to changdsrigign currency exchange rates, which
adversely affect our results of operations andnfiie position. Should currency rates change shiaquir results could be impacted.

We protect a portion of our currency exchange euposvith foreign currency forward contracts. A d8wisy analysis indicates the potent
loss in fair value on foreign currency forward gawits outstanding at December 31, 2012, resultioy fa hypothetical 10.0% adverse change |
foreign currency exchange rates against the U.8ardds approximately $0.1 million. Such lossesulb be largely offset by gains from -
revaluation or settlement of the underlying asaatsliabilities that are being protected by thefon currency forward contracts.

We do not apply hedge accounting to the foreigmenwy forward contracts used to offset curreredgted changes in the fair value of fore
currency denominated assets and liabilities. Thesgracts are marked-toarket through earnings at the same time that ¥pesed assets a
liabilities are remeasured through earnings.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates. Qir 2@edit Facility has a variable rate. On Augus2®L1, we entered into a new forgal
interest rate swap agreement to manage interetst aond the risk of changing interest rates assettiafith a portion of the borrowings outstanc
under our 2011 Credit Facility. Under this swap,peg at a fixed rate and receive payments at aliagrirate. The swap effectively fixes the floa
LIBOR-based interest rate to 1.25% on $250.0 mmllid our outstanding LIBORased debt as of December 31, 2012, with the mulistg balanc
declining over time. The interest rate swap expimeecember 30, 2015. We select the LIBdged rate on the hedged portion of our outsta
LIBOR-based debt during the term of the swap. The effeqtortion of the change in value of the swap flecéed as a component of comprehen
income and recognized as Interest expense, netyasents are paid or accrued. The remaining galossrin excess of the cumulative change it
present value of the future cash flows of the hddgam, if any (i.e., the ineffective portion) oedge components excluded from the assessm
effectiveness are recognized as Interest expeasduning the current period.
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Interest rate changes generally do not affechitheket value of such debt but do impact the amotiour interest payments and theref
our future earnings and cash flows, assuming dtetors are held constant. On December 31, 2012 giving effect to our interest rate sv
agreement, we had variablate debt of approximately $400.0 million. Holdiother variables constant, including levels of indebess, a ol
hundred basis point increase in interest ratesunrvariablerate debt would cause an estimated reduction ioniecbefore income taxes for the r
year of approximately $4.0 millio

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The financial statements required by this itemiackided in Part IV, ITEM 15 of this report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation was performed under the supervisiot with the participation of our management, inalgdour Chief Executive Offici
(principal executive officer) and Chief FinancidtfiCer (principal financial officer), of the effeégeness of our disclosure controls and procedas
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 158¢e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded (Exchange Act), as of the end of the geavere
by this report. Based on that evaluation, our manamnt, including our Chief Executive Officer andi€hFinancial Officer, concluded that ¢
disclosure controls and procedures were effectivefddecember 31, 2012, and designed to ensurénfioatmation required to be disclosed by u
reports that we file or submit under the Exchangg A recorded, processed, summarized and repaithih the time periods specified in the r
and forms of the Securities and Exchange Commisamaithat such information is accumulated and conicated to our management, including
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officess appropriate to allow timely decisions regagdiequired disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as defined in Rules 13&(f)
and 15d15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934armended. Our internal control over financial réipgris designed to provide reason:
assurance regarding the reliability of financigboring and the preparation of financial statemédatsexternal purposes in accordance with
GAAP.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Therefore, even tl
systems determined to be effective can provide mdgonable assurance of achieving their contijekcties.

Our management assessed the effectiveness oftetmahcontrol over financial reporting as of Det®mn31, 2012. In making this assessn
our management used the criteria set forth by tha@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ammission (COSO) imternal Contro-
Integrated Framewor|. Based on our assessment and those criteria, meuesg believes that we maintained effective intecoatrol over financic
reporting as of December 31, 2012.

Our independent registered public accounting fimst & Young LLP, has issued a report on the Camgfginternal control over financ
reporting as of December 31, 2012. That report afgpen page 53 of this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have not been any changes in our internaraoaver financial reporting during the quarterded December 31, 2012 that h
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenilly affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tempur-Bdic International Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited Tempur-Pedic International Inc. @mbsidiariesinternal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2012, based on crit
established in Internal Controllrtegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissitie
COSO criteria). Tempur-Pedic International Inc. &ubsidiariesmanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financi
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectigsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying “Managemsmnnua
Report on Internal Control Over Financial ReportinQur responsibility is to express an opinion &, tompanys internal control over financ
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@q@nited States). Those standards ret
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtnassurance about whether effective internakabaver financial reporting was maintainec
all material respects. Our audit included obtainamgunderstanding of internal control over finahc@porting, assessing the risk that a mat
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the desidroperating effectiveness of internal controkldasn the assessed risk, and performing such
procedures as we considered necessary in the gtanoes. We believe that our audit provides a redse basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is aogess designed to provide reasonable assurancelirggahe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeagtepted accounting principles. A company’
internal control over financial reporting includie®se policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheéaraintenance of records that, in reasonablely
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions aigpositions of the assets of the company; (2) ideveasonable assurance that transactior
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ofiflahstatements in accordance with generally gedepccounting principles, and that receipts
expenditures of the company are being made onbcaordance with authorizations of management arettdirs of the company; and (3) pro\
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opdhstion of the compang’assets that could h:

a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or détenisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods angect to the risk that controls may become inadégbecause of changes in conditions, or th:
degree of compliance with the policies or procesunay deteriorate.

In our opinion, TempuPRedic International Inc. and Subsidiaries main@ime all material respects, effective internal ttohover financial reportin
as of December 31, 2012, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@wnited States), the consolidated bal:
sheets of TempuPedic International Inc. and Subsidiaries as ofdbdmer 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consedidstatements of incon
comprehensive income, stockholdezguity, and cash flows for each of the three yeathe period ended December 31, 2012 and our tegadiate
February 1, 2013, expressed an unqualified opittiereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
February 1, 2013

53




Table of Content
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item is incorpedtherein by reference from our definitive proxgteiment for the 2013 Annual Meetinc
Stockholders (the Proxy Statement) under the sectientitted “Proposal One—Election of Directorsyida“Board of Directors’Meetings
Committees of the Board and Related Matters—Cotpof@overnance,” — "Committees of the Board,” Peficies Governing Direct

Nominations” and “Executive Compensation and Related Infdioma—Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportingngpliance.”

Information relating to executive officers is inporated herein by reference from our Proxy Staté¢mader the section entitled "Propc
One—Election of Directors—Executive Officers."

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorpadtby reference from the Proxy Statement undersiwions entitled Executive
Compensation and Related Information” and “BoardDifectors’ Meetings, Committees of the Board anedlafed Matters-Sompensatic
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

For information required by S-K 201(d) refer to IWIE5 under Part Il of this report.

All other information required by this Item is impmrated by reference from the Proxy Statement wtigesection entitledPrincipal Securit
Ownership and Certain Beneficial Owners.”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorpedtby reference from the Proxy Statement under sinetion entitled Executive
Compensation and Related Information—Certain Ralatips and Related Transactions” aBddrd of Directors' Meetings, Committees of
Board and Related matters—Directors’ Independence.”

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorpetby reference from the Proxy Statement underséfations entitled “Proposal Twe
Ratification of Independent Auditors—Fees for Inelegent Auditors During Fiscal Year Ended Decemhkr 213" and “—Policy on Audi
Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Sees of Independent Auditor.”
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

@)

1. Financial statement
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registdpeithlic Accounting Firn
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@iecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomtnéoyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&81 2011
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 20t1201(
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the y&ailed December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem:

2. Financial Statement Schedu
Schedule —Valuation of Qualifying Accounts and Resen

All other schedules have been omitted becauseateinapplicable, not required, or the informat®mcluded elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements or notes the
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3. Exhibits:

The following is an index of the exhibits includiecdthis report or incorporated herein by reference.

EXHIBIT INDEX

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of Septe@he2012 (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Regist’s Current Report on Forn-K as filec
on September 27, 20141

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatibi@mpu-Pedic International Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 tonandment No. 3 to tl
Registrar’s registration statement on Fori-1 (File No. 33-109798) as filed on December 12, 20(1)

3.2 Fourth Amended and Restated By-laws of Tenfadic International Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1 tetRegistrans Current Report on Fol
8-K as filed on March 11, 201C(®)

4.1 Specimen certificate for shares of commonks{fited as Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 3 to thedistrants registration statement
Form ¢-1 (File No. 33-109798) as filed on December 12, 20((

4.2 Indenture dated as of December 19, 2012 (filedxdshiE 4.1 to the Registra’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on December 1
2012).™

4.3 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of Decerh®e2012 (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Regist’s Current Report on Forn-K as filec

on December 19, 2012

10.1 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, deteaf June 28, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Regi’s Current Report on Formkg-as
filed on June 29, 2011

10.2 Amendment No. 2 dated December 12, 2012, to thtaineAmended and Restated Credit Agreement dated dune 28, 201

10.3 Commitment Letter dated September 26, 202l @s Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s CurreripRrt on Form 8< as filed on Septemb
27,2012)™

10.4 Letter Agreement dated as of September 28, Bétween Sealy Holding LLC and TemgReseic International Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.:
the Registrar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on October 30, 2011

10.5 Credit Agreement dated as of December 12, 2018d(fds Exhibit 10.1 to the Registr's Current Report on Form-K as filed or
December 12, 20121

10.6 Purchase Agreement dated December 12, 2012 (fldekhibit 10.1 to the Registré s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on Decemb
19, 2012)D

10.7 Escrow and Security Agreement dated as oeiber 19, 2012 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Regidts Current Report on Formi8-as
filed on December 19, 201

10.8 Bond Purchase Agreement, dated October 26, 200&ndyamong Tempur World LLC, Tempur Production US#g. and Bernalill
County (filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Regist’'s Annual Report on Form -K as filed on March 14, 200€®)

10.9 Trust Indenture, dated September 1, 2005, by atwiclem Bernalillo County and The Bank of New Yorlugr Company, N.A., as Trus
(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registr’s Annual Report on Form -K as filed on March 14, 200€®)

10.10 Mortgage, Assignment, Security Agreement and Féxtliling, dated as of October 27, 2005, by and betwBernalillo County ai
Tempur Production USA, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 1@o7the Registra’s Annual Report on Form -K as filed on March 14, 200€®)

10.11 Lease Agreement, dated September 1, 200&ndpetween Bernalillo County and Tempur Prodacti&A, Inc .(filed as Exhibit 10.3 1
the Registrar's Annual Report on Form -K as filed on March 14, 200€®)

10.12  Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan (fdedExhibit 10.1 to the Registr’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed o
July 28, 2010) ()

10.13  Tempu-Pedic International Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plafeffias Exhibit 10.5 to the Registr's registration statement on Forr-4 (File
No. 33:-10905:-02) as filed on September 23, 20()

10.14 Amended and Restated Tempur-Pedic Intemdtimc. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as ApgenB to the Registrans’ Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A (File No.-31922) as filed on March 25, 200

10.15 First Amendment to the Amended and Rest2®38 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix Atte Registrang Registration Pro»
Statement on Schedule 14A (File No. -31922) as filed on March 25, 200 (2)

10.16  Tempu-Pedic International Inc. Loi-term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thegitran's Current Report on Forn-K as filed o1
February 19, 2010 @

10.17 Amended and Restated Annual Incentive Bonus Plaisémior Executives (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thegitran's Quarterly Report ¢
Form 1(-Q as filed on April 27, 20104 @

10.18 Tempur-Pedic International Inc. 2003 Empéogtock Purchase Plan (filed as Exhibit No. 10dl8mendment No. 3 to the Registrant’
registration statement on Forr-1 (File No. 33-109798) filed with the Commission on December 113).(1) @)

10.19 Employment and Noncompetition AgreementdiateJune 30, 2008, between TemPpadic International Inc. and Mark Sarvary (file(
Exhibit 10.1 to Registra’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on June 30, 200¢%) (@)

10.20 Employment Agreement dated as of July 18, 2006 éetmi empl-Pedic International Inc. and Richard Anderson dfites Exhibit 10.1 1
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed November 7, 200¢2) (2)

10.21 Employment and Noncompetition Agreementdiateof December 1, 2004, between Tenfpedlic International Inc. and Matthew D. C
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registr’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on December 2, 2001 (2

10.22 Employment and Non-Competition Agreemenabg between TempwRedic International Inc. and Lou Hedrick Jones dlat® of June
2009) (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registi's Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on July 27, 200¢) ()

10.23  Employment Agreement dated September 12, 2003 gaegtWwempur International Limited and David Montgoyngiled as Exhibit 10.1
to Amendment No. 1 to the Registr's registration statement on Fori-4 ((File No. 33-10905«02) as filed on October 31, 2001 (2)

10.24  Employment and Nc-Competition Agreement by and between Ter-Pedic International Inc. and Brad Patrick datedfaSeptember
2010) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registi's Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on October 28, 201(1) (@

10.25 Amended and Restated Employment Agreemeed ddarch 5, 2008 by and among Tempedic International Inc., Tempur World, L
and Dale E. Williams (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to R&gan’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed March 7, 2008(%) (2

10.26 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the32Bquity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.9 ted#strant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q as filed August 8, 2006M) @)

10.27  Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Amendedi Restated 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (EVP) (figsdExhibit 9.1 to Registre's



10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31
10.32
10.33
10.34
10.35
10.36
10.37
10.38
10.39
211

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

101

Current Report on Form-K as filed on May 19, 2008®) (2)

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Amended Restated 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (Directoiledf as Exhibit 10.40 -
Registrar’s Annual Report on Form -K as filed on February 12, 2009'® ()

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Unitedg€iom Approved Share Option Sub Plan to the 2003t§¢ncentive Plan (filed ¢
Exhibit 10.1 to Registra’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on April 30, 20091 (2)

Form of Performance Restricted Stock UniafdwAgreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registis Current Report on Formkas filec
on February 19, 2010 ()

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreeindited as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’'s Cutr&®eport on Form & as filed on Februa
19, 2010)M @

Form of Stock Option Agreement ((filed as Exhibit4 to the Registra’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on February 19, 201(®)
@

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Amended Restated 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (Directoiledf as Exhibit 10.2 f
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on July 28, 201(() (2)

Stock Option Agreement dated as of Marci2024 between TempuRedic International Inc. and Nancy F. Koehn (filesdExhibit 10.1 t
the Registrar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on May 17, 2004®) @)

Option Agreement dated as of December 1, 2004 leEtWwempu-Pedic International Inc. and Matthew D. Clift (fllas Exhibit 10.2 to tt
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on December 2, 2001 (2)

Stock Option Agreement dated June 28, 2006 betwWweempu-Pedic International Inc. and David Montgomery (filas Exhibit 10.7
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed August 8, 2006(1) (2)

Stock Option Agreement dated June 28, 2@@%den TempuPRedic International Inc. and Dale E. Williams (ilas Exhibit 10.8 t
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed August 8, 20064 @)

Stock Option Agreement dated February 58 28ween TempuPedic International, Inc. and Richard Andersoregfias Exhibit 10.2
Registrar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q as filed on May 6, 2008)(1) @)

Stock Option Agreement dated June 30, 2008 betwlesnpu-Pedic International Inc. and Mark Sarvary (filed Eshibit 10.2 t
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K as filed on June 30, 200¢%) (@)

Subsidiaries of Temp-Pedic International Inc

Consent of Ernst & Young LLF

Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursudntSecurities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and1¥gd), as adopted pursuant to Sec
302 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuatt Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and1¥gd), as adopted pursuant to Sec
302 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and ChiEinancial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectio®,3as adopted pursuant to Sec
906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002()

The following materials from Tempur-Pedic migional Inc.'s Annual Report on Form KOfor the year ended December 31, 2
formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reportinghgaage): (i) the Consolidated Statements of Incdif)ethe Consolidated Balan
Sheets, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Stolcldrs' Equity, (iv) the Consolidated Statemerft€ash Flows, and (v) the Notes
the Consolidated Financial Statements, taggedaak®bf text.

@ Incorporated by reference.

(@ Indicates management contract or compensataryqi arrangement.

® This exhibit shall not be deemed “filetr purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exglafict of 1934 or otherwise subject to the lialggtof tha
Section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated bgregfce in any filings under the Securities Act 883 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, whi
made before or after the date hereof and irresgeofiany general incorporation language in angds.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereualtyp authorized.

TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL, INC.
(Registrant)

February 1, 201 By: /s/ MARK SARVARY

Mark Sarvary
President and Chief Executive Officel
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblptihe following persons on the 1st of
February, 2013, on behalf of the registrant anthéncapacities indicated.

Signature

Capacity

/SI MARK SARVARY

Mark Sarvary

/S/ DALE E. WILLIAMS

Dale E. Williams

/S/ BHASKAR RAO

Bhaskar Rao

/S/ FRANCIS A. DOYLE

Francis A. Doyle

/S/ EVELYN S. DILSAVER

Evelyn S. Dilsaver

/S/ PETER K. HOFFMAN

Peter K. Hoffman

/S/ JOHN A. HEIL

John A. Heil

/S/ NANCY F. KOEHN

Nancy F. Koehn

/S/ SIR PAUL JUDGE

Sir Paul Judge

/S/ CHRISTOPHER A. MAST(

Christopher A. Masto

/S/ P. ANDREWS MCLANE

P. Andrews McLane

/S/ ROBERT B. TRUSSELL, JF

Robert B. Trussell, Jr.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tempur-Bdic International Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Tempudredic International Inc. and Subsidiaries as ofdbdwer 31, 2012 al
2011, and the related consolidated statementscofrie, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity,cash flows for each of the three years ii
period ended December 31, 2012. Our audits aldoded the financial statement schedule listed énitfdex at Iltem 15(a). These financial staten
and schedule are the responsibility of the Compamanagement. Our responsibility is to express @nian on these financial statements
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlo(United States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaigiments are free of material misstatemen
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidenpgorting the amounts and disclosures in thenfiih statements. An audit also includes asse
the accounting principles used and significantnestés made by management, as well as evaluatingvirall financial statement presentation.
believe that our audits provide a reasonable Basizur opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referr@ébove present fairly, in all material respedig, ¢onsolidated financial position of TemRedic
International Inc. and Subsidiaries at Decembe812 and 2011, and the consolidated results af tperations and their cash flows for each o
three years in the period ended December 31, 201&nformity with U.S. generally accepted accoogtprinciples. Also, in our opinion, the rela
financial statement schedule, when consideredlatioe to the basic financial statements taken ahale, presents fairly in all material respect
information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bod&United States), Tempuedic
International Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal cohtrver financial reporting as of December 31, 20d#5ed on criteria established in Internal Control
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ofmSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissioth @aur report dated February 1, 2(
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
February 1, 2013
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in millions, except per common share amounts)

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Net sales $ 1,402.¢ $ 1,417¢ $ 1,105.
Cost of sale: 688.: 674.¢ 550.(
Gross profit 714.¢ 743.1 555.
Selling and marketing expens 319.1 276.¢ 199.
General, administrative and other exper 147 .2 125.7% 109.¢
Operating incomu 248.: 340.t 245.¢
Other expense, ne
Interest expense, n (18.§) (11.9 (14.5)
Other expense, n (0.9 (0.2) (0.5)
Total other expens (29.7) (12.3 (15.0
Income before income tax 229.2 328.¢ 230.¢
Income tax provision 122.¢ 108.¢ 73.
Net income $ 106.6 3 219.6 % 157..
Earnings per common sha
Basic $ 174 $ 3271 $ 2.2¢
Diluted $ 1.7C $ 3.1 $ 2.1¢€
Weighted average common shares outstan:
Basic 61.5 67.1 70.3
Diluted 62.¢ 69.1 72.¢

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financek8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions)
Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010
Net income $ 106.£ $ 219.6 % 157.2
Other comprehensive income (losbefore tax:
Foreign currency translatioadjustments, net of tax
$(2.7) in 2012 8.2 (7.8 .5
Derivative instruments accounted for as hedgeaspine
reclassification adjustments and net of tax(6{®,
$(0.5) and $2.1, respectively (1.7) (0.7) 3.3
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 7.1 (8.5) 1.8
Comprehensive income $ 113¢ 3 2111 $ 159.(

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeBtents are an integral part of these statements.
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except per share amounts)

December 31 December 31
2012 2011
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 179. $ 111.
Accounts receivable, n 129. 142.
Inventories 93. 91.
Receivable from escro 375. —
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 41. 20.
Deferred income taxe 2. 14.
Total Current Asset 821. 379.
Property, plant and equipment, | 186. 160.
Goodwill 216. 213.
Other intangible assets, r 63. 66.
Deferred income taxe 10. 9.
Other nor-current asset 16. 9.
Total Asset: $ 1,313. $ 838.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 85. $ 69.
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 84. 76.
Deferred income taxe 26. 0.
Income taxes payab 15. 20.
Total Current Liabilities 212. 167.
Long-term deb 1,025. 585.
Deferred income taxe 31. 33.
Other non-current liabilities 22. 21.
Total Liabilities 1,290. 807.
Commitments and contingenc—see Note 1.
Stockholders' Equit
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 300.0 shares aattthrD9.2 shares issued as of December 31, 2C
and 2011 1. 1.
Additional paid in capita 379. 361.
Retained earninc 849. 742.
Accumulated other comprehensive Ii (7.) (14.)
Treasury stock at cost; 39.5 and 35.4 shares Beaémber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (1,199.) (1,059.)
Total Stockholder Equity 22. 30.
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 1313. $ 838.

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeBtents are an integral part of these statements
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in millions)

Common Shares

Treasury Shares

Accumulated

Additional Other
Shares Shares Paid in Retained Comprehensive
Issued At Par Issued At Cost Capital Earnings Loss Total
Balance, December 31, 20C 992 % 1.C 241 $ (4859 $ 298¢ $ 365.7 $ 8.0 $ 172.%
Comprehensive incom
Net income 157.2 157.Z
Derivative instrumentaccounte
for as
hedges, net of reclassificatiot
adjustment: 3.3 3.3
Foreign currency adjustmer (1.5) (1.5)
Total comprehensive incor 157.2 1.8 159.(
Purchase of nc-controlling interes (1.5) (1.5)
Exercise of stock optior (1.9 22.7 6.4 29.1
Tax adjustments related to stock
compensatiol 5.€ 5.€
Treasury stock repurchas 8.5 (250.0 (250.0
Amortization of unearned stock-
based compensation 11.€ 11.€
Balance, December 31, 201 992 % 1.C 307 $ (7126 $ 320¢ $ 522.¢ 3 6.2 $ 126.(
Comprehensive incom
Net income 219.¢€ 219.¢
Derivative instruments account
for as
hedges, net of reclassificiatio
adjustment: (0.7) (0.7)
Foreign currency adjustmer (7.8) (7.8)
Total comprehensive incor 219.¢ (8.5) 211.]
Purchase of nc-controlling interes
Exercise of stock optior (1.8) 21.c 5.C 26.3
Tax adjustments related to stock
compensatiol 19.2 19.2
Treasury stock repurchas 6.5 (368.5) (368.5)
Amortization of unearned sto-
based compensation 16.7 16.7
Balance, December 31, 201 992 $ 1.C 354 $ (1,059.9 $ 361.¢ $ 7425 $ (14.7) $ 30.¢
Comprehensive incom
Net income 106.¢ 106.¢
Derivative instruments acount
for as
hedges, net of tax of $(0. 1.3 1.1
Foreign currency adjustments,
of tax of
$(2.7) 8.2 8.2
Total comprehensive incor 106.¢ 7.1 113.¢
Exercise of stock optior (0.9 10.4 1.C 11.4
Tax adjustments related to stc
compensatiol 10.t 10.t
Treasury stock repurchas 5.0 (150.0 (150.0
Amortization of unearned sto-
based compensation 5.7 5.7
Balance December 31, 201 99.2 1.C 395 $ (1,199 $ 379.C $ 849 $ (76) $ 22.%

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeBtents are an integral part of these statements.
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of stoc-based compensatic
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Bad debt expens
Deferred income taxe
Foreign currency adjustments and ot
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neftfetts of acquired
businesses
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and ott
Income taxes payable

Net cash provided by operating activit

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipn
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Other

Net cash used in investing activiti

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor-term revolving credit facility
Repayments of lor-term revolving credit facility
Payment of deferred financing co
Proceeds from issuance of common sl
Excess tax benefit from stock based compens,
Treasury stock repurchas
Other

Net cash used in financing activiti

NET EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CA:
EQUIVALENTS

Increase in cash and cash equival

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid during the period fi
Interest
Income taxes, net of refun

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkeBtents are an integral part of these statements.
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Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

$ 106.¢€ 219.€ 157.2
36.c 34.: 324

5.7 16.7 11.€

1.4 1.C 0.7

2.5 1.6 0.5

38.4 (8.5) 4.8

2.1 1.2 (0.5)

11.€ (30.2) (12.6)

0.1 (18.5) (6.7)

(29.4) 2.9) (6.5)

14.2 21.7 (1.1)

5.1 3. (0.4)

(5.2) 8.7 4.8

189.¢ 248. 184.1

(50.E (29.5) (18.1)

45 (4.6) (18.9)

— 2.0) 0.7)

(55.0 (36.1) (7.5

352.( 821.F 308.¢

(287.0 (643.5) (197.9)

2.9 (6.2) —

11.4 26.7 28.€

10. 19.2 5.6

(152.6) (365.¢ (250.0

(2.8) (0.3 (1.6)

(70.6) (148.9) (106.9)

3.8 (5.9 (0.6)

67.¢ 57.¢ 39.€

1114 53.€ 14.C

$ 179.: 111 ./ 53.¢
$ 37.1 8.C 13.6
$ 80.1 84.2 63.C
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation and Description of Busin@ssnpurPedic International Inc., a Delaware corporatiogether with its subsidiaries
a U.S. based, multinational company. The term “Temfpedic International” refers to Tempur-Pedic ing&ional Inc. only, and the term “Company”
refers to TempuPRedic International Inc. and its consolidated dlibsies. Tempur World, Inc. was formed on Januarn2@d00 to combine ti
manufacturing facilities and the global distributicapabilities of all TEMPUR products, and Tempwedic International Inc. was formed in 200
acquire Tempur World, Inc. This acquisition (“Temgcquisition”) was effective as of November 1, 200

The Company manufactures, markets and sells prediociuding pillows, mattresses and other relateipcts. The Company manufactt
essentially all its pressure-relieving TEMPGRproducts at three manufacturing facilities, withedoncated in Denmark and two in the U.S.
Company has sales distribution subsidiaries opegyati North America, Europe, Asia Pacific and SoAtherica and has third party distribut
arrangements in certain other countries whereasdmt have subsidiaries. The Company sells itdyats through four sales channels: Retail, Di
Healthcare and Third party.

The Company reclassified certain accrued expensg®ther current liabilities to other nanwrent liabilities and current deferred income
assets and non-current deferred income tax lisdsilito noneurrent deferred tax assets and current deferreatrie tax liabilities to conform to t
2012 presentation of consolidated financial stateémeThis change does not materially impact preslioweported subtotals or totals within
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statementarigrprevious period presented.

(b) Basis of ConsolidatiorThe accompanying financial statements include toeants of TempuPedic International and its subsidiaries.
subsidiaries are whollgwned. Intercompany balances and transactions hese eliminated. As of December 31, 2012, the Compl@es not ho
any interest in variable-interest entities.

(c) Use of EstimateS he preparation of financial statements in conftymiith United States Generally Accepted Accountirinciples (U.S.
GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assastit affect the reported amounts of assetsiabititles and disclosure of conting
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstatements and the reported amounts of revenukgxgenses during the reporting period. Ac
results could differ from those estimates. The Camys results are affected by economic, political, dkdive, regulatory and legal actic
Economic conditions, such as recessionary trenflation, interest and monetary exchange ratesegouent fiscal policies and changes in the p
of raw materials, can have a significant effecbperations. While the Company maintains reserveariticipated liabilities and carries various le
of insurance, the Company could be affected by, @rviminal, regulatory or administrative actiomtaims or proceedings.

(d) Foreign CurrencyAssets and liabilities of nob-S. subsidiaries, whose functional currency islttoal currency, are translated into U
dollars at periodend exchange rates. Income and expense itemsamdated at the average rates of exchange prayallinng the period. Tl
adjustments resulting from translating the finahstatements of foreign subsidiaries are includeddcumulated other comprehensive loss (“OCL”
a component of stockholdersquity, and included in net earnings only upon saldiquidation of the underlying foreign subsidiaor affiliatec
company. Foreign currency transaction gains anseksare recognized in net earnings based on diffesebetween foreign exchanges rates o
transaction date and on the settlement date.

(e) Derivative Financial Instrument§he Company is required to recognize all of its\wdgive instruments as either assets or liabilitiethe
consolidated balance sheets at fair value. Theuwsnticg for changes in the fair value (i.e., gaimndasses) of a derivative instrument depend
whether it has been designated, and is effective, lsedge and further, on the type of hedgingiogiship. For those derivative instruments tha
designated and qualify as hedging instruments,napeny must designate the hedging instrument, baged the exposure being hedged, as :
value hedge, cash flow hedge or a hedge of a mestment in a foreign operation. Gains and lossk¢ed to a hedge are either recognized in in
immediately to offset the gain or loss on the heldigem or are deferred and reported as a compafiedcumulated OCL in stockholders' equity
subsequently recognized in net income when the debitgm affects net income. The change in fair e#alfithe ineffective portion of a financ
instrument is recognized in net income immediat&éhe gain or loss related to financial instrumehtt are not designated as hedges are recog
immediately in net income.
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are used in thenmal course of business to manage interest ratécaeign currency exchange risks. Cr
risk is managed through the selection of soundnfifad institutions as counterparties. The Compaogsdnot apply hedge accounting to the for
currency forward contracts used to offset curremtgted changes in the fair value of foreign curyedenominated assets and liabilities. T!
contracts are marked-to-market through earnings.

(f) Cash and Cash EquivalentSash and cash equivalents consist of all highlyidignvestments with initial maturities of three ntlos or

less.
(g) InventoriesInventories are stated at the lower of cost or miaudetermined by the first-in, first-out methodiaonsist of the following:
December 31
(in millions) 2012 2011
Finished good $ 68t $ 65.4
Work-in-process 7.9 9.1
Raw materials and supplies 16.€ 16.7

$ 93.C $ 91.2

(h)Property, Plant and EquipmerRroperty, plant and equipment are carried at dost@uisition date and are depreciated using tiaéght-
line method over their estimated useful lives diefes:

Estimated
Useful Lives
Buildings 25-30 year
Computer equipment and softw: 3-5 year:
Leasehold improvemen 4-7 year:
Machinery equipmer 3-7 year:
Office furniture and fixture 5-7 year:

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shoft the life of the lease or seven years. The @om allocates depreciation
amortization to cost of sales and within each iiem of operating expenses.

(i) Long-Lived Assetd.ong-ived assets are reviewed for impairment wheneven&s or changes in circumstances indicate thataneying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Reduiligraf long-lived assets is assessed by a comparison of thd@maamount of the asset to
estimated future undiscounted net cash flows ergettt be generated by the asset or group of assetdimated future undiscounted net cash f
are less than the carrying amount of the assetoupgof assets, the asset is considered impair@darexpense is recorded in an amount requil
reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its faervalue. Fair value generally is determinechirestimated discounted future net cash flows
assets held for use) or net realizable value @esets held for sale).
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

() Goodwill and Other Intangible Assetatangible assets with finite useful lives are atzed over their respective estimated useful lita
their estimated residual values and reviewed fguaiimment whenever events or changes in circumssaindécate an impairment may have occul
The Company performs an annual impairment testlloexeting goodwill and other indefinite lived &ts on October 1 of each year and wher
events or circumstances make it more likely thantiat impairment may have occurred. The Companieweed goodwill for impairment based
its identified reporting units, which include th@i@panys North American and International operating segmdn conducting the impairment t
the fair value of each of the Compasyeporting units is compared to its respectiveyd@g amount including goodwill. If the fair valiexceeds tF
carrying amount, then no impairment exists. If tagrying amount exceeds the fair value, furthedyaig is performed to assess impairment.
Companys determination of fair value of the reporting arig based on an income approach, with an apptepigk adjusted discount rate, ar
market approach. Any identified impairment woulduk in an adjustment to the Compasnyesults of operations. The Company also tes
indefinite-lived intangible assets, principallydeamarks, for impairment using a “relief-from-roydlimethod. Significant assumptions inherent ir
methodologies are employed and include such estgrat royalty and discount rates. The Company meeid its annual impairment test of good
and indefinitelived intangible assets in 2012, 2011 and 2010erafrwhich resulted in the recognition of impairmeharges. For further informati
on goodwill and other intangible assets see Not&dodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.

(k) Accrued Sales Return§he Company allows product returns up to 90 dailleviing a sale through certain sales channels andestai
products. Estimated sales returns are provideHeatiine of sale based on historical sales chamtetn rates. The level of sales returns differ
channel with the Direct channel typically experi@gcthe highest rate of return. Estimated futurkgaltions related to these products are provide
a reduction of sales in the period in which theerawe is recognized. Accrued sales returns aredadlun accrued expenses and other ctL
liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Baksheets.

The Company had the following activity foresaketurns from December 31, 2010 to December(B12:2

(in millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 4.4
Amounts accrue 48.€
Returns charged to accrual g47.7)

Balance as of December 31, 2( 5.2
Amounts accrue 45.4
Returns charged to accrual (45.9)

Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 5.1

() Warranties. The Company provides a 25-year warranty for Nortlmefican sales and a ¥®ar warranty for International sales
mattresses, each prorated. The Company also psogi@gear warranty on pillows. Estimated future obligas related to these products are che
to cost of sales in the period in which the relatedenue is recognized. Estimates of warranty esgem@re based primarily on historical cl
experience and product testing. Warranties aresdiedl in accrued expenses and other current liailin the accompanying Consolidated Bali
Sheets.

The Company had the following activity for warrastfrom December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2012:

(in millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 4.1
Amounts accrue 5.2
Warranties charged to accrt (5.9

Balance as of December 31, 2( 4.3
Amounts accrue 6.C
Warranties charged to accrt g5.E)

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 4.8
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TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(m) Income TaxesDeferred tax assets and liabilities are recognifpedthe future tax consequences attributable topteary difference
between the financial statement carrying amounexgiting assets and liabilities and their respectax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilitie
measured using enacted tax rates expected to pfalyable income in the years in which those tamyadifferences are expected to be recover
settled. Deferred tax assets are also recognizettidcestimated future effects of tax loss carryirds. The effect of changes in tax rates on det
taxes is recognized in the period in which the &maat dates change. Valuation allowances are éstabl when necessary on a jurisdictional ba:
reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expertelrealized. The Company accounts for unceftagign and domestic tax positions utilizin
proscribed recognition threshold and measuremdribates for the financial statement recognitiord aneasurement of a tax position takei
expected to be taken in a tax return.

(n) Revenue RecognitioBales of products are recognized when persuasideree of an arrangement exists, products are stippd titl
passes to customers and the risks and rewards rérehip are transferred, the sales price is fixedeberminable, and collectability is reason:
assured. The Company extends volume discountsrtairteustomers and reflects these amounts asuetied of sales. The Company also ref
sales net of tax assessed by qualifying governrhenthorities. The Company extends credit basedhencreditworthiness of its customers.
collateral is required on sales made in the noroatse of business.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Compsigst estimate of the amount of probable creditds in the Comparsg/existing accoun
receivable. The Company regularly reviews the adegwf its allowance for doubtful accounts. The @amy determines the allowance base
historical writeoff experience and current economic conditions alsd considers factors such as customer credit, trassaction history with tl
customer and changes in customer payment terms gdtermining whether the collection of a receivableeasonably assured. Account balance
charged off against the allowance after all reaEnmeans of collection have been exhausted angdteatial for recovery is considered remote.
allowance for doubtful accounts included in acceuetceivable, net in theaccompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets was $#li@mand $6.¢
million as of December 31, 2012 and 201rkspectively.

The Company reflects all amounts billed to custatier shipping and handling in net sales and tlescimcurred from shipping and hand
product in cost of sales. Amounts included in reé¢s for shipping and handling were approximately@3$nillion, $6.0 million and $6.1 million fi
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 264eactively. Amounts included in cost of salesdhoipping and handling were $99.7 milli
$101.2 million and $87.7 million for the years edd@ecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

(o) Cost of Sales Costs associated with net sales are recordedshaf sales. Cost of sales includes the costeadiving, producing
inspecting, warehousing, insuring, and shippingdgoduring the period, as well as depreciation andrazation of longhved assets used in the
processes.

(p)Sales promotions and incentiveAt the time of sale, the Company records an egérfor sales promotion and incentive costs. Exat
of sales promotion and incentive programs incluaghadiscounts, funds for promotional and markaviies, volumebased incentive programs
other sales discounts and promotional programscéstomer incentives that must be earned, the Coynpeakes estimates related to the contra
terms, customer performance and sales volume tordete the total amounts earned. The expense bfagram is classified either as a reduc
from revenues and presented within net sales, @ @mponent of selling and market expenses, iratttempanying Consolidated Statemen
Income.

(q) Advertising CostsThe Company expenses advertising costs as incexegpt for production costs and advance paymeritshware
deferred and expensed when advertisements rumndofirst time. Direct response advance paymentsieferred and amortized over the life of
program. Advertising costs are included in sellmgl marketing expenses in the accompanying ComgetidStatements of Income. Advertising ¢
charged to expense were $164.5 million, $148.8ioniland $96.6 million for the years ended Decenfier2012, 2011 and 2010, respectiv
Advertising costs include expenditures for shatmbebetising costs that the Company reimburses ttoowers under its integrated advertising prog
These obligations are accrued and expensed wheel#ted revenues are recognized. Advertising aefesred and included in prepaid expense:!
other current assets in the accompanying ConsetidBalance Sheets were $8.2 million and $9.1 milks of December 31, 2012 and 2!
respectively.
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(r) Research and Development Expenstssearch and development expenses for new prodretexpensed as they are incurred
included in general, administrative and other egpenin the accompanying Consolidated Statemenbscofme. Research and development «
charged to expense were approximately $15.6 mjlligh9 million and $7.4 million for the years endBécember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2(
respectively.

(s) Stock-Based Compensatiorhe Company accounts for stobksed payment transactions in which the Compangives employe
services in exchange for (a) equity instrumentefCompany or (b) liabilities that are based anfdir value of the Comparg/equity instruments
that may be settled by the issuance of such equiéttyuments. Stock-based compensation cost foricgst stock units (“RSUs”)performanc
restricted stock units (“PRSUs”) and deferred stooks (“DSUs”) is measured based on the closingrfearket value of the Comparsycommo
stock on the date of grant. Stock-based compemsatist for stock options is estimated at the gdate based on each option’'s fastue a
calculated by the Black-Scholes option-pricing mModée Company recognizes stoblised compensation cost as expense for awardstb#reit:
PRSUs ratably on a straight-line basis over theisi#tg service period. The Company recognizes shasded compensation cost associated wi
PRSUs over the requisite service period if it ishable that the performance conditions will bessigtil. The Company will recognize a benefit fi
stockbased compensation in equity if an incrementalbexefit is realized by following the ordering preigins of the tax law. Further informat
regarding stock-based compensation can be fouNdta 10, “Stock-Based Compensation.”

(t) Treasury StockThe Board of Directors may authorize share repuebaof the Company’s common stoclStfare Repurcha
Authorizations”).Share repurchases under these authorizations mayafle through open market transactions, negotjaiechase or otherwise,
times and in such amounts as the Company, and anittsa of the Board, deem appropriate. Shares cbpsed under Share Repurct
Authorizations are held in treasury for generalpooate purposes, including issuances under vagoysioyee sharbased award plans. Treas
shares are accounted for under the cost methodrepaited as a reduction of stockholdeegjuity. Share Repurchase Authorizations ma
suspended, limited or terminated at any time withmdice.

(u) Fair Value Measurement3he Company applies fair value accounting for iathficial assets and liabilities and niamancial assets al
liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at failue in the financial statements on a recurliagis. The Company defines fair value as the phia
would be received from selling an asset or paittdosfer a liability in an orderly transaction beem market participants at the measurement
When determining the fair value measurements feetasand liabilities, the Company considers thegial or most advantageous market in w
the Company would transact and the mabated risk measurements or assumptions that mpakgtipants would use in pricing the asse
liability, such as inherent risk, transfer restdos and credit risk.

(2) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardsam® issued an Accounting Standards Update whildwslcompanies to ass
qualitative factors to determine the likelihoodioflefinitedived intangible asset impairment and whether mégsessary to perform the quantita
impairment test currently required. This guidareeffective for interim and annual periods begigraiter September 15, 2012, with early adoy
permitted. The adoption of this pronouncement dithave an impact on the Company’s Consolidatedrfial Statements.
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(3) Acquisitions
Sealy Corporation

On September 27, 2012, the Company announced iiaded into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (tddeAgreement”}o acquire Sea
Corporation (“Sealy”), by merging Sealy with a ngvdrmed subsidiary of the Company (the “Mergei®ealy, headquartered in Trinity, Nc
Carolina, owns one of the largest bedding brandkerworld, and manufactures and markets a comipfet®f bedding products. Subject to the te
and conditions of the Merger Agreement, at thectiffe time and as a result of the Merger, eachesloircommon stock of Sealy issued
outstanding immediately prior to the effective timiethe Merger will be cancelled and (other thaarsk held by Sealy or TempBedic or the
subsidiaries or Sealy stockholders who properly@se appraisal rights) converted into the rightdoeive $2.20 in cash. The Company anticig
that the total consideration to be paid, includpayments on account of existing Sealy options aguity share units and the assumptiol
outstanding indebtedness of Sealy less cash asswvileble approximately $1,300.0 million. The trasion is expected to be completed in the
half of calendar 2013 and is subject to regulatdearance under the Hart-Sc®bdino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and othastomar
conditions. The Merger Agreement contains certaimination rights for both the Company and Sealy famther provides that, upon terminatior
the Merger Agreement under certain circumstancealySmay be obligated to pay the Company a teriaindee of $25.0 million. In addition,
antitrust enforcement agencies either commencaforn the parties that they intend to commencedaiorato enjoin the Merger, (i) the Comp:
may be required to pay Sealy a termination fee9d.@ million if both parties elect to terminate thierger Agreement or (ii) a termination fee
$90.0 million (or $40.0 million if the Company etedo terminate the Merger Agreement but Sealy do¢so elect to terminate) if the Merger ¢
not close due to a failure to receive antitrustrapal in the nine months following the executiontb& Merger Agreement, subject to cer
extensions.

Third Party Distributors

On July 5, 2012, the Company acquired its thirdypdistributor in Brazil. The Company paid $2.2 linih in cash to acquire this entity, w
future payments due to the former owners if certgiarational targets are met. Assets acquirediabdities assumed include accounts receiva
inventories, prepaid expenses and other curremtssgroperty, plant and equipment, accounts payaiid accrued expenses and other ct
liabilities.

On April 2, 2012, the Company acquired its thirdtypalistributor in Poland. The Company paid $1.7ion in cash to acquire this entity, w
future payments due to the former owners if certgperational targets are met. Assets acquired deckeertain intangible assets, inventories
prepaid expenses and other current assets.

(4) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following summarizes changes to the Comisagoodwill, by reportable business segment:

(in millions) North America International Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 109. $ 103. $ 212.
Foreign currency translation adjustme 0) 0. 0.)
Goodwill resulting from acquisitio — 1. 1.
Balance as of December 31, 2( 108. 104. 213.
Foreign currency translation adjustme 0. 0. 0.
Goodwill resulting from acquisitio — 2. 2.
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 108. $ 1072 $ 216.
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The following table summarizes informatiorateig to the Company’s other intangible assets:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201,
Useful Gross Net Net
Lives Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(in millions) (Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Unamortized indefinite life intangible
assets
Trademark: $ 55. $ — 3 55.C % 55.C $ — 3% 55.C
Amortizedintangible asset:
Technology 10 $ 16. $ 16. $ — 8 16.C $ 14. $ 1.
Patents & otherrademarks 5-20 12. 9. 3. 12.t 9. 3.
Customerdatabas: 5 4, 4. — 4.9 4. —
Foam formule 10 3. 3. — 3.7 3. 0.
Reacquired right 3 5. 5. 0. 5.€ 3. 2.
Customerrelationships 5 6. 2. 4. 5.1 0. 4.
Total $ 105. $ 41. $ 63. $ 102.¢ $ 36. $ 66.

Amortization expense relating to intangibleets for the Company was $5.4 million, $5.4 millaord $4.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelymyairments of goodwill or other intangible asdetse adjusted the gross carrying amount of
these assets in any period.

Annual amortization of intangible assets is expettebe as follows:

(in millions)

Year Ending December 3

2013 $ 2.2
2014 1.€
2015 15
2016 1.C
2017 0.2

(5) Long-term Debt
Long-term debt for the Company consisted of thiovahg:

December 31
(in millions) 2012 2011
Long-term debt
2011 Domestic lor-term revolving credit facility payable to lendeirgterest a
Base Rate or LIBOR plus applicable margin1202and 2.05% as of December

31, 2012 and 2011, respectively), commitment thhoand due June 28, 20 $ 650.C $ 585.(
$375.0 million senior notes payable to lendergrest at 6.875%, due December

15, 202C 375.( —
Total lonc-term debr $ 1,025.( $ 585.(
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2011 Credit Facility

On October 18, 2005, the Company entered into ditcagreement (the “2011 Credit Facilityi)ith a syndicate of banks. On June 28, 2
the Company amended and restated its 2011 Credilit{faas amended, which increased the total abdity under the 2011 Credit Facility to
aggregate of $770.0 million, added an option tadase domestic availability by an additional $25@ilion, extended the maturity date to June
2016, and increased the applicable margins andiondges to current market conditions.

The 2011 Credit Facility consists of domestic ameign credit facilities (the “2011 Revolvergfat provide for the incurrence of indebtedi
up to an aggregate principal amount of $770.0 amilliThe domestic credit facility is a fiwear, $745.0 million revolving credit facility. THereigr
credit facility is a fiveyear, $25.0 million revolving credit facility. Th2011 Revolvers provide for the issuance of letfrsredit and bar
guarantees (“Contingent Liabilitiesiyhich, when issued, constitute usage and redud&@biisdy under the 2011 Revolvers. The aggregat®ant o
Contingent Liabilities outstanding under the 20Xv&vers was $1.0 million at December 31, 2012eAffiving effect to Contingent Liabilities a
$650.0 million in borrowings under the 2011 Revedydotal availability under the 2011 Revolvers $4a49.0 million as of December 31, 2012. E
credit facilities bear interest at a rate equahmapplicable margin, as determined in accordaritea performance pricing grid set forth in thel2
Credit Facility, plus one of the following indexésondon Inter-Bank Offering Rate (LIBOR) and forJ.dollardenominated loans only, a base |
The base rate of U.S. dolldenominated loans is defined as the higher of #wekBf America prime rate or the Federal Funds pats 0.50%. Th
Company also pays an annual commitment fee on thused amount of the Credit Facility. The commitmésg is calculated based on
consolidated leverage ratio and ranges from 0.3b2650%.

The 2011 Credit Facility is guaranteed by Temputi®nternational, as well as certain other sulasids of TempuPRedic International, and
secured by certain fixed and intangible assetsaif-Boam ApS and substantially all the Company'S. assets. The 2011 Credit Facility con
certain financial covenants and requirements affgethe Company, including a consolidated intecesterage ratio and a consolidated leverage
The Company amended the 2011 Credit Facility tdugbecthe Senior Notes and related interest desttieéow from the covenants. The Comg
was in compliance with all covenants as of Decendlie2012.

In conjunction with the Company amending and résgaits 2011 Credit Facility, $6.2 million of defed financing costs were capitalized
will be amortized over the five year extension.

Senior Notes

On December 19, 2012, TempRedic International issued $375.0 million aggregatacipal amount of 6.875% senior notes due 2QBE
“Senior Notes”) to qualified institutional buyeransuant to Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1%88amended (the “Securities Actind to certai
nonU.S. persons in accordance with Regulation S utiieerSecurities Act. The Senior Notes were issuegyant to an indenture, dated a
December 19, 2012 (the “Indenture”), among the Camgpcertain subsidiaries of Tempur-Pedic Inteomati as guarantors (the “Guarantorsiic
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., giastee (the “Trustee”)The Senior Notes are general unsecured seniorabioligs o
TempurPedic International and are guaranteed on a sensgcured basis by the Guarantors. Upon the aatézipclose of the Sealy Acquisiti
Sealy and certain of its subsidiaries will becoraargntors of the Senior Notes.

The Senior Notes mature on December 15, 2020,raacest is payable serainually in arrears on each June 15 and Decembéregining
on June 15, 2013. As part of the escrow arrangesmaescribed below, the Company funded into escra®:2smillion to fund interest throu
October 1, 2013. At December 31, 2012, $19.3 millemained as prepaid interest and is includedepgd expenses and other current assets
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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TempurPedic International has the option to redeem a#l portion of the Senior Notes at any time on terdbecember 15, 2016. The ini
redemption price is 103.438% of the principal ampplus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. Thikemngption price will decline each year after 2
and will be 100.0% of the principal amount begirmnon December 15, 2018. In addition, TempPedic International has the option at any timer
to December 15, 2016 to redeem some or all of #@os Notes at 100.0% of the original principal ambplus a “make-wholepremium an
accrued and unpaid interest, if any. Tempedic International may also redeem up to 35.0%h@fSenior Notes prior to December 15, 2015 L
certain circumstances with the net cash proceeus éertain equity offerings at 106.875% of the gipal amount plus accrued and unpaid intere
any. TempurPedic International may make such redemptions bnbfter any such redemption, at least 65.0% efalgregate principal amoun
the Senior Notes issued remains outstanding.

The Indenture restricts the ability of Tempgeedic International and the ability of certain tf subsidiaries to, among other things: (i) in
directly or indirectly, debt; (ii) make, directlyr andirectly, certain investments and restrictegmpants; (iii) incur or suffer to exist, directly
indirectly, liens on its properties or assets; §&)l or otherwise dispose of, directly or inditgcassets; (v) create or otherwise cause or stdfexis
any consensual restriction on the right of certdithe subsidiaries of Tempiredic International to pay dividends or make atneptistributions ¢
or in respect of their capital stock; (vi) entetoiiransactions with affiliates; (vii) engage ifeskeaseback transactions; (viii) purchase or rec
capital stock or subordinated indebtedness; (s)asor sell stock of restricted subsidiaries; afjceffect a consolidation or merger. These coves
are subject to a number of exceptions and qudiifina.

Concurrently with the closing of the Senior Not&smpur-Pedic International entered into an escrod security agreement (th&Scrow
Agreement”)with the Trustee, as escrow agent. The gross pdgdeem the sale of the Senior Notes, together adttlitional cash necessary to fi
the redemption of the Senior Notes at the statddmgtion rate and pay accrued interest to Octob013, have been deposited into the es
account. If the Sealy Acquisition is consummatedor prior to September 26, 2013, the amounts ime&bcrow will be released to TempRedic
International to finance the cash purchase pricthefSealy Acquisition. If the Sealy Acquisitionrist consummated on or prior to Septembe
2013, the Senior Notes will be subject to a spaviahdatory redemption at a redemption price of @%0of the principal amount plus accrued
unpaid interest, if any, and the amounts held éngbcrow account will be used to fund the redemptio

Also in conjunction with the issuance and saleha& Senior Notes, Tempedic International and the Guarantors have agtte@digh i
Registration Rights Agreement to exchange the $ddaies for a new issue of substantially identieistered notes under the Securities
TempurPedic International and the Guarantors are requoguhy additional interest if the Senior Notes @aoé registered within the specified ti
periods outlined within the Registration Rights Agment.

2012 Credit Agreement

On December 12, 2012, Tempur-Pedic International eertain subsidiaries of TempBedic International as borrowers and guarar
entered into a credit agreement (the “2012 CrediteAment”)with a syndicate of banks. The 2012 Credit Agresnpeovides for (i) a revolvir
credit facility of $350.0 million (the “Revolver”)ji) a term A facility of $550.0 million (the “Ten A Facility”) and (iii) a term B facility of $870
million (the “Term B Facility”).The Revolver includes a sublimit for letters ofditeand swingline loans, subject to certain cowdisi and limits. TF
Revolver and the Term A Facility will mature on ffifth anniversary of the closing and the Term Rility will mature on the seventh anniversan
the closing. The Revolver, the Term A Facility ahd Term B Facility are expected to close and fimdonnection with the Sealy Acquisition. 1
obligations of the lenders to the 2012 Credit Agrert to make the initial loans at the closing & 8ealy Acquisition, and the loans subseque
closing, are subject to certain customary closimggitions.

Borrowings under the 2012 Credit Agreement will giadly bear interest, at the election of Tempedic International, at either (i) LIBC
plus the applicable margin or (ii) Base Rate phesapplicable margin. For the Revolver and the TArFacility, (a) the initial applicable margin -
LIBOR advances is 3.00% per annum and the inipalieable margin for Base Rate advances is 2.00&apeum, and (b) thereafter following
delivery of financial statements for the first féiscal quarter after closing, such applicable nregvill be determined by a pricing grid based e
consolidated total net leverage ratio of the Compdhe Term B Facility applicable margin is 4.00% pnnum for LIBOR advances and 3.00%
annum for Base Rate advances.
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Obligations under the 2012 Credit Agreement areantaed by Tempur-Pedic International’s existind &rture direct and indirect wholly-
owned domestic subsidiaries, subject to certairitdiinexceptions; and the 2012 Credit Agreementeiued by first priority perfected secu
interests in substantially all Tempur-Pedic Intéioreal’'s and the other borrowerassets and the assets of each subsidiary guarasiether owne
as of the closing or thereafter acquired, includifgst priority pledge of 100.0% of the equitydarests of each subsidiary guarantor that is a dtic
entity (subject to certain limited exceptions) #8%l0% of the voting equity interests of any diréicgt tier foreign entity owned by a subsidi
guarantor. The 2012 Credit Agreement requires ciampé with certain financial covenants providing foaintenance of a minimum consolide
interest coverage ratio and maintenance of a maxgimransolidated total net leverage ratio.

The 2012 Credit Agreement contains certain custgmagative covenants, which include limitations l@ms, investments, indebtedns
dispositions, mergers and acquisitions, the makingstricted payments, changes in the natudeusfness, changes in fiscal year, transactions
affiliates, use of proceeds, prepayments of ceitadiebtedness, entry into burdensome agreementstartjes to governing documents and «
junior financing documents. The 2012 Credit Agrertvadso contains certain customary affirmative cards and events of default, including up:
change of control.

TempurPedic International is required to pay an unuseairmoitment fee, which initially is 0.50% per annumdawhich steps down
0.375% per annum if the consolidated total netrage ratio is less than or equal to 3.50:1.00. Sunclsed commitment fee will be payable quar
in arrears and on the date of termination or etipimaof the commitments under the Revolver. Tempeadic International will also pay custom
letter of credit issuance and other fees undeR@#2 Credit Agreement. Tempur-Pedic Internatianakisting credit facilities will remain in pla
until the closing of the Sealy Acquisition.

Interest Rate Swap

On August 8, 2011, the Company entered into a year- interest rate swap agreement to manage ihsts and the risk associated \
changing interest rates associated with the 20EdiCFacility. Refer to Note 7, “Derivative Finaatilnstruments”for additional informatio
regarding the Company’s derivative instrumentsiuidicig this interest rate swap.

(6) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the exchange price tlmatldvbe received for an asset or paid to transfebdity (an exit price) in the principal
most advantageous market for the asset and lialrlian orderly transaction between market parictp at the measurement date. The Cormr
estimates fair value of its financial instrumenti§izing an established thrdevel hierarchy. The hierarchy is based upon thesparency of inputs
the valuation of an asset or liability as of theasu@ement date as follows:

®Level 1 — Valuation is based upon unadjusted quptexs for identical assets or liabilities in aetimarkets.

el evel 2— Valuation is based upon quoted prices for simiksess and liabilities in active markets, or otlmguis that are observa
for the asset or liability, either directly or imelctly, for substantially the full term of the fimgial instruments

®Level 3 — Valuation is based upon other unobseevadguts that are significant to the fair value m@aments.

The classification of fair value measurements ivitthe hierarchy is based upon the lowest leveinplut that is significant to tl
measurement. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, thep@wynhad an interest rate swap, which fair value maasured using valuations based
quoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieadtive markets (Level 2) and is valued by refeeetocsimilar financial instruments, adjusted foedi
risk and restrictions and other terms specifih®¢ontracts. The following table provides a sumntgrievel of the fair value of financial instrumte
that are measured on a recurring basis:
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 Usin

Quoted Prices ir Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
December 31 for Identical Observable Unobservable
(in millions) 2012 Assets (Level 1 Inputs (Level 2)  Inputs (Level 3)
Liability:
Interest rate swa $ 4. 3 — % 43 $ —
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Usin
Quoted Prices ir Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
December 31 for Identical Observable Unobservable
(in millions) 2011 Assets (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2)  Inputs (Level 3)
Liability:
Interest rate swa $ 2€ % — % 26 $ —

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalexdcounts receivable and accounts payable appatxifair value because of the sherty
maturity of those instruments. Borrowings under #841 Credit Facility are at variable interest satnd accordingly their carrying amot
approximate fair value. Due to fact the Senior Natere issued December 19, 2012, their carryingevapproximates fair value. The Company
utilizes foreign currency forward contracts to mg@ahe risk associated with exposures to foreigmeogy risk related to intercompany debt
associated interest payments. However, these fomigency forward contracts are not material eo@onsolidated Financial Statements.

(7) Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Companypssed to certain risks related to fluctuationgierest rates. The Company uses int
rate swaps to manage risks from these market fitiolns. The financial instruments used by the Comipare straight-forward, noleverage
instruments. The counterparties to these finamegiuments are financial institutions with stracrgdit ratings. The Company maintains control
the size of positions entered into with any onenterparty and regularly monitors the credit ratinfshese institutions. The Company also util
foreign currency forward contracts to manage thk aissociated with exposures to foreign currersky neélated to intercompany debt and assoc
interest payments. However, these foreign currémayard contracts are not material to the Constdiddinancial Statements.
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The Company is exposed to changes in interess @teits 2011 Credit Facility. In order to manapes trisk, on August 8, 2011, {
Company entered into a foyear interest rate swap agreement to manage ihtevsts and the risk associated with changing ésterates. Tt
Company designated this interest rate swap ashaflcas hedge of floating rate borrowings and expdbe hedge to be highly effective in offset
fluctuations in the designated interest paymerdsltieg from changes in the benchmark interest relbe gains and losses on the designated
agreement will offset losses and gains on the a@titns being hedged. The Company formally docuetktite effectiveness of this qualifying he
instrument (both at the inception of the swap am@o ongoing basis) in offsetting changes in chshsf of the hedged transaction. The fair vall
the interest rate swap is calculated as describ&bie 6, “Fair Value of Financial Instrumenttiking into consideration current interest rated e
current creditworthiness of the counterpartieher€ompany, as applicable.

As a result of this swap, the Company began payitegest at a fixed rate and receiving paymerat @riable rate on December 30, 2!
The swap effectively fixes the floating LIBOBased interest rate to 1.25% on $250.0 millionhe&f dutstanding balance under the 2011 C
Facility, with the outstanding balance subjecthte swap declining over time. The interest rate sesggres on December 30, 2015. The Com|
will select the LIBORbased rate on the hedged portion of the 2011 Credility during the term of the swap. The effeetpwortion of the change
value of the swap is reflected as a component ofpeehensive income and recognized as interest egpaet as payments are paid or accrued
remaining gain or loss in excess of the cumulativenge in the present value of the future cashsflofathe hedged item, if any (i.e., the ineffec
portion) or hedge components excluded from thesassent of effectiveness are recognized as interpense, net during the current period.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fainealf the Company’s derivative instruments weremded as follows:

Liability Derivatives
Balance Sheet Locatior Fair Value
December 31
(in millions) 2012 2011
Derivatives designated as hedging instrum

Accrued expenses and other curren

Interest rate swa- current liabilities $ 23 % 1t
Interest rate swap - non-current Other non-current liabilities 2.C 1.
$ 4: % 2.€
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The effect of derivative instruments on theaupanying Consolidated Statements of Income #®y#ar ended December 31, 2012 was as

follows:
(in millions)
Location of Amount of Gain/
Gain/(Loss) (Loss)
Location of Amount of Gain/ Recognized in Recognized in
Amount of Gain/ Gain/(Loss) (Loss) Income on Income on
(Loss) Reclassified Reclassified Derivative Derivative
Recognized in from from (Ineffective (Ineffective
Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated Portion and Portion and
OCL on OCL into OCL into Amount Amount
Derivative Income Income Excluded from Excluded from
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flo' (Effective (Effective (Effective Effectiveness Effectiveness
Hedging Relationships Portion) Portion) Portion) Testing) Testing)
Interest Expense Interest Expense
Interest rate swa $ (1.7 net $ (3.2 net $ =
For the year ended December 31, 2011:
(in millions)
Location of Amount of Gain/
Gain/(Loss) (Loss)
Location of Amount of Gain/ Recognized in Recognized in
Amount of Gain/ Gain/(Loss) (Loss) Income on Income on
(Loss) Reclassified Reclassified Derivative Derivative
Recognized in from from (Ineffective (Ineffective
Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated Portion and Portion and
OCL on OCL into OCL into Amount Amount
Derivative Income Income Excluded from Excluded from
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flo' (Effective (Effective (Effective Effectiveness Effectiveness
Hedging Relationships Portion) Portion) Portion) Testing) Testing)
Interest Expenst¢ Interest Expenst¢
Interest rate swa $ (1.2) net $ (1.5) net $ =
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(8) Stockholders’ Equity

(a) Capital stock.TempurPedic International has 300.0 million authorizedrss of common stock with $0.01 per share par vaht0.0
million authorized shares of preferred stock. Tlédérs of the common stock are entitled to one Voteeach share held of record on all ma
submitted to a vote of stockholders. Subject tdguemces that may be applicable to any outstanpiaferred stock, holders of common stock
entitled to receive ratably such dividends as maydéclared from time to time by the Board of Dicestout of funds legally available for t
purpose. In the event of liquidation, dissolutianaénding up, the holders of common stock are Ettito share ratably in all assets remaining
payment of liabilities, subject to prior distribomi rights of preferred stock, if any, then outstagd

TempurPedic International is authorized to issue up €1 Onillion shares of preferred stock, $0.01 paugaler share. The Board of Direc
is authorized, subject to any limitations presdtiliiy law, without further vote or action by the gtholders, to issue from time to time share
preferred stock in one or more series. Each sugbssef preferred stock will have such number drels, designations, preferences, voting po'
qualifications, and special or relative rights oivileges as determined by the Board of Directarsich may include, among others, dividend ric
voting rights, redemption and sinking fund provisoliquidation preferences, conversion rights premptive rights.

(b)Share Repurchase Prograni3uring 2012, the Company purchased 5.0 million eharf the Compang’common stock for a total cost
$150.0 million pursuant to authorizations made ey €ompanys Board of Directors in January 2012. As of Decenfi, 2012, the Company |
$100.0 million remaining under the January 201Zhatization. Share repurchases under this auth@izahay be made through open ma
transactions, negotiated purchases or otherwigégnas and in such amounts as management and aittemwof the Board deem appropriate; tt
repurchases may be funded by operating cash flomfaborrowings under our debt agreements. Thaseshepurchase program may be limi
suspended or terminated at any time without notice.

(9) Other Items
(a) Property, plant and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment, net consisted ofahewing:

December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011
Land and building $ 138. % 121.
Machinery and equipme 160.¢ 146.¢
Computer equipment and softwz 52.t 43.7
Furniture and fixture 40.¢ 34.¢
Construction in progress 17. 14.
409. 362.
Accumulated depreciatic (223.9) (201.6
$ 186. $ 160.

Depreciation expense for the Company was $30.9am;l528.9 million and $28.0 million for the yeasded December 31, 2012, 2011
2010, respectively.
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(b) Accrued expenses and other current liabilities.
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities isted of the following:

December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011
Salary and related expens $ 18. $ 24.
Advertising accrua 10. 7.
Accrued sales and value added te 7. 8.
Professional fee 5. 3.
Sales return 5. 5.
Warranty accrue 4. 4.
Other 33. 24.
$ 84. $ 76.
(c) Accumulated other comprehensive loss.
Accumulated other comprehensive loss consistedeofdllowing:
December 31
(in millions) 2012 2011
Derivative instruments accounted for as hedgespin@ixes of $1.7 and $1.0, respectiv $ 27 % (1.6
Foreign currency translation, net of tax $2.7 in2 (4.9 (13.7)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (76 $ (14.7)

(10) Stock-based Compensation

Tempur-Pedic International has two stock-based emsgtion plans which provide for grants of mpralified and incentive stock optio
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock andlstmit awards, performance shares, stock gramtgparformance based awards to employees, nor
employee directors, consultants and Company advisidre plans under which equity awards may be gdaate the 2002 Option Plan and
Amended and Restated 2003 Equity Incentive Plaapanded, (the “2003 Plan”). Tempur-Pedic Inteomati also has a stodkased compensati
plan which permits eligible employees to purchaseshares at a discounted price, subject to cegtsittelines set forth by its 2003 Employee S
Purchase Plan, as amended (“ESPP”). It is theyofithe Company to issue stock out of Treasuryeshapon issuance or exercise of shzase:
awards. The Company believes that awards and peshaade under these plans better align the itdeséshe plan participants with those of
stockholders.

The 2002 Option Plan was adopted on November 12 20@ provides for grants of stock options to pasehshares of common stocl
employees and directors of the Company. Optionstgdaunder the 2002 Option Plan that qualify agmtige stock options, as defined by
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the €Qothust have an exercise price of not less thenfair market value of Tempiedic
Internationals common stock at the date of grant. Options gdanteler the 2002 Option Plan provided for vestamgs as determined by the Bc
of Directors at the time of grant, which are getigraased on 4 years of continuous service. Optizars be exercised up to 10 years from the
date and up to 5 years from the grant date forsamgkholders who own 10.0% or more of the total loiomd voting power of all shares of stocl
Tempur-Pedic International. Upon the exercise Ibfoatstanding options under the 2002 Option PlaempurPedic International will issue
maximum of 6.5 million shares of common stock, sabjto certain adjustment provisions. In Decemi¥¥32 the Companyg’ Board of Directol
adopted a resolution that prohibited further gramder the 2002 Stock Option Plan.

F-22




Table of Contents

TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The ESPP permits eligible employees to purchas®e gprtain limits, as set forth in the ESPP, of pemPedic Internationad’ common stoc
annually over the course of two semi-annual offgreriods at a price of no less than 85.0% of tieeper share of Tempur-Pedic International’
common stock either at the beginning or the endach sixmonth offering period, whichever is less. The Congation Committee of the Board
Directors administers the ESPP. The Board of Dinscinay amend or terminate the ESPP. The ESPReisdied to comply with the requirement:
Section 423 of the Code. The Company may issuexénmian of 0.5 million shares of its common stock enthe ESPP. Effective February 1, 2(
the Company suspended offerings under the ESPHriitely.

The 2003 Plan is administered by the Compensatmnriittee of the Board of Directors, which, togethéth the Board of Directors, has
exclusive authority to administer the 2003 Plaoluding the power to determine eligibility to reeeiawards, the types and number of shares of
subject to the awards, the price and timing of a@&and the acceleration or waiver of any vestind) @arformance of forfeiture restrictions, in e
case subject to the terms of the 2003 Plan. Anyhef Company’s employees, nemployee directors, consultants and Company adyist
determined by the Compensation Committee, may leetee to participate in the 2003 Plan. Tempadic International may issue a maximur
11.5 million shares of its common stock under tb@32Plan.

In 2010, the Compensation Committee of the BoarDicéctors approved the terms of a Long-Term IneenProgram (“LTIP”),establishe
under the 2003 Plan. The LTIP awards consist ofiaahstock options and PRSUs. Shares with respethe PRSUs will be granted and
following the end of the applicable performanceigetrand achievement of applicable performance ceetais determined by the Compens:
Committee of the Board of Directors.

The Company’s stockased compensation expense for the year ended Decé&h, 2012 included PRSUs, stock options, RSUsDEBUS. £
summary of the Company’s stock-based compensatipanse is presented below:

December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011

PRSU (benefit) expens $ 0.) $ 9.
Stock option expens 4. 5.
RSU/DSU expens 2. 2.
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 5 $ 16.

The Company granted PRSUs during the years endedniieer 31, 2012 and 2011. Actual payout under R8U% is dependent upon
achievement of certain financial goals, based dnsakes and earnings before interest and taxesT(ER&argin targets. The Company record
benefit in the accompanying Consolidated Statemehtacome of $10.3 million, for the year ended Bedber 31, 2012, after evaluation of th
probability of meeting certain required financiagtmcs.

The following table shows the PRSUs granted unuetTIP:

Weighted-
Target shares average fair
(shares in millions) Performance period granted @ value per share
Year ended 201 January 1, 201- December 31, 201 01 $ 71.52
Year ended 201 January 1, 201- December 31, 201 01 $ 46.6¢
Year ended 201 January 1, 201- December 31, 201 01 $ 28.4¢

(1) At the end of the performance period, the actuativer of shares issuable can range from zero t@3®0f the target shares granted, which is assuo
be 100.0%
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A summary of the Company’s PRSU activity and relatéormation for the years ended December 31, 20122011 is presented below:

Weighted
Average Grant
(shares in millions) Shares Date Fair Value
Awards unvested at December 31, 2 0. $ 28.4¢
Grantec 0.2 46.¢€
Vested — —
Forfeited — —
Awards unvested at December 31, 2 0. $ 37.¢
Grantec® 0. 71t
Vestedd (0. 28.4¢
Forfeited — —
Awards unvested at December 31, 2012 0. $ 58.t

(1) The current year includes approximately 0.3 millamiditional shares from the 2010 PRSU grant dex¢eeding the initial 100.0% target.

During the year no PRSUs transferred ownership. adggregate intrinsic value of PRSUs outstandingfaBecember 31, 2012 was $2
million.

The Company uses the BlaBkholes option pricing model to calculate the ¥ailue of stock options granted. The assumptiond irséhe
Black-Scholes pricing model for the years ended Decer@bef012, 2011 and 2010 are set forth in the falgwable. Expected volatility is bas
on the unbiased standard deviation of Tempur-Paticnationals common stock over the option term. The expedfeai the options represents
period of time that the Company expects the optgrasited to be outstanding. The riske rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield cimadfect a
the time of the grant of the option for the expdderm of the instrument. The dividend yield reftean estimate of dividend payouts over the ter
the award.

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Expected volatility range of stoc 49- 7% 72- 7% 69- 84%
Expected life of option, range in ye: 2.0-4.C 3.0-4.C 2.0-5.C
Risk-free interest range ra 0.3- 0.7% 0.7-1.7% 1.0-2.7%
Expected dividend yield on sto 0.0-1.2% 0.0-0.7% 0.0-1.€%

A summary of the Company’unvested shares relating to stock options asecémMber 31, 2012 and 2011 and changes during #re gade
December 31, 2012 and 2011 are presented below:

Weighted
Average Grant
(shares in millions) Shares Date Fair Value
Options unvested at December 31, 2 2. % 4.t
Grantec 0. 25.7
Vested ) 5.C
Forfeited 0. 4.t
Options unvested at December 31, 2 1. $ 5.2
Grantec 0. 35.7
Vested (0.) 11.4
Forfeited — —
Options unvested at December 31, 2012 0. $ 23.2
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A summary of the Company’stock option activity under the 2002 Option Pdad 2003 Plan for the years ended December 31, 204201
is presented below:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
(in millions, except exercise price and yea Shares Exercise Price Term (YearS) Intrinsic Value
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 5 8 13.3
Grantec 0. 49.1
Exercisec (a.) 19.2
Terminatec ©.) 11.6
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 3. 8 111
Grantec 0. 35.7
Exercisec (0.) 12.6
Terminatec — —
Options outstanding at December 31, 2012 2. $ 17.0 6.10 39.6
Options exercisable at December 31, 2012 2. % 14.0 5.28 355

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercidedng the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@b0 was $29.8 million, $59.2 milli
and $29.9 million, respectively.

The Company granted 0.01 million DSUs during tharyended December 31, 2012. No RSUs were grantéagdine year ended Decem
31, 2012. At December 31, 2012, the Company hadndlldn of unvested DSUs/RSUs. The aggregatenstd value of RSU and DSUs outstanc
as of December 31, 2012 was $6.1 million.

A summary of total unrecognized stololised compensation expense based on current parfoenestimates related to the options and [
granted during the year ended December 31, 20d@2&ented below:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
December 31 Vesting Period
(iin millions, except years 2012 (Years)
Unrecognized stock option exper $ 4.8 1.4¢
Unrecognized DSU expen 0. 0.3
Total unrecognized stock-based compensatiperese $ 5. 1.4.

Cash received from options exercised under allksb@sed compensation plans, including cash received 6ptions issued from treas
shares for the years ended December 31, 2012,&2612010 was $11.4 million, $26.3 million, and $2&illion, respectively.

(11) Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Lease CommitmentsThe Company has various operating leases thdbcannual rental payments due in equal monthégallments and
lease with a rent free occupancy period. The Cowigapolicy is to recognize expense for lease payniecityding those with escalating provisit
and rent free periods, on a straigihe basis over the lease term. Operating leasersgs were $9.5 million, $8.4 million, and $6.3lionil for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 ctasghe
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Future minimum lease payments at Decembe2@®I2 under these non-cancelable leases are aw$ollo

(in millions)

Year Ended December &

2013 $ 7.S

2014 5.1

2015 3.t

2016 2.

2017 2.2

Thereafter 3.2
$ 24.F

(b) Purchase CommitmentsThe Company will, from time to time, enter infmited purchase commitments for the purchase dhieraw
materials. Amounts committed under these programsat significant as of December 31, 2012 and 2011

(c) Norfolk County Retirement System, Individually andoehalf of all others similarly situated, Plafifitv. TempurPedic International Inc
Mark A. Sarvary and Dale E. Williams; filed Jung 2012

Arthur Benning, Jr., Individually and on behalf @f others similarly situated, Plaintiff v. TempRedic International Inc., Mark A. Sarve
and Dale E. Williams; filed June 25, 2012

On June 20 and 25, 2012, the above suits weredt@ihst the Company and two named executive offitethe United States District Ca
for the Eastern District of Kentucky, purportediy behalf of a proposed class of shareholders wihchpged the Compargy/stock between Janu
25, 2012 and June 5, 2012. The complaints askems under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the SeesrExchange Act of 1934, alleging, am
other things, false and misleading statements andealment of material information concerning tl@panys competitive position, projected
sales, earnings per diluted share and related diabperformance for the Compasy2012 fiscal year 2012. The plaintiffs seek darmaggeres
costs, attorney fees, expert fees and unspecified equitablefitipm relief. The Company strongly believes that ghareholder suits lack merit
intends to defend against the claims vigorousle dhitcome of these matters is uncertain, howewneraithough we do not currently expect to inc
loss with respect to these matters, we cannot mtlyrpredict the manner and timing of the resolutad the suits, an estimate of a range of loss
any minimum loss that could result in the evenamfadverse verdict in these suits, or whether ppliGable insurance policies will provide suffict
coverage for these claims. Accordingly, the Compaay give no assurance that these matters willhage a material adverse effect on
Company's financial position or results of openadio

(d) Benjamin B. Clarke, Individually and On Behalf df ®thers Similarly Situated v. Lawrence J. RogéRghard W. Roedel, John
Replogle, Paul J. Norris, Dean B. Nelson, Gary Erid, James W. Johnson, Deborah G. Ellinger, Sireofrown, Sealy Corporation, Tem|
Pedic International Inc. and Silver Lightning Merggéompany, filed October 2, 20:

Robert A. Justewicz, Individually and On Behalfatif Others Similarly Situated v. Sealy Corporatidwrence J. Rogers, Paul J. Nor
James W. Johnson, Simon E. Brown, Gary E. MorimnC®. Nelson, Richard W. Roedel, Deborah G. Ellingehn B. Replogle, Silver Lightni
Merger Company and Temj-Pedic International Inc., filed Oct. 3, 2012

Deno Singh, On Behalf of Himself and All Othersilaiy Situated v. Lawrence J. Rogers, Richard WedRl, John B. Replogle, Pau
Norris, Dean B. Nelson, Gary E. Morin, James W.n&bn, Deborah G. Ellinger, Simon E. Brown, SeabypOration, Tempt-Pedic Internationz
Inc. and Silver Lightning Merger Company, filed Glmr 15, 201:

Jay M. Plourde, On Behalf of Himself and All Oth&isnilarly Situated v. Sealy Corporation, LawrenteRogers, Paul Norris, James
Johnston, Simon E. Brown, Gary E. Morin, Dean Bsble Richard Roedel, Deborah G. Ellinger, JohriRBplogel, Temp-Pedic International Inc
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P. and Silver Ligimg Merger Company, filed October 15, 2(
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Keith Gamble, Individually and On Behalf of All ®tk Similarly Situated v. Lawrence J. Rogers, Ridh&. Roedel, John B. Replogle, Pal
Norris, Dean B. Nelson, Gary E. Morin, James W.n&bn, Deborah G. Ellinger, Simon E. Brown, SeabypOration, Tempt-Pedic Internatione
Inc. and Silver Lightning Merger Company, filed Qlmr 16, 201:

Curtis Nall, On Behalf of Himself and All Othersrfiarly Situated Shareholders of Sealy CorporationLawrence C. Rogers, James
Johnston, Simon E. Brown, Gary E. Morin, Dean Blsblg Richard Roedel, Deborah G. Ellinger, John H&eplogle, Paul J. Norris, Sei
Corporation, TempuPRedic, International Inc., KKR Millennium GP LLCKR & Co. L.P., and Silver Lightning Merger Compafilgd October 11
2012

The Company is aware of six purported class adswsuits relating to the Merger with Sealy, onéNiorth Carolina state court and five
the Delaware Court of Chancery, filed by purpoeatkholders of Sealy against Sealy, Seatlitectors, the Company and Silver Lightning Me
Company, a subsidiary of the Company (the “Mergds”p Justewicz v. Sealy Corp., et al. (“North ©kmna Action™) was filed on October 3, 20:
in the General Court of Justice, Superior Courtigddn in North Carolina (“North Carolina Court”YOn November 13, 2012, the Delaware Cou
Chancery consolidated all five Delaware action® iat single action, which is now styled as In re l\s&aorporation Shareholder Litigati
(“Delaware Action™). Plaintiff in the North Carolina Action and plairfsfin the Delaware Action allege, among other thjrtgat the defendants hi
breached their fiduciary duties to Sealy’s stoclkecd and that Sealy, the Company and Merger Swdd @dd abetted the Sealy directabégec
breach of fiduciary duties. The complaints alsoinclahat the consideration to be paid in the MergerSealy stockholders (theMergel
Consideration”) is inadequate, that the Merger &grent contains unfair deal protection provisiohat Sealy$ directors are subject to conflicts
interests, and that the preliminary informationtestzent filed by Sealy with the Securities and ExggCommission on October 30, 2012 o
material information concerning the negotiationgess leading to the proposed transaction and thati@n of Sealy.

On October 12, 2012, plaintiff in the North CaraliAction brought a Motion for Expedited Discovend&or a Hearing and Briefing Sched
on Plaintiff's Motion for a Preliminary Injunction. On Octobet,2012, defendants in the North Carolina Actioought a Motion to Stay the No
Carolina Action in favor of the Delaware Action. Qilovember 7, 2012, the North Carolina Action pléir@mended his complaint to add allegati
claiming that the preliminary information statemélgd by Sealy on October 30, 2012 did not prowsdéicient information. Following briefing a
a hearing on November 8, 2012, the North CarolinarCstayed the North Carolina Action. On Novemb@r2012, plaintiffs in the Delaware Acti
filed a consolidated amended complaint, a motiorekpedited proceedings, and a motion for a prekmji injunction.

The Company believes that the allegations in tHaeesuits are entirely without merit. On January 2013, solely to avoid the burd
expense and uncertainties inherent in litigatiod without admitting any liability or wrongdoingie parties to the Delaware Action entered ir
memorandum of understanding setting forth an ageeéin-principle providing for a settlement of tbelaware Action (the “Proposed Settlemgnt”
In connection with the Proposed Settlement, Segitgead to include certain supplemental disclosurdbeé information statement to be sent to £
stockholders. The Proposed Settlement providethéorelease of all claims by Sealy stockholdercenoting the Merger Agreement, the Merger,
the disclosures made in connection with the Merigetuding all claims that were asserted or cowddenbeen asserted in the Delaware Action ar
North Carolina Action. The Proposed Settlement duggrovide for the payment of any additional mang consideration to Sealy stockholders
the Proposed Settlement does not affect the rightay Sealy stockholder to seek appraisal purstaection 262 of the DGCL. The Propc
Settlement is subject to definitive documentatind approval by the Delaware Court of Chancery.

The outcome of the above litigation is uncertaioyaver, and although the Company does not currexghect to incur a loss with respec
these matters, the Company cannot currently préfgéctnanner and timing of the resolution of the géerLawsuits, an estimate of a range or Ic
or any minimum loss that could result in the eveihan adverse verdict in these suits, or whetherGbmpany’s or Sealy’applicable insuran
policies will provide sufficient coverage for thegaims. Accordingly, the Company can give no aasce that these matters will not have a ma
adverse effect on the Company’s financial positonesults of operations.

The Company is involved in various other legal pextings incidental to the operations of its businéee Company believes that the outc
of all such pending legal proceedings in the agaggewill not have a material adverse effect omitsiness, financial condition, liquidity, or opéng
results.
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(12) Income Taxes

The Companys effective income tax provision differs from th@a@unt calculated using the statutory U.S. federabine tax rate, principa

due to the following:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Percentage o Percentage o Percentage of
Income Income Income
Before Income Before Income Before Income
(in millions) Amount Taxes Amount Taxes Amount Taxes
Statutory U.S.
federal income
tax $ 80.2 35.% $ 114.¢ 35.% $ 80.¢ 35.(%
State income
taxes, net of
federal benefi 4.t 2.C 7.9 2.4 5.3 2.3
Foreign
repatriation, net
of foreign tax
credits 48.1 21.C — — — —
Foreign tax
differential (9.9 (4.2) (9.9) (2.9 (8.€) 3.7
Change ir
valuation a
llowances (2.9) 1.2) (5.9) (1.9 (2.0) (0.49)
Uncertain tay
positions 2.€ 1.1 4. 1.2 (0.€) (0.3
Subpart F incom 4.1 1.8 3.2 1.C 2.9 1.3
Manufacturing
deduction 3.9 .7 (5.0 (1.5 (4.0) .7
Permanent and ) )
other (0.8 (0.4) (1.0) (0.3 (1.1 (0.€)
Effective income
tax provision $ 122.¢ 53.% $ 108.¢ 33.1% $ 730 31.9%

Subpart F income represents interest and royatesed by a foreign subsidiary as well as saleerbgictertain foreign subsidiaries outsid
their country of incorporation. Under the Code, rsiccome is taxable to Tempur-Pedic Internatioralifaearned directly by Tempuredic
International.

At July 1, 2012, the Company had $352.7 millionuaflistributed earnings from ndn.S. operations on which no provision for U.S. fed
and/or state income tax and foreign withholdingsl eeen provided because Tempadic International intended to reinvest such ege
indefinitely outside of the United States. Subsegue July 1, 2012, the Company changed the claatifn of those earnings to reflect a chang
managemens strategic objectives that could require the mguadn of foreign earnings. As a result of thisanbe, the Company recognized $:
million of additional income tax expense during tfear ended December 31, 2012 to record the apfidd S. deferred income tax liability. As
December 31, 2012, the Company no longer has adigtubuted earnings of foreign subsidiaries that @assified as permanently reinvested.
Company expects to repatriate non-U.S. cash hadipgn the closing of the proposed Sealy acquisitio

The following sets forth the amount of income befarcome taxes attributable to each of the Comganperating segments for the ye
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Year Ended December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011 2010
Income before income taxe
North America $ 126.2 $ 224¢ $ 137.7
Internationa 103.C 103.€ 93.2
Consolidated $ 2292 $ 328.. % 230.¢
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U.S. GAAP prescribes a recognition threshold andsueement attribute for the accounting and findretetement disclosure of tax positi
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.éMaduation of a tax position is a tvebep process. The first step requires the Compaagtermin
whether it is more likely than not that a tax positwill be sustained upon examination based ortegbknical merits of the position. The second
requires the Company to recognize in the finamgialements each tax position that meets the mkety lthan not criteria, measured at the lar
amount of benefit that has a greater than 50.08&tillikod of being realized. A reconciliation of theginning and ending amount of unrecognize:
benefits is as follows:

(in millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 8.
Additions based on tax positions related to 2 1.9
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 2.€
Settlements of uncertain tax positions with tathatities (0.)

Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 13.c

Additions based on tax positions related to 2 1.1
Settlements of uncertain tax positions with taxhatities (1.5
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 12.€

The entire amount of unrecognized tax benefits didgmipact the effective tax rate if recognized. teg and penalties related to unrecogr
tax benefits are recorded in income tax expenseinBthe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ahd, 20e Company recognized approxime
$3.0 million, $(0.3) million, and $0.8 million imierest and penalties, respectively, in incomeetgpense. The Company had approximately
million and $2.8 million of accrued interest andhakties at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively

During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company v an income tax assessment from the Danish Takokity (“SKAT”) with respect t
the 2001, 2002 and 20@&x years, an assessment with respect to the 280/etr during the third quarter of 2010, and aessment with respect
the 2005 tax year during the second quarter of 2fating to the royalty paid by one of Tempur-eddternationals U.S. subsidiaries to a Dan
subsidiary. In addition, during the second quadae012, the Company received an income tax assg#swith respect to the 2006 tax yea
approximately $28.5 million. The position taken 8KAT could apply to subsequent years. The cumuwdatotal tax assessment for all yeai
approximately $146.2 million including interest apehnalties. The Company filed timely protests vifith Danish National Tax Tribunal challeng
the tax assessments. The National Tax Tribunaldbynagreed to place the Danish tax litigation ahdhpending the outcome of a Bilateral Adva
Pricing Agreement (“Bilateral APA"petween the United States and SKAT. A Bilateral AiRRolves an agreement between the Internal Re\
Service (“IRS”)and the taxpayer, as well as a negotiated agreewidmtone or more foreign competent authorities emapplicable income t
treaties. During the third quarter of 2008, the @any filed the Bilateral APA with the IRS and SKAJ.S. and Danish competent authorities |
met to discuss the CompasyBilateral APA, and additional meetings are exp@cEKAT and the IRS met several times since 201kt recently i
September 2012, to discuss the matter. There wesignificant changes in the partiesspective positions during 2012. The parties lagreed t
meet again in the spring of 2013 to continue thgotiation process. In the event the discussionsregibtiations from that meeting do not yie
satisfactory result for the Company, the next dtapthe Company to resolve the matter would be @eksresolution of this issue through
administrative proceeding before the Danish Natidra Tribunal (the “Tribunal”).The Tribunal is a branch of SKAT that is indepertdeithe
discussions and negotiations that have taken ptacate. If the Tribunal does not rule to the $atison of one or both parties, the party see
redress may choose to litigate the issue in theidbacourt system. If the Company moves from thatBilal APA process to the Tribunal ¢
proceeding in the Danish court system, SKAT coelgliire the Company to post a cash deposit or strrity for taxes it has assessed in an an
to be negotiated, up to the full amount of thernlaThe Company believes it has meritorious defetséise proposed adjustments and will oppos
assessments before the Tribunal and in the Daoishs; as necessary. It is reasonably possiblartimint of unrecognized tax benefits may ch
in the next twelve months. An estimate of the amairsuch change cannot be made at this timeelfGbmpany is not successful in defendin
position to SKAT, the Tribunal or in the Danish csuthat the Company owes no additional taxesCibiapany could be required to pay signific
amounts to SKAT, which could impair or reduce idggiidity and profitability.
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The Company or one of its subsidiaries files incaanereturns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, aradious states and foreign jurisdictions.
Company was notified of an impending tax examimaiio the U.S. for the years 2008 and 2009. With éweptions, the Company is no lor
subject to tax examinations by the IRS in the W8 periods prior to 2008, U.S. state and local ivipalities for periods prior to 2006, and in non-
U.S. jurisdictions for periods prior to 2001. Additally, the Company is currently under examinatigrvarious tax authorities around the world.
Company anticipates it is reasonably possible arease or decrease in the amount of unrecognizebetaefits could be made in the next twi
months as a result of the statute of limitationpirxg and/or the examinations being concludedtwsé¢ returns. However, the Company doe
presently anticipate that any increase or decrisaserecognized tax benefits will be material te ttonsolidated financial statements.

The Company’s foreign net operating losses (“NOLg&re $37.0 million and $36.8 million as of DecemB&r 2012 and 2011, respectiv:
These NOLs expire at various dates through 2028.ddmpany has established a valuation allowanceefooperating loss carryforwards and ce
other deferred tax assets related to certain foreferations. Management believes that, basechomaer of factors, the available objective evid
creates sufficient uncertainty regarding the rediitty of these foreign NOLs and certain otheritigh differences related to some of its fore
operations. In assessing the realizability of defétax assets, management considers whethemibrig likely than not that some portion of all oé
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The @tenealization of deferred tax assets is depengmort the generation of future taxable income d
the periods in which the temporary differences beeaeductible. Management considers the schedaledtsal of deferred tax liabilities, projec
future taxable income and tax planning strategiemaking this assessment. Based upon the leveistirital taxable income and projections
future taxable income, management believes it igertikely than not the Company will realize the béts of the deferred tax assets, other than -
related to some of its foreign operations as dsedisabove. However, there can be no assurancsublatassets will be realized if circumstal
change. During the years ended December 31, 20d2@h1, valuation allowances of $2.8 million and%#illion, respectively, were reversec
certain foreign jurisdictions as earnings trendsrdfie last few years now make it more likely thahthat the deferred tax assets in these jurisdi
will be realized.

The income tax provision includes federal, statel fareign income taxes currently payable and tlieserred or prepaid because of tempc
differences between financial statement and tarda$ assets and liabilities. The Company recardsme taxes under the liability method. Ur
this method, deferred income taxes are recognizethé estimated future tax effects of differenlbesveen the tax bases of assets and liabilitie
their financial reporting amounts based on enatzedaws.

The income tax provision consisted of the following

Year Ended December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011 2010
Current provisior
Federa $ 49¢ 3 76 $ 40.5
State 7.8 12.C 7.1
Foreign 26.Z 28.4 21.2
Total current 84.C 117.3 68.¢
Deferred provisiot
Federa 37.1 (2.4) 2.5
State 4.2 0.2 0.3
Foreign (2.) (6.9) 2.1
Total deferred 38.4 (8.5 4.9
Total income tax provisio $ 1224 3 108.f $ 73.7
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The net deferred tax assets and liabilities reasghin the accompanying Consolidated Balance Skeetssted of the following:

December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011
Deferred tax asset
Stocl-based compensati $ 117 % 11.2
Accrued expenses and ot 10.€ 7.€
Net operating losse 9.€ 9.¢
Inventories 35 1.8
Intangible assel 2.4 1.1
Property, plant and equipme 1.5 2.7
Total deferred tax asst 39.: 34.:
Valuation allowance (0.7 (2.9)
Total net deferred tax ass 39.2 31.4
Deferred tax liabilities
Foreign repatriation, net of foreign tax cret (45.9)
Intangible assel (21.¢) (23.0
Property, plant and equipme (13.7) (11.9)
Accrued expenses and ot (3.7) (6.5)
Total deferred tax liabilities (84.0 (41.2)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (448 $ (9.9

(13) Major Customers

The top five customers accounted for approxima2diy0%, 20.0% and 20.0% of the Compangkt sales for the years ended Decembe
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Net sales fer arstomer in the ComparsyNorth American segment (Mattress Firm) representere tha
10.0% of consolidated net sales for the year efmzember 31, 2012. The top five customers alsowated for approximately 29.0% and 19.09
accounts receivable as of December 31, 2012 antl, 284pectively.

(14) Benefit Plan

The Company has a defined contribution plan (“tB&(K) Plan”)whereby eligible employees may contribute up t®@%5of their pay subje
to certain limitations as defined by the 401(k)rRPIEmployees are eligible to participate in the (#DPlan after 90 days and are eligible to rec
matching contributions upon one year of employnwétti the Company. The 401(k) Plan provides a 100n0&tch of the first 3.0% and 50.0% of
next 2.0% of eligible employee contributions. Alatohing contributions vest immediately. The Compemayrred $1.5 million, $1.5 million and $:
million of expenses associated with the Plan ferytars ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 20p&ctasly.
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(15) Earnings Per Common Share

Year Ended December 31

(in millions, except per common share amounts) 2012 2011 2010
Numerator:
Net income $ 106.¢ $ 2196 % 157.2
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per common s—weighted average shar 61.t 67.1 70.3
Effect of dilutive securities

Employee stock based compensa 1.4 2.C 2.5
Denominator for diluted earnings per common shardiusted weighted average
shares 62.C 69.1 72.€
Basic earnings per common shar $ 174 $ 3271 $ 2.2
Diluted earnings per common share¢ $ 1.7C % 3.1 $ 2.1€

The Company excluded 0.2 million and 0.01 milliord&.03 million shares issuable upon exercise tétanding stock options for the ye
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respsgtive the diluted earnings per common share caaijmn because their exercise price
greater than the average market price of TempuicHaternational’'s common stock or they were othisewvanti-dilutive. Holders of nowmestet
stock-based compensation awards do not have viaghts or rights to receive any dividends on tharseh covered by the awards.
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(16) Business Segment Information

The Company operates in two business segmentsh Monerica and International. These reportable segsnare strategic business units
are managed separately based on the fundamerfeakdifes in their operations. The North Americagngent consists of the two U.S. manufactu
facilities and the North American distribution sigharies. The International segment consists of nenufacturing facility in Denmark, whc
customers include all of the distribution subsidiaand third party distributors outside the Nd@ktherican segment. The Company evaluates se(
performance based on net sales and operating incbheeCompany allocates certain corporate operakgenses to the North America segn
which were $58.0 million, $55.8 million and $49.8llion for the years ended December 31, 2012, 28i4d 2010, respectively. There were
material allocations of corporate operating expsrieehe International segment for the years emstbmber 31, 2012, 2011 or 2010. Substan
all of the net sales from external customers and-oved assets included in the tables below fer@mmpanys North American segment relate to
Company’s U.S. operations. The Companylorth American and International segment assethide investments in subsidiaries which
appropriately eliminated in the CompasyConsolidated Financial Statements. At December2812 and 2011, International investment
subsidiaries held by the North American segmenev#320.1 million and $249.1 million, respectivelNorth American investments in subsidia
held by the International segment at December 812 2nd 2011 were $27.5 million and $23.5 millimspectively. The remaining intsegmer
eliminations are comprised of intercompany accouateivable. The effect of the elimination of timvé@stments in subsidiaries is included in
inter-segment eliminations as shown below.

The following table summarizes total assets by ssgm

December 31 December 31
(in millions) 2012 2011
North America $ 1,160.. $ 688.(
Internationa 504.1 422.2
Inter-segment eliminations (351.5) (272.0)
$ 1,313.( $ 838.2
The following table summarizes long-lived assetségment:
December 31 December 31
(in millions) 2012 2011
North America $ 3957 % 378.2
Internationa 69.5 62.C
$ 465.2 $ 440.:
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The following table summarizes segment information:

(in millions)
Net sales from external custome
North Americe
Mattresse:!
Pillows
Other

Internationa
Mattresse:
Pillows
Other

Inte-segment sale:
North America
Internationa
Intel-segment elimination

Gross profit;
North America
Internationa

Operating income
North America
Internationa

Income before income taxe
North America
International

Depreciation and amortization (including st-based compensation amortizatic

North America
International

Intercompany royalties
North America
International

Capital expenditure:
North America
International
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Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

666.! 693. $ 539.;
73.1 75. 65.
224. 235. 167..
964.. 1,004. $ 772.
268. 250 $ 196..
85.: 76.. 64..
85.. 86.. 72..
438.1 413. $ 333..
1,402.! 1,417 $ 1,105.
0.! 50 % 0.
1. 2. 2.
(2.9 (7. (2.9
—_ —_ $ —_
449.. 499. $ 358.:
265.: 243.. 197
714.1 743. $ 555..
144.. 236.. $ 152.:
103.! 103. 93.
248.. 340. $ 245.!
126.. 224, $ 137.
103.1 103.i 93..
229.; 328. $ 230.!
30.! 41. % 34.
11. K 9.
42.1 51 $ 44
12. 12 $ K
(12.) (12.) (9.9
—_ —_ $ —_
36.! 18. $ 11.0
13, 10. 7.
50.! 29. $ 18..
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(17) Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

Quarterly results of operations for the years eridecember 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized below:

(in millions, except per share amount
2012
Net sales
Gross profit
Operating incomu
Net income (loss
Basic earnings (loss) per common st
Diluted earnings (loss) per common st

2011
Net sales
Gross profit
Operating incom
Net income
Basic earnings per common sh
Diluted earnings per common shi

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
384.¢ 329t 347¢ $ 341.1
205.¢ 166.¢ 171.2 170.¢
86.1 47.F 63.4 51.c
56.2 29.1 (2.0) 23.F
0.8¢ 0.4¢ 0.09) % 0.3¢
0.8¢ 0.4t 0.09) % 0.3¢
325.¢ 342.2 3831 $ 366.¢
170.: 181.C 200.¢ 191.2
75.2 82.¢ 96.€ 85.¢
48.5 53.1 61.¢ 56.S
0.7C 0.7¢€ 09: $ 0.8€
0.6€ 0.7¢ 09C $ 0.84

The sum of the quarterly earnings per common shareunts may not equal the annual amount reporteduse per share amounts
computed independently for each quarter and forfiuleyear based on respective weightagerage common shares outstanding and other @
potential common shares. The Company’s quartedyaimg results fluctuate as a result of seasca@@tions in the Company’s business.
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SCHEDULE I
(in millions)
Additions
Balance at Charges to Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and Other End of
Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
Allowance for doubtful account
Year Ended December 31, 20 $ 9C $ 05 $ —  $ 21 $ 7.4
Year Ended December 31, 20 $ 74 % 1€ $ —  $ 22 $ 6.8
Year Ended December 31, 20 $ 6.8 $ 25 % —  $ 11 $ 8.2
Additions
Balance at Charges to Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and Other End of
Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
Valuation allowance deferred tax ass
Year Ended December 31, 20 $ 9.8 $ — $ $ (10 $ 8.8
Year Ended December 31, 20 $ 88 $ — $ $ 59 $ 2.9
Year Ended December 31, 20 $ 29 % — % $ 29 $ 0.1
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Exhibit 10.3
AMENDMENT NO. 2

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2, dated as of December 2Q12 (this “ Amendmeri}), with respect to the Credit Agreement referencedw
is by and among TEMPUR-PEDIC MANAGEMENT, LLC, .,lelaware limited liability company formerly TempBedic Management, Inc.
Delaware corporation, and DAROAM APS, a private limited liability company exisg under the laws of Denmark, as Borrowers, tHesisliarie:
and affiliates identified on the signature page®tee as Guarantors, and Bank of America, N.A. emBstic Administrative Agent for and on bel
of the Lenders.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, a $770 million senior credit facilithe “ Existing Senior Credit Facilifj was established pursuant to the terms of thatin
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated asnef 28, 2011 (as amended and modified, the * ExjsBredit Agreemert) by and amon
Tempur-Pedic Management, Inc., a Delaware corgoratiow Tempur-Pedic Management, LLC, a Delawargtdid liability company), and Dan-
Foam ApS, a private limited liability company ekigt under the laws of Denmark, as Borrowers, thessliaries and affiliates identified therein
Guarantors, the Lenders identified therein, andkBdrAmerica, N.A., as Domestic Administrative Ageand Nordea Bank Danmark A/S, as For
Administrative Agent;

WHEREAS, Tempur-Pedic International Inc., dedeare corporation (the_* Parehor “ TPIl ") has entered into an agreement (ttgc'aly
Acquisition Agreement) to acquire Sealy Corporation (the “ Sealy Acdligs ");

WHEREAS, in connection therewith, it is intendedattlfi) the loans and obligations under the Exist8gnior Credit Facility will b
refinanced (the “ Refinancing and the Existing Credit Agreement terminated aglaced by a new $1.770 billion senior crediiligc(the “ New
Senior Credit Facility) established pursuant to a credit agreement‘(tew Credit Agreement) among TPII and the subsidiaries identified the
as borrowers, the subsidiaries and affiliates ifiedt therein, as guarantors, the lenders ideuwtifteerein, and Bank of America, N.A.,
administrative agent and collateral agent, ands@i§5 million in senior unsecured notes (the “ N&swnior Notes) will be issued by TPII pursuant
an indenture (the * Indentufe entered into in connection therewith;

WHEREAS, the New Credit Facility and the Neanf®r Notes will be guaranteed by certain domestlusidiaries of TPII;

WHEREAS, in connection with the Sealy Acquisitiand the Refinancing, TPIl intends to engage inagelihtercompany transactions i
investments, including, without limitation, (x) TIR{ill issue its capital stock to Tempur HoldingsvB, a corporation organized and existing unde
laws of the Netherlands and a whotlywned Subsidiary of TPII, and (y) two intercompamgmissory notes will be issued as more fully diésct ir
Section 2.4 hereof;

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the parties toeminto the New Credit Agreement and Indenture @nidsue the New Senior Notes
anticipation, but prior to consummation, of the Ig&ecquisition;

WHEREAS, TPII has requested the consents arghdments provided herein in connection with thledoing transactions; and

WHEREAS, the consents and amendments providedinheeguire the consent of the Required Lenders wtide Existing Cred
Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Lenders (by act of the Required Lesidbave agreed to the requested consents and amaetddon the terms a
conditions set forth herein and have authorizeddiretted the Domestic Administrative Agent to enm¢o this Amendment on their behalf;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premé&s other good and valuable consideration, theipeand sufficiency of which &
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Defined Terms Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defimeetin shall have the meanings provided in thetifx
Credit Agreement.

2. Amendments to the Existing Credit é@ment

In Section 1.01 (Defined Terms) the following terare added or amended, as appropriate, to readl@as<:
21

“ Consolidated Funded De” means Funded Debt of the Consolidated Group datedndn a consolidated basi:
accordance with GAAP; _providedhowever, that, notwithstanding anything hereirthe contrary, for purposes
calculation of the Consolidated Leverage Ratio @odsolidated Interest Coverage Ratio, Indebtedeeskenced b
the senior notes permitted under Section 8.03eall not be considered Consolidated Funded fel#o long as tt
proceeds thereof shall be held in escrow pendingummation of the Sealy Acquisitic

“ Consolidated Interest Expensemeans, for any period for the Consolidated Groupjnéerest expense on
consolidated basis determined in accordance witiABAbut including, in any event, the interest comgrdt unde
Capital Leases and the implied interest componedeuSecuritization Transactions, and excludingrig event, ar
interest expense associated with the Indebtedmidsneed by the senior notes permitted under Se&i@3(c) for sc
long as the proceeds thereof shall be held in espemding consummation of the Sealy Acquisiti




2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

“ New Credit Agreement means that credit agreement among TPII and theidsabies identified therein,

borrowers, the subsidiaries and affiliates idesdiftherein, as guarantors, the lenders identifiedein, and Bank
America, N.A., as administrative agent and colktagent, entered into in anticipation of and imroection with th
Sealy Acquisition. The initial loans and extensiofi€redit under the New Credit Agreement will ksed to repay
full the loans and obligations owing hereunder éptdor contingent indemnification obligations awfdligations witt
respect to Letters of Credit for which arrangemesdsisfactory to the applicable L/C Issuers will bmade it
accordance with the provisions here:

“ Outside Refinancing Datemeans October 1, 2013, or such later date as magreed by the Administrative Ag
in its discretion, but not in any event later tli2ecember 31, 2013 (unless otherwise agreed byéheired Lenders

“ Refinancing” means the refinancing of the Loans and other Ofitige hereunder by repayment in full of s
Loans and Obligations (except for contingent inddication obligations and obligations with respegtLetters o
Credit for which arrangements satisfactory to thppligable L/C Issuers will be made in accordancehvthe
provisions hereof) with the initial loans and exdiems of credit under the New Credit Agreement goedterminatio
of the commitments hereund:

“ Special Mandatory Redempti” has the meaning provided in Section 8.0:

“ Sealy Acquisitior” means the acquisition by TPII and its SubsidiasfeSealy Corporation and its Subsidiari
“ TPl " means Tempt-Pedic International, Inc., a Delaware corporatsmmetimes referred to herein as“Paren”.

In Section 1.01 (Defined Terms), in the definitioi“ Cash Equivalen”, the“anc’ immediately preceding subsect
(f) is deleted and the following subsection (gadkled immediately following subsection (f) as folfo

, and (g) deposit into escrow of the proceedsfissuance of the senior notes permitted undetid®e8.03(c) (anc
additional cash amounts necessary to fund the &p&tandatory Redemption thereof) with the trustherefo
pending consummation of the Sealy Acquisiti

Section 8.01(l) is amended to read as follc

() the deposit into escrow of (x) the net cashcpeals from the issuance and sale of senior ungbootes permitte
under_Section 8.03(c)ji and (y) additional cash amounts necessary to thadSpecial Mandatory Redemption
defined below), in each case pending the Refingneind consummation of the Sealy Acquisition in artior
therewith, which amounts will be pledged to, andemthe control of the trustee under the Indenfaresuch note
and the holders thereof, pending release uponfaettin of the escrow conditions, including the iRaficing an
consummation of the Sealy Acquisition in connectioerewith, or, if such escrow conditions are radts§ied by th
Outside Refinancing Date, redemption of such samisecured notes in full (the_* Special Mandatosd@nptior’),
together with any applicable premium, as providedhie indenture relating theretorovidedthat such amounts, t
account into which such amounts are deposited apgeoceeds arising therefrom shall constitute &ed Propert
hereunder

Section 8.02(q) is added to read as follo

(q) Investments (i) by TPIl evidenced by a promigswote of Tempur Holdings B.V. (or another ForeBubsidiar
of TPII) in an aggregate initial principal amourttrio exceed the difference between (A) the fairketvalue o
Sealy (Switzerland) GmbH and its subsidiaries, mieitged by reference to the most recent valuationSe#l
(Switzerland) GmbH and its subsidiaries and appmtdwe TPII in its reasonable business judgment, sadhation tc
be conducted by a third party valueation firm meedi by TPII, and (B) the free cash on hand at Terkimldings, B.V
and its Subsidiaries as determined by TPII inéspnable judgment, (ii) by D&weam Acquisition ApS in Temp
Holdings B.V. in an amount not to exceed the fraghcon hand at Dafeam Acquisition ApS (after accounting
ordinary course operations thereof) as determingdTBIl in its reasonable business judgment, in eaah
constituting norcash intercompany transactions and investmentsreght®to in anticipation, but prior to t
consummation of, the Sealy Acquisition, and (iignstituting the acquisition of capital stock of TBY Tempu
Holdings B.V.

Section 8.03(c) is amended to read as follows:

(c) Indebtedness of the Paren

(i) up to $375,000,000 in senior unsecured notes issuadticipation, but prior to the consumma
of, the Sealy Acquisition, until the Outside Reficang Date, provided that the proceeds thereot
be deposited into escrow pending the Refinancind) @nsummation of the Sealy Acquisitior



connection therewith as providedSection 8.01(); and

(i) up to $200,000,000 in private placement notes, ang refinancing, refunding, renewal
extension of any such private placement notes, igedvthat in the case of any such refinant
refunding, renewal or extension, (A) the principahount thereof shall not be increased, exce
include a reasonable premium and reasonable fekexg@enses in connection therewith, (B) the
maturity date and average lifedwaturity may not be shortened, and (C) the covenaatms an
provisions of the indenture, note purchase agregmesdit agreement or other governing instrur
will not be more restrictive to the Parent and @lmsolidated Group, in any material respect, thés
Credit Agreement

Consents The following consents are hereby given, notstahding provisions to the contrary provided in Ehéstinc

Credit Agreement and the other Credit Documentssbhiject to the terms and conditions providedinhere

3.1

Consent to the execution and delivery by TPIl asdSubsidiaries of the New Credit Agreement andatier loal
documents relating thereto, providéldat (i) no loans and extensions of credit will beade thereunder ur
consummation of the Sealy Acquisition, (ii) the heaand other Obligations under the Existing CrAditeement wil
be paid in full (or, in the case of Letters of Atedtherwise provided for in accordance with teams of the Existin
Credit Agreement) with the initial loans and exfens of credit under the New Credit Agreement, éiifpino UCC
financing statements, intellectual property filingsslien interests relating to the New Senior Crédicility will be
filed or made of record until payment in full (anid, the case of Letters of Credit, as for whichaagemeni
satisfactory to the applicable L/C Issuers willrbade in accordance with the provisions hereofhefltoans and oth
Obligations under the Existing Credit Agreem

Conditions PrecedenThis Amendment shall be effective immediatelpmigatisfaction of the following conditions:

(a) Receipt by the Domestic Administrative Agentafy executed counterparts of this Amendmenti(othe case «
the Lenders, a written consent directing the Doimestiministrative Agent to enter into this Amendrhem thei
behalf) from (i) the Borrowers and the Guarantdiiy,the Required Lenders, and (iii) the Domestidministrative
Agent.

(b) Payment of all fees and expenses owing in cdiorewith this Amendment, including fees and exgenof Moor
& Van Allen, PLLC..

Effectiveness of Amendmen®©n and after the date hereof, all referencabddExisting Credit Agreement in each of

Credit Documents shall hereafter mean the ExisGnedit Agreement as amended by this Amendmentejiixas specifically amended hereb
otherwise agreed, the Existing Credit Agreemeheigby ratified and confirmed and shall remairuihfbrce and effect according to its terms.

Representations and Warranties; DisfatEach of the Credit Parties hereby affirms tHvang:

(a) it has full power and authority, and has takdinnecessary action to authorize the executiofivety anc
performance of this Amendment, and has executedlalikered this Amendment which is a legal, vali &indin¢
obligation enforceable against it in accordancé Vg terms

(b) after giving effect to this Amendment, the reg@ntations and warranties set forth in the Exgs@iredit Agreemei
and the other Credit Documents are true and comeali material respects as of the date hereafdpixto the exte
that such representations and warranties spetyficfer to an earlier date, in which case theylldl®true and corre
as of such earlier date, and except that for p@pos$ this Section 4the representations and warranties contain
subsections (adnd_(b)of Section 6.0%f the Existing Credit Agreement shall be deemedefer to the most rece
statements furnished pursuanclauses (aand(b) , respectively, oSection 7.0:of the Existing Credit Agreemen

(c) no Default or Event of Default shall exist indiegtely before or immediately after giving effeerato; anc

(d) the liens and security interests created aadtgd in the Credit Documents remain in full foecel effect and th
Amendment is not intended to adversely affect gréimsuch liens and security interests in any mar

Full Force and EffectExcept as modified hereby, all of the terms pravisions of the Existing Credit Agreement anc

other Credit Documents (including schedules andbitstthereto) shall remain in full force and effec

Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in any numberoahterparts, each of which when so executec

delivered shall be deemed an original, and it shatllbe necessary in making proof of this Amendntemiroduce or account for more than one
counterpart. Delivery by any party hereto of arated counterpart of this Amendment by facsimileother electronic transmission shall
effective as such party’s original executed coyadrand shall constitute a representation thalh garty’s original executed counterpart will

delivered.

Fees and Expense$he Borrowers agree to pay all reasonable auisexpenses of the Administrative Agents an

Collateral Agents in connection with the prepamatiexecution and delivery of this Amendment, inahgdthe reasonable fees and expenses of N
& Van Allen, PLLC and local foreign counsel to thereign Collateral Agent.

York.

Governing Law This Amendment shall be governed by, and coadtin accordance with, the law of the State of
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties heretodsased a counterpart of this Amendment to be exiguted and delivered as of
date first above written.

DOMESTIC BORROWER TEMPUR-PEDIC MANAGEMENT, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company formerly Tenr-Pedic Management, Inc., a Delaware corpore

By:
Name:
Title:

FOREIGN BORROWER DAN-FOAM ApS,
a private limited liability company existing undée laws of Denmar

By:
Name:
Title:

DOMESTIC GUARANTORS TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC.,
a Delaware corporatic
TEMPUR WORLD, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability compar
TEMPUR PRODUCTION USA, LLC
a Virginia limited liability company
TEMPUR-PEDIC SALES, INC.
a Delaware corporatic
TEMPUR-PEDIC MANUFACTURING, INC.,
a Delaware corporatic

By:
Name:
Title

DAWN SLEEP TECHNOLOGIES, INC
a Delaware corporatic

By:
Name:
Title:

TEMPUR-PEDIC NORTH AMERICA, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability compar

By:
Name:
Title:

TEMPUR-PEDIC TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
a Delaware corporatic

By:
Name:
Title:

FOREIGN GUARANTOR: TEMPUR DANMARK A/S,
a stock company existing under the laws of Denr

By:
Name:
Title:




DOMESTIC ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT: BANK OF AMERICA, N.A,,
as Domestic Administrative Agent for and on belo@the Lender:

By:
Name:
Title:




CONSENT TO AMENDMENT NO. 2

To: Bank of America, N.A., as Domestic Administrativget
Date: December __, 201
Re: Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated asef28, 2011 (as amended and modified” Existing Credit Agreemer”) by

and among TEMPUR-PEDIC MANAGEMENT, INC., a Delawaoerporation a Delaware corporation (now Tempedic
Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability comg® and DarFoam ApS, a private limited liability company ekist under th
laws of Denmark, as Borrowers, the subsidiariesadfiliates identified therein, as Guarantors, ttleaders identified therein, and B
of America, N.A., as Domestic Administrative Ageatjd Nordea Bank Danmark A/S, as Foreign AdmirtiseaAgent. Capitalize
terms used herein and not otherwise defined havengranings provided in the Existing Credit Agreetr

Amendment No. 2 (th* Subject Amendmer”) to the Existing Credit Agreemet

Ladies and Gentlemen:
This letter serves to confirm our receipt of andsant to the Subject Amendment. We hereby authanm direct you, as Domestic Administra
Agent, to execute and deliver the Subject Amendmearur behalf upon your receipt of executed copfethis Consent from the Required Lenc
under the Existing Credit Agreement, and agreeytbat the Borrowers and the other Credit Partieg raly on such authorization and direction.
Sincerely,
[Type Name of Lender Here In All Caps]
By:
Name:
Title:

AMENDMENT NO. 2
TEMPUR-PEDIC MANAGEMENT, INC



SUBSIDIARIES OF TEMPUR-PEDIC INTERNATIONAL INC.

Entity

Tempur World, LLC
Tempu-Pedic Management, LL
Tempu-Pedic Manufacturing, In
Tempur Production USA, LL!
Dawn Sleep Technologies, Ir
Tempu-Pedic Sales, Inc
Tempu-Pedic North America, LL(
Tempu-Pedic Technologies, In
Tempu-Pedic America, LLC
Silver Lightning Merger Compar
Tempur Holdings B.V

Dar-Foam Ap<S

Tempur Danish Holdings Ap
Tempur Danmark P/

Dar-Foam Acquisition Ap¢
Tempur UK, Ltd.

Tempu-Pedic Canada Holding Company, Ul
1390658 Ontario Inc

Tempur do Brasil Ltd

Tempur Japan Yugen Kais
Tempur International Limite
Tempur Danmark A/¢

Tempur Suomi O\

Tempur Norge A

Tempur Sverige AE

Tempur Italia Sr

Tempurpedic Ecuador Compania Limite
Tempur France S.a.r

Tempur Holding Gmb}

Tempur Sleep Center Gmk
Tempur Deutschland Gmb
Tempur Schweiz AC

Tempur Polska Sp Z.o.

Tempur Portugal, Unipessoal LC
Tempur Pedic Espaia, S.
Tempur Singapore Pte Lt
Tempur Benelux B.V

Tempur Benelux Retail B.'
Tempur Osterreich Gmb
Tempur Australia Pty. Ltc
Tempur New Zealand Lt
Tempur China Holding Co. Lt
Tempur Shanghai Holding L1
Tempur Pedic (Shanghai) Trading Co.,
Tempur Korea Ltc

Exhibit 21.1

State or Country of
Organization

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Virginia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Netherland:
Denmark
Denmark
Denmark
Denmark
United Kingdom
Canade
Canade
Brazil
Japar
United Kingdom
Denmark
Finland
Norway
Sweder
Italy
Ecuador
France
Germany
Germany
Germany
Switzerlanc
Poland
Portugal
Spain
Singapore
Netherland:
Netherland:
Austria
Australia
New Zealanc
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
China
South Koree



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference inféllewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form-8 No. 33:-160821) pertaining to the Tem|-Pedic International Inc. Amended and Restated 2BGity
Incentive Plan

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-154966japeng to the TempuRedic International Inc. Amended and Restated 2BQGity
Incentive Plan, an

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333545) pertaining to the 2003 Equity IncentivenPtae 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, ar
2002 Stock Option Plan of Temj-Pedic International Inc

of our reports dated February 1, 2013, with respedhe consolidated financial statements and sdbeedf TempurPedic International Inc. a
Subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internal robrdver financial reporting of Tempuredic International Inc. and Subsidiaries, includtedhis
Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Tempur-Pedic Interoaél Inc. and Subsidiaries for the year ended Déeerdl, 2012.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
February 1, 2013







Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-144), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark Sarvary, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fRempur-Pedic International Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgtate a material fact necessary to mak
statements made, in light of the circumstances undiéch such statements were made, not misleaditly nespect to the period covered by
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and ctsWs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifae establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as defines
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdiriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 158{{))
for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaree designed under our supervis
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tf
entities, particularly during the period in whidhig report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrigial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegatte reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsanisclosure controls and procedures and presenttds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the segnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registratnos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabm® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohweer financial reporting;

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financial reporting,
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committeh® registrant’s board of directors (or persoegfigrming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordver financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that indvmanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registramst’interna
control over financial reporting.

February 1, 201 By: /sl MARK SARVARY

Mark Sarvary
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-144), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dale E. Williams, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fRempur-Pedic International Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or amgtate a material fact necessary to mak
statements made, in light of the circumstances undiéch such statements were made, not misleaditly nespect to the period covered by
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all material respects
financial condition, results of operations and ctsWs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifae establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as defines
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdiriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 158{{))
for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaree designed under our supervis
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tf
entities, particularly during the period in whidhig report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrigial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegatte reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsanisclosure controls and procedures and presenttds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the segnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registratnos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabm® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikkly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohweer financial reporting;

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financial reporting,
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committeh® registrant’s board of directors (or persoegfigrming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordver financial reporting which &
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that indvmanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registramst’interna
control over financial reporting.

February 1, 201 By: /s/ DALE E. WILLIAMS

Dale E. Williams
Executive Vice President and Chief Financia
Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies, purstmfB U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuanéttich 906 of the Sarban€&xxley Act of 2002
in his capacity as an officer of Tempur-Pedic Ing&ional Inc. (the “Company”that, to his knowledge, the Annual Report of thenpany on Fort
10K for the period ended December 31, 2012, fully pbes with the requirements of Section 13(a) ord}5f the Securities Exchange Act of 1!
(15 U.S.C. § 78m or 780(d)) and that the informatimntained in such report fairly presents, innadlterial respects, the financial condition
results of operations of the Company. This wrig&tement is being furnished to the Securitiestatmhange Commission as an exhibit to such |
10-K. A signed original of this statement has beernviged to the Company and will be retained by then@any and furnished to the Securities
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

February 1, 201 By: /s/ MARK SARVARY

Mark Sarvary
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 1, 201 By: /s/ DALE E. WILLIAMS

Dale E. Williams
Executive Vice President and Chief Financia
Officer




